L.
2.

Town Council

AGENDA g]ﬁfi gi’iﬁél(lnel?iﬂig Chairman
COI.INCIL MEETING Nom Albe;t 4
MARCH 6, 2018 e
LISBON TOWN OFFICE Bexa iiggchelle
7:00 P.M.
CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE TO FLAG
ROLL CALL
__ Councilor Albert __ Councilor Brunelle __ Councilor Crawford ___ Councilor Kolbe
__ Councilor Larochelle ~_ Councilor Lunt ___ Councilor Ward
Town Clerk reading of meeting rules
. GOOD NEWS & RECOGNITION

A. Proclamation Supporting Team Hailey Hugs Going Gold in September for Childhood Cancer Awareness

. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Special Entertainment Permit Railroad Restaurant & Pub

5. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION & RESPONSE FOR AGENDA ITEMS

10.
11.
12.

13

. CONSENT AGENDA
2018-44 ORDER — A. Municipal Accounts Payable & Payroll Warrants -

#94  $6,217.06 #95  §$167,780.02
#96  $16,970.81 #97  $10,408.63
# b # $
# $ # $

B. School Accounts Payable & Payroll Warrants -
#24 $911.91 #1045 $335,236.60
#1046 $13,215.31 # $

B. February 13 Workshop Minutes, February 20 Minutes, and February 27 Workshop Minutes
C. Approve Liquor License & Special Entertainment Permit for the Railroad Restaurant & Pub

COUNCIL ORDERS, RESOLUTIONS, & ORDINANCES
2018-45 ORDER - Set public hearing for March 20, 2018 for CDBG Downtown Revitalization Grant
2018-46 ORDER — Amend Chapter 90 Personnel Policy — Rules, Regulations & Policies
2018-47 ORDER ~ Amend Chapter 82 Division 2 Section 82-51 Victualer Fees Rules, Regulations, & Policies
2018-48 ORDER — Amend Fee Schedule ~Moxie Festival/Library/Businesses— Rules, Regulations, & Policies
2018-49 ORDINANCE-Amend Chapter 46 Streets, Sidewalks, & other public places, Article 1-In General— First Reading
2018-50 ORDINANCE — Amend Chapter 34 Sewer Ordinance - First Reading

. OTHER BUSINESS
A. Council Committee Reports:
1. School (Councilor Albert) 5. Conservation Commission (Councilor Ward)
2. Planning Board (Councilor Ward) 6. Recreation (Councilor Kolbe)
3. Water Department (Councilor Brunelle) 7. County Budget (Councilor Ward)
4. LDC (Councilor Larochelle) 8. Library (Councilor Lunt)

B. Town Manager's Report

C. Goals and Objectives

APPOINTMENTS ‘

COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION & RESPONSE NEW ITEMS
EXECUTIVE SESSION

2018-51 ORDER — Per 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405 (6) (A) Personnel Matters
ADJOURNMENT

2018-52 ORDER - To Adjourn



SUMMARY OF LISBON COUNCIL MEETING RULES

This summary is provided for guidance only. The complete council working rules may be found on the town
website www.lisbonme.org on the Town Officials, Town Council page.

The meeting agenda is available from the town website under Council Agendas and Minutes.

1. Please note the order that agenda items may be acted upon by the Council, however, if necessary, the Council
may elect to change the order of the agenda.

2. The Council Chairman presides over the meeting. When the Chairman is not present, the Vice Chairman serves
that function. The chair shall preserve decorum and decide all questions of order and procedure subject to
appeal to the town council.

3. Public comment is not typically allowed during Council workshops. There may be occasions where public
comment may be recruited, but normally, workshops are reserved for Council members to discuss and educate
themselves on a variety of issues facing the Town. Prior to the conclusion of a workshop, if time permits, the
chair may allow questions from the public.

4. During audience participation, anyone wishing to address council will wait to be recognized by the chair before
beginning any remarks. Audience members will move to the lectern to address council, and shall provide name
and address prior to addressing the council.

5. Note that “Consent Agenda” items (if there are any) are acted upon first, voted upon as a group, and will most
often be voted on without discussion as these items often involve “housekeeping” issues (such as minor parking
changes). On occasion “Consent Agenda” items are separated out as stand-alone action items by the Council to
allow for more discussion.

6. Public comment on agenda items. General comments on agenda items should be made during audience
participation. After introduction of an agenda item, appropriate motions, and time for explanation and council
questions, the public may be allowed to comment on that agenda item at the discretion of the chair. During that
period of time, the public comment shall address only the agenda item before council.

7. Action on agenda items. As each item on the agenda for any meeting is brought to the floor for discussion:
a. The town clerk reads the agenda item and the action being requested of council.

b. The sponsor of each item or, if there is no council sponsor, the town manager, or town staff, shall first
be allowed to present their initial comments for consideration by the public and councilors.

c. Following this introduction of the issue, there will be time devoted to any questions of the sponsor or
the town manager or staff regarding the agenda item which any councilor may have which would
help to clarify the question presented by the agenda item. The chair may allow questions from the
public during this time however; no debate or discussion of collateral issues shall be permitted.

d. When authorized by the chair, any additional public comment shall be no longer than two minutes per
person and must be to request or furnish new or undisclosed information or viewpoints only.

e. Once an agenda item has been explained and clarified by any questioning, the discussion on the
specific agenda item will remain with the council. Additional public comment, prior to final council
vote; will only be allowed at the chairman's discretion.

8. New business is for the council to receive input on town matters not on the agenda for that meeting. It is not
intended, nor shall it be construed as an opportunity for debate of previous agenda items or reinforcement of a
point made by another speaker. Comments shall be to furnish new or undisclosed information or viewpoints and
limited to a time period of two minutes or less and shall be directed through the chair.

9. If an "Executive Session” is conducted by the Council, State Statute prohibits public attendance for any
discussion of the action to be addressed by the Council. Any action taken by the Council on any “Executive
Session" matter must be acted upon in a public meeting, and may occur at the end of the "Executive Session”
(which has no time element relative to the length of the discussion involved in the “session”).



Town Council

]
Town of Lisbon i e
Christopher Brunelle, Vice Chai:

Norm Albert

Diane Barnes Kris Crawford

Town Manager Kasie Kolbe
Fernand Larochelle, Jr.
Mark Lunt

MEMO

To: Town Council

From: Diane Barnes, Town Manager
Subject: Recommendations

Date: March 6, 2018

Agenda Item 2018-45
Set public hearing for March 20, 2018 for CDBG Downtown Revitalization Grant

Over the past couple of years the Town of Lisbon has been very successful in receiving grant funds for
revitalization projects based on the Rt. 196 Master Plan and Downtown Plan. The ECD office submitted
a Letter of Intent to the Department of Community Development (CDBG) for a 2018 CDBG Downtown
Revitalization Grant in the amount of $300,000 for the Lisbon Village area.

On January 30, 2018 we received notification from the Office of Community Development that our Letter
of Intent met the requirements established by Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of
1973, as amended and the State of Maine CDBG Program and is eligible to submit a Downtown
Revitalization application.

For the purposes of this match, the Office of Community Development will accept the approved fagade
application from MT Pools as the required match. I am currently coordinating with other owners who are
planning property improvements in the project area for additional matching funds that will count towards
the grant as well. With the already approved 25% grant match by Council along with the other
businesses will help leverage Lisbon to score higher on the application.

The Lisbon Development Committee along with staff wishes to make the following recommendation to
Council:

1. Set a public hearing date on March 20, 2018 to approve the submittal of a 2018 CDBG DR
Grant Application to the Maine Department of Community Development for the Lisbon
Village area.

2. Deadline for the application is March 30, 2018.

Recommendation

Set a public hearing date on March 20, 2018 to approve the submittal of a 2018 CDBG DR Grant
Application to the Maine Department of Community Development for the Lisbon Village area.

***********************************************'k****************k********7’::’:****:‘:



Agenda Item 2018-46
Amend Chapter 90 Personnel Policy — Rules, Regulations & Policies

We are requesting four changes to the personnel policy. Due to the recent personnel changes, it has
become apparent that past practice is not correctly reflected in the current policy. All proposed changes
reflect past practice and historical written policy. The overtime wording clearly defines the hours to be
included in determining ‘hours worked’ for overtime calculations, and represent past practice as passed
down through changes in personnel. The Lisbon Treatment Plant changes were included in written
policies by Ryan Leighton and Curtis Lunt that have been part of regular practice since at least 6/27/2006.

Recommendation

To adopt the Personnel Policy Amendments as presented.

R L L i L L T OO )

Agenda Item 2018-47
Amend Chapter 82 Division 2 Section 82-51 Victualer Fee
Rules, Regulations, & Policies

This changes the fee for a Victualer’s License to $100.00 for processing with or without a liquor license.
Some of those businesses with liquor licenses already pay a fee to have the liquor license application
processed in the Clerk’s office. A small decrease ($500.00 +/-) in revenue is expected because those
businesses who sell liquor at convenience stores do not need the town Council’s approval and we do not
process those in the Clerk’s office.

Recommendation

Amend Chapter 82 Businesses, Division 2 License, Section 82-51 Fee as follows:

Each victualer establishment shall pay an annual license fee as follows:

Ne-liquorlieense..... $100.00

********************************************************************************

Agenda Item 2018-48
Amend Fee Schedule -Moxie Festival/Library/Businesses
Rules, Regulations, & Policies

The Council asked that the fee schedule be reviewed for possible changes. Recommendations were made to
Business license fees, library fees, and Moxie Festival fees were added. See changes in your packets.
Recommendation

Amend the fee schedule as presented.

********************************************************************************

300 Lisbon Street, Lisbon, ME 04250 lPhone: (207) 353-3000 lFax: (207)
353-3007 | www.lisbonme.org



Agenda Item 2018-3A

N
S N
CURE criLDWOO®

2018
Dear Valued Supporter of Team Hailey Hugs,

Team Hailey Hugs, a non-profit organization, was established in 2016 with a mission to bring
awareness to Childhood Cancer. Hailey Steward, along with her mom Tabaitha, created Team
Hailey Hugs for a way to raise money to help families affected by childhood cancer. Many of
these families cannot hold regular jobs due to the many hospital stays and visits. The gas,
housing, and meals are financial burdens. Sometimes these families need a little help to pay
some past due bills, buy food or even help with their child’s Christmas or Birthday. With that
said, Team Hailey Hugs has helped many families financially, emotionally and will continue to
do so with donations and sponsors from the community.

You, the Friends of Team Hailey Hugs, can make Hailey’s dream come true. Hailey passed away
during September of 2017 leaving a vacant space in all our hearts. She touched so many people
and families throughout Maine and extending on to other states. The wish.... Hailey fought for
everyone to “Go Gold Maine Do It” for Childhood Cancer Awareness! We, along with Hailey,
want to adopt September as Go Gold Maine Do It for Childhood Cancer Month! September 2,
2017 we held our first annual Go Gold Maine Do It Kick Off Event and what a success! We
brought in over $12,000 from vendors, live auction, go gold accessories, 50/50 and donations a
plenty. A parade was held along with ALL day entertainment. These memories will always be
dear to our heart as Hailey was there to celebrate with us and stayed for the fireworks show.

What better way to honor Hailey’s legacy by encouraging our towns, schools, and businesses in
Maine to GO GOLD DO IT for the month of September. The Town Municipalities can sign a
proclamation declaring September as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month. Everyone can
decorate in gold for the month to participate. Let's make Hailey proud of us and carry out her
dream. Please send a copy of your signed proclamation to the address listed below.

Donations are always accepted by mailing to:

Team Hailey Hugs, P.O. Box 636, Bethel, ME 04217

For more information please visit us on Facebook and haileyhugs.org .
Tabaitha Steward, Founder & Board Member

Tasha Chapman, Board Member



TOWN OF LISBON
PROCLAMATION

The State of Maine is Going Gold in the month of September from this year forth in support of
Childhood Cancer Awareness.

WHEREAS, Cancer is the leading cause of death by disease among U.S. Children and is detected in more than
15,000 of our country’s sons and daughters every year, and

WHEREAS, in the State of Maine cancer affects more than 50 new children and families annually, where more
than 400 children are undergoing treatment currently and where we are ranked in the top range of incidence of all
cancers at 468.3 per 100,000 people; and

WHEREAS, September is nationally recognized as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month; and

WHEREAS, thanks to all the advances in research and treatment, the five year survival rate for all childhood
cancers has climbed from less than 50 percent to 80 percent over the last several decades; and

WHEREAS, innovative studies are leading to real breakthroughs reminding us of the importance of supporting
scientific discovery and moving closer to finding cures, though much work remains to be done; and

WHEREAS, | in 5 children diagnosed will not survive.

NOW THEREFORE, we the Town Council of Lisbon proclaim that the Town of Lisbon will support Maine GO Golﬁ ereie’
in support of Team Hailey Hugs and all of the children and families affected by Childhood Cancer. In doing so, ﬁ'om e g
this day forward, we will recognize September as Maine Childhood Cancer Awareness Month. This is our way -
paying tribute to the families, friends, professionals and communities who lend their strength to children fighting.*
pediatric cancer.

Given under our hands this 6th day of March A.D. 2018.
LISBON TOWN COUNCIL

Allen Ward, Chairman

Chris Brunelle, Vice Chairman

Normand Albert

Kris Crawford
Kasie Kolbe
A true Copy,
Fern Larochelle
Attest:

Municipal Clerk

Mark Lunt



Agenda Item 2018-4A

T 0 W N OF LISB ON Twilu D. Lycette, Town Clerk

300 Lisbon Street, Lisbon, ME (04230 Michelle Foss. Assistant

PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that the Lisbon Town Council intends to
hold a public hearing on March 6, 2018 at 7:00 PM in the
Town Olffice Public Meeting Room to hear comments on a
Special Entertainment permit for:

Sandra R. Harkins d/b/a
Railroad Restaurant & Pub
695 Lisbon Street
Lisbon Falls, Maine 04252

The public is invited to attend.

[ /CL/KZ

Twila Lycette, Town Clerk




Agenda Item 2018-44C

Normand Albert, At Large 2018

TOWN COUNCIL Kasie Kolbe, District 1 2018
Allen Ward, District 2 2018

WORKSHOP Christopher Brunelle, At Large 2019
MEETING MINUTES Mark Lunt, District 1 2019
Kris Crawford, District 2, 2019

FEBRUARY 13’ 2018 Fern Larochelle, At Large 2020

CALL TO ORDER. The Chairman, Allen Ward, called the meeting to order at 6:01PM.

ROLL CALL. Members present were Councilors Ward, Kolbe, Larochelle, Brunelle, and Lunt. Also present
were Diane Barnes, Town Manager; Ryan Leighton, Public Works Director; Steve Alveoli, Sewer Operation
Manager; Bill Alexander, Superintendent of Water Department; Miriam Alexander-Morgan, Assessment Review
Board/Appeals Board; and Annaleis Hafford, Engineer with Olver Associates.

SEWER USE ORDINANCE

Mrs. Barnes said Mr. Alveoli, Mr. Leighton, and Mrs. Hafford of Olver Associates had worked together on many
of the updates to the Sewer Ordinance. Mrs. Barnes said she and Mrs. Megan Lavigne had also updated the
abatement sections of the ordinance.

Mrs. Hafford explained many of the updates were a reorganization of what was already present in the original
ordinance. Mrs. Hafford said many of the definitions and fees were moved to appendixes to decrease clutter and
make them easier to reference. Mrs. Hafford said the construction standards were also updated and included in a
separate appendix so that contractors could be given just that portion and not have to sift through the entire
ordinance. Mrs. Hafford said many sections were clarified and added an abatement section.

ARTICLE 34.0 - GENERAL — Provides ordinance scope and purpose

ARTICLE 34.1 — REFERENCE TO DEFINITIONS - Refers to definitions moved to appendix A.

ARTICLE 34.2 — USE OF PUBIC SEWERS REQUIRED - Provides general restrictions regarding wastewater
disposal and provides requirements to connect the public sewer within 90 days after date of notice provided said
public sewer is within 200 feet of the structure to be served. Provides that a septic system can be utilized even if a
sewer system is available, based on “undue hardship” as defined in section 34.14.2(b) of this ordinance.

ARTICLE 34.3 — PRIVATE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS

34.3.1 - Where a public sewer is not available within 200 feet of the structure as provided in 34.2, the building
sewer shall be connected to a public sewer.

34.3.2 — Requires a plumbing permit from the code enforcement officer prior to construction of a private
wastewater disposal system.

34.3.3 — Requires a private disposal system to be inspected prior to use and changes the notice from 24 hours to 48
hours to provide final inspection prior to covering the system.

34.3.6 — Defines that suitable material is clean bank run gravel. Also indicates that a septic system if in good
working order can be continued to be used in accordance with article 34.2.4.

ARTICLE 34.3 — PRIVATE DISPOSAL SYSTEMS

34.3.1 - Where a public sewer is not available within 200 feet of the structure as provided in 34.2, the building
sewer shall be connected to a pubiic sewer.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 February 13, 2018

Mr. Leighton said, in the past, other locations were within 200 feet but had a functioning septic system. The intent
was to require the property to connect to the sewer system when that septic system no longer functioned.

34.3.2 — Requires a plumbing permit from the code enforcement officer prior to construction of a private
wastewater disposal system.

34.3.3 — Requires a private disposal system to be inspected prior to use and changes the notice from 24 hours to 48
hours to provide final inspection prior to covering the system.

34.3.6 — Defines that suitable material is clean bank run gravel. Also indicates that a septic system if in good
working order can be continued to be used in accordance with article 34.2.4.

ARTICLE 34.4 BUILDING SEWERS AND CONNECTIONS

34.4.1 — Requires a sewer connection permit and all connections to be done by a person qualified and acceptable to
the Superintendent.

34.4.2-34.4.4 — Refers to the fees which now have been located in appendix b.

34.4.5 — MONETARY DEPOSIT FOR CERTAIN DISCHARGES REQUIRED (NEW) — Provides a monetary
deposit sufficient to cover the cost to review the application of a sewer connection involving multiple buildings,
industrial entity, etc. The funds would be kept in a non interest bearing account.

34.4.6 — PERMIT AVAILABILITY — Requires that the permit be posted for inspection at all times at the site of the
work.

34.4.7 — SEPERATE AND INDEPENDENT SEWER REQUIRED - Requires a separate sewer for each building,
but in certain cases where a building is behind another, permits the use of the sewer to serve more than one
building but limits it to 4 structures.

Mrs. Hafford stated this would prevent too many users on one pipe.

34.4.8 TO 34.4.15 AND 34.4.23 — These sections refer to the construction standards in appendix C and provide
some key requirements. New requirements are cleanouts at every 100 feet of a sewer line and no connections to
forcemains.

34.4.16 TO 34.4.21 AND 34.4.24 — These sections refer to the inspection of such sewer connections and indicate
that the cost of connection is borne by the owner. These sections also refer to appendix C.

34422 - PRIVATELY OWNED SEWER LINES (NEW) — This section requires that any design for the
construction of sewer lines within subdivisions and other developments shall comply with this ordinance and shall
be submitted to the town for written approval. This section also provides that the developer shall pay for any
inspection or review conducted.

Mr. Leighton stated, in the past, when private sewer lines were run all the way up to the public sewer lines, but the
lines were run along a public right of way, the town had to pay for repairs. Section 34.4.22 maintains that these
lines remain private sewer lines and all repairs would be the responsibility of the owner except when run along
public right of way.

Mrs. Hafford said the intent was to give the town a choice of whether to accept the sewer line running along a
public right of way or consider the line to be private.

ARTICLE 34.5 SEWER EXTENSIONS

34.5.1 - TOWN CONSTRUCTION OF SEWER EXTENSION — The town can construct a sewer extension under
public contract if approved at town referendum.

34.5.2 - PROPERTY OWNER CONSTRUCTION OF SEWER EXTENSION — Added reference to appendix C.

34.5.3 — STATE LAW ADOPTED - Included subpart 3442 to 3445 in appendix E.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 February 13, 2018

34.5.4 — SEWER EXTENSION DESIGN REQUIREMENTS - Requires that all extension to the sanitary sewer
system be reviewed by a professional engineer and pay the cost of this review. The plans must be submitted at
least 45 days before the planning board meeting.

34.5.5 — Requires that sewer testing is done in the presence of the superintendent and refers to the construction
standards in appendix C.

34.5.6 — REQUIRES A SEWER MAINTENANCE BOND FOR SEWER EXTENSIONS - this was changed from
10 percent up to 100 percent of the estimated cost of the extension.

34.5.7 — Makes it clear that an approved method of sewage disposal is required prior to obtaining a building permit.
35.5.8 — Makes it clear when a sewer extension can be connected to the town’s public sewer system.

35.5.9 — Provides the steps the town should take and the requirements the town should have if a private sewer is to
be accepted as public.

ARTICLE 34.6 USE OF THE PUBLIC SEWERS

34.6.1 — Requires that nonpolluted water such as storm water, surface water, groundwater, roof runoff, etc. not be
discharged to the sanitary sewer system.

Mrs. Hafford said this gives the town the right to disconnect a source that is causing a direct overflow to the pump
station.

34.6.2 — Requires that unpolluted cooling water be discharged upon approval by the superintendent but in
accordance with DEP regulations, etc.

34.6.3 — This section lists wastes and wastewater and limits for certain wastewaters that will not be permitted to be
discharged to the collection system.

Mrs. Hafford stated some of the discharge limits were too strict so some limits have been raised, and language
regarding pH limits was added as well. Mrs. Hafford said the list allows the town to set limits for things that might
be of local concern.

34.6.4 — This section requires that the superintendent have the opportunity to review the discharge of high strength
wastewater and requires pretreatment in certain cases.

34.6.5 — This section requires a grease, oil and sand interceptor for certain discharges based on review of the
superintendent or code enforcement officer. This section was also amended to provide strength to require exterior
grease traps in certain situations where it is warranted.

34.6.6 — This section indicates that the superintendent has the right to accept unusual or high strength wastes and
charge extra for these discharges as long as it does not violate federal or state law.

ARTICLE 34.7 PRETREATMENT AND PERMITTING OF INDUSTRIAL, COMMERCIAL OR UNUSUAL
WASTES

34.7.1 - 34.7.2 — These two sections discuss the town’s right to require pretreatment and the decisions that can be
made depending upon the discharge.

34.7.3 — This section provides the approval process for these wastes and the items that must be demonstrated in
order to accept this type of wastewater.

3474 - 34.7.5 — These two sections indicate that the town can require the user to install flow equalizing
facilities/pretreatment and that they must be maintained and effectively operated by the user.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 February 13, 2018

34.7.6 - 34.77.8 — These three sections permit the superintendent/town to require a sampling manhole on the user’s
property, sufficient monitoring facilities as needed and the user must utilize proper sampling and analysis
procedures.

34.7.9 — Dilution is not permitted to achieve compliance with any standard.

34.7.10 - 34.7.11 — If a new limitation is implemented by epa categorical pretreatment standards, it supersedes an
existing limit and the user subject to such standard will be required to meet the new standard within 9 months of its
promulgation.

34.7.12 — This section was added to clarify that local limits for certain pollutants may be established by the town to
protect against pass through, etc. These limits can be more stringent than any federal limitation.

34.7.13 - 34.7.16 — These sections provide the requirements for permitting an industrial, commercial or unusual
waste discharger and all of the information that shall be provided on the form. The permit shall be signed by a
principal executive officer and have the certification provided under 34.7.14. The superintendent shall evaluate the
information provided on the permit and may issue a permit with terms and conditions.

347.17 - 34.7.18 — These sections permit the superintendent to prevent passthrough and interference by
establishing limits to protect the plant influent, effluent and the sludge. The permit conditions are listed in section
34.7.18.

34.7.19 — Permits will be issued for a specified time period not to exceed 5 years.

34.7.20 — The permit can be modified with good cause and must notify the user 30 days prior to the effective date
of the change.

34.7.21 - WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMITS ARE ISSUED TO A SPECIFIC USER - the ordinance will
permit a 90 day period of operation under the existing permit to facilitate a transaction to a new permit holder.

34.7.22 — Wastewater discharge permits will require pretreatment devices and may also include a compliance
schedule for the new pretreatment device

34.7.23 - 34725 — The superintendent may require any user to develop and implement an accidental
discharge/slug control plan. At least once every 5 years, the superintendent shall evaluate whether users need such
a plan. This section indicates what would be required in the plan and requirements for notification for an
accidental discharge. Notice to employees is also required if there is an accidental discharge.

34.7.26 — Where additional pretreatment and/or operations will be required to comply with the ordinance, a
compliance schedule will be required. This section provides what the schedule would require.

34.7.27 — All significant industrial users shall at the frequency stated in their wastewater permit as determined by
the superintendent, but in no case less than twice per year, submit to the superintendent a compliance report.

34.7.28 — No user shall implement any planned significant change unless the superintendent has responded in
writing to the user’s notice.

34.729 - If sampling by a user indicates a violation of the permit or the ordinance, the user must notify the
superintendent within in 24 hours of becoming aware of the violation.

ARTICLE 34.8 - POWER AND AUTHORITY OF INSPECTORS

34.8.1 - 34.8.2 — Duly authorized employees of the town can access industrial, commercial, etc. sites or easement
areas for the purpose of inspection, observation, sampling and testing.

34.8.3 - 34.8.6 — Inspectors have the right to inspect installations, sampling and metering and have access to all
records related to compliance with the permit,

34.8.7 — Users may have confidential information and in certain cases can request that this information be held
confidential to the public.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 February 13, 2018

34.8.8 — If the superintendent has been refused access for the purpose of inspection, the town can seek to secure an
administrative inspection warrant.

ARTICLE 34.9 — SEWER SERVICE FEES, RATES AND CHARGES

34.9.1 - 34.9.3 — The town has the right to adopt fees and charges for retiring debt services, capital expenditures,
ready-to-serve charges and operation and maintenance fees, permit applications, etc.

34.9.3 Provides that the number of units would be determined by assessment records or an assessor's review.
Alternatively, a customer can purchase a meter and outside reader from the water department.

Mrs. Hafford said the current fee for sewer usage is based on a two bedroom dwelling.

Mr.Leighton stated a discussion about the summer average rates, which are calculated by looking at the average
usage during two winter quarters. Mr. Leighton said the alternative option would be for the owner to purchase a
water meter, installed by the water department, and have it read quarterly instead of being billed on the Summer
Average rate. Mr. Leighton said the meter would allow the owner to be billed for actual usage.

34.9.4 — Refers to billing abatements in sections 34.9 and 34.11.

34.9.5 — The town’s billing policy is to allow for the correction or abatement for the excessive summer usage due
to irrigation and filling pools. Billing for the two summer quarters will be based on the average of the two winter
quarters or consumption reported by the water department as referenced in appendix D.

34.9.6 - 34.9.8 — These sections provide the town with the right to change rates of sewer service charges, collect
unpaid rates, and charge interest at the same rate as established by the town for uncollected taxes.

34.9.9 — Establishes that the tawn can establish a special sewer service charge if the strength or characteristic of the
waste alone would overload or upset the capacity or efficiency of the treatment facility.

34.9.10 — The town may assess a ready-to-serve fee to be paid by any property owner that has an active building
permit and sewer application permit or if the lot was previously billed unless the stub was capped. This only
applies if the stub is within 200 feet of the building to be served.

Mr. Leighton stated the town does not currently charge owners a fee if they have an existing private septic system
and they do not wish to hook up to the public sewer system. Mr. Leighton said if dwelling is within 200 feet of the
public sewer the ordinance allows town to charge "Ready to Serve" fees to offset the cost of making sewer service
available to the property in the future. Mr. Leighton explained when an existing structure gets demolished or a
new structure is built the owner of the property has the option to pay the "Ready to Serve" fees quarterly, or the
owner can cap the sewer hub and not have service until they decide to rebuild. However, the owner would then
have to pay a hook up fee to restart service.

34.9.11 — Refers to the requirement to pay a connection fee prior to any connection to the sewer system.

34.9.12 - In instances where any proposed development or use of a parcel of land in the town results in the need to
provide or update the sewer system in order to accommodate the development, the town may require the payment
of an impact fee to cover the cost of the required improvements.

34.9.13 — The town may elect, at its sole discretion, to construct excess capacity in a service area in conjunction
with a project requiring the assessment of impact fees and if the developer pays for the full capacity, the town can
access these charges from future connections and shall refund the developer or their assignees.

ARTICLE - 34.10 LIENS FOR NON-PAYMENT

34.10.1 — Each sewer charge levied pursuant to the ordinance is hereby made a lien on the premises and if the same
is not paid within 30 days after it is due and payable.

34.10.2 — The town shall have the rights under 38 M.R.S. 3406 to collect sewer service charges as provided in
appendix e.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 February 13,2018

ARTICLE 34.11 — ABATEMENTS (NEW SECTION)

34.11.1 — All requests for sewer abatement shall be forwarded to the superintendent for recommendation and then
to the town manager for decision. The abatement under this section may be granted where the rate payer can
demonstrate that a loss of water did not enter the sewer and was of no fault of the rate payer or if there was an error
in billing.

34.11.2 — This section would permit a onetime sewer abatement at the request of the property owner for
consumption calculated to be four times the average water use for the previous year. This abatement can only be
used once per each property owner.

34.11.3 — This section provides direction on how to estimate the abated water. The estimate shall be based on the
previous four quarters of water consumption if available, and if not available, shall be based on the current flat rate
billing procedure until such time there are two quarters available.

34.11.4 — When an abatement is granted, the town treasurer shall be responsible for taking the necessary steps to
correct the billing. Any abatement being applied can only apply to the specific account being abated. If no prior
history is available on which to base the abatement, an excessive first bill will receive an abatement based on what
the non-metered rate would be for a similar building. After the property has been billed for consumption for the
first year, the abatement shall be reassessed and appropriate charges made.

34.11.5 — Abatements will not be granted for water used for outside uses outside the summer average quarters
unless ratepayers at their own cost install a secondary water meter measuring water used for this purpose. The
town manager can also prorate and abate the first bill of a non-metered flat rate account based on the date of the
sewer entrance permit.

34.11.6 — An abatement request shall only be considered for a maximum six month period. The town manager in
special cases can approve a request outside this timeframe but no longer than a one year period for due cause.

34.11.7 — No abatement request will be reviewed for any billing quarter in which outstanding sewer bills, interest
or penalties remain unpaid, except the current billing quarter will be considered.

34.11.8 — Any ratepayer who uses water in its end manufactured product which is shipped from the ratepayer’s
facility or in the process of manufacturing a product and where the water does not enter into the sewer system,
either in whole or in part, may apply for consideration of an abatement. The superintendent would review the
information provided and the town manager would make the final determination if an abatement is warranted.

ARTICLE 34.12 PROTECTION FROM DAMAGE

34.12.1 — Provides that no person shall damage or tamper with any structure or equipment that is part of the sewer
works and indicates that any person violating this provision shall be subject to arrest under charge of disorderly
conduct.

34.12.1 — This requires a certificate of insurance for liability coverage in an amount established annually by the
town but no less than $1,000,000/$2,000,000 for bodily injury and a $300,000 amount for property damage. The
town also has the right to charge a higher amount for sewer extensions.

ARTICLE 34.13 ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTY

34.13.1 — Provides that any person violating any provision of the ordinance shall be served by the town with
written notice stating the nature of the violation and they also can be prosecuted and punished under the Maine

Criminal Code.

34.13.2 — Permits the town to suspend service when it is necessary to stop an actual discharge which may present
an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of the public.

34.13.3 — Provides that any user who violates the conditions under this section could have his permit revoked.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 February 13, 2018

34.13.4 — Provides that the town must provide notice stating the nature of the violation and within 30 days, a plan
for the correction of the violation shall be submitted to the town by the user.

34.13.5 — This section provides that any user, who causes or allows an unauthorized discharge to enter the POTW,
may be ordered to show cause before the town council. Subsection d. was updated to read council in place of
selectmen.

34.13.6 — Provides that the town has the right to take legal action if necessary for violations.

34.13.7 — Provides that the town can fine a user that has violated an order of the town or violates a requirement in
the ordinance. The monetary amounts were just moved to appendix B.

34.13.8 — Any person who knowingly makes any false statements or representation or certification in any
application, etc. can be fined as established in appendix B.

34.13.9 — The town shall annually publicize in the Lewiston Daily Sun a list of users which were in significant
noncompliance.

Councilor Ward requested 34.13.9 read "publicize in the newspaper" rather than specify a particular business.
ARTICLE 34.14 BOARD OF SEWER APPEALS

34.14.1 — This section provides the composition of the board and was updated to remove the requirement to be a
resident and the requirement that they serve without compensation.

Mrs. Barnes stated 34.14.1 as written conflicts with the rules of the Zoning Board of Appeals, and changes need to
be made to reflect the correct composition and election of the officers.

34.14.2 — This section provides the powers and duties of the board of sewer appeals. This was updated to include
more information regarding variances and defines the terminology “undue hardship”.

34.14.3 — This defines that the board of sewer appeals shall meet the third Monday of the month at 7:00 pm as
necessary. This section also defines the notice to the board and the advertisement process.

34.14.4 — This section describes the appeal procedures and deadlines as well as the fees payable to the town
treasurer which are now found in appendix B.

34.14.5 — This provides the right of a new appeal if the chairman of the board of appeals believes that, owing to a
mistake of law or misunderstanding of fact, an injustice was done.

ARTICLE 34.15 REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES - All previous ordinances regarding the sewer
system will be repealed once this ordinance is signed.

ARTICLE 34.16 SEVERABILITY - The invalidity of any section, clause, or provision of the ordinance shall not
affect the validity of any other part.

ARTICLE 34.17 EFFECTIVE DATE - This will define the date that the ordinance is effective and adopted by the
council.

Councilor Larochelle asked if there was a provision in the ordinance requiring waste transporters, who dump into
the town's treatment plant, to be bonded or have some type of insurance in case damage occurs. Mrs. Hafford
stated that in the town's Septage Management Policy and the Passthrough and Interference rules in this ordinance
allow the town to take legal action, but do not mention insurance requirements. Mrs. Hafford said she would add
language that would cover the responsibilities of waste haulers.

Mrs. Hafford stated that once the sewer ordinance gets passed the fee structure needed to be updated. Mrs. Hafford
said the fees are lower than the average fees other towns charge.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 February 13, 2018

Mr. Leighton stated the workshop was held to answer any questions, and to get any input the council may have
regarding the sewer ordinance before sending it through the process of approval. Councilor Larochelle said this was
better than to try and read through the ordinance during a council meeting,

Ms. Morgan-Alexander stated this sewer ordinance gives the appeals board the tools to do their Jjob.

Councilor Ward asked about storm over flow and the pressure on the system. Councilor ward wanted to know why
it is cost prohibitive to get more out of that resource.

Mr. Leighton stated the sewer system evaluation conducted by Olver and Associates identified the areas with
significant inflow and infiltration, and those areas are what the town has targeted for the sewer bond. Mrs. Hafford
said from an engineering point of view it never pays to look at each individual location, and that is why it is
important to start with the sewer system and fix the larger issues first because it is impossible to find every source
of overflow. Mr. Leighton said the revisions fix some minor deficiencies in the sewer ordinance thus giving the
town more flexibility to take overflow on a case by case basis.

MS4 DISCUSSION

Mr. Leighton presented an update on our MS4 permit. If we are not successful in being removed from the
program, the town is required to issue a Notice of Intent to apply for a new permit by July 1, 2018. On January 19,
2018, the town received a letter pertaining to a report submitted to MDEP regarding the cleaning of catch basins.
We have over 400 catch basins to be cleaned, and we cleaned over 300 by June 2017. The permit schedule does not
correspond with the town's cleaning schedule, thus the review expressed concerns about the town's compliance
with the MS4 program. Mr. Leighton stated he met with representatives from Auburn, Lewiston, and Sabattus to
discuss drafting a joint letter to MDEP about inconsistencies with inspections statewide.

ADJOURNMENT

VOTE (2018-31) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Brunelle moved to adjourn at 8:18 PM.
Order passed - Vote 5-0.

Michelle Foss, Assistant Town Clerk
Date Approved: March 6, 2018



Agenda llem 2018-44C

Draft Minutes — To be approved by the Town Council at its March 6, 2018 Meeting

Normand Albert, At Large 2018

TOWN COUNCIL Kasie Kolbe, District 1 2018
istrict 2

MEETING MINUTES Chstopher Brunelle, Af Large 2010

FEBRUARY 20, 2018 Mark Lunt, District 1 2019

Kris Crawford, District 2, 2019
Fern Larochelle, At Large 2020

CALL TO ORDER. The Chairman, Councilor Ward, called the meeting to order and led the pledge of allegiance to
the flag at 7:00 PM.

ROLL CALL. Members present were Councilors Ward, Albert, Kolbe, Brunelle, Lunt, Crawford, and
Larochelle. Also present were Diane Barnes, Town Manager; and approximately 30 citizens in the audience.

GOOD NEWS & RECOGNITION

PROCLAMATION FOR LISBON HIGH SCHOOL CHEERING TEAM
Nicki Adams, Coach

VOTE (2018-32) Councilor Kolbe, seconded by Councilor Albert moved to adopt the following Proclamation:

WHEREAS, The Lisbon High School Cheering Team have made the Community proud as they
finished first at the Mountain Valley Conference Championship, and

WHEREAS, The Lisbon High School Cheering Team went on to win the Southern Maine Class
C Regional Championship, and

WHEREAS, The Lisbon High School Cheering Team then took second place at the Class C
State Championship scoring 71.6 points over the winning team with 72.7 points, and

WHEREAS, The Lisbon High School Cheering Team has made Lisbon very proud of their
performances at the competitions, and

NOW THEREFORE, we, the Town Council of the Town of Lisbon, wish to congratulate and
thank the Lisbon High School Cheering Team for their fine representation of the Town of
Lisbon at the Mountain Valley Conference Championship, the Southern Maine Class C Regional
Championship, and at the Class C State Championship competition on February 10, 2018.

Order passed - Vote 7-0.
PUBLIC HEARING

A. NEW LIQUOR LICENSE & SPECIAL ENTERTAINMENT PERMIT FOR JASON
LAVERDIERE AND TYSON LAVERDIERE D/B/A FLUX RESTAURANT

The Chairman opened the public hearing. Jason LaVerdiere announced that he would be the new chef at
the new Flux Restaurant located at 12 Main Street in Lisbon Falls. He said they were applying for a
Liquor License and Special Entertainment Permit for their restaurant. He indicated they would be
opening around the first of April. Seeing no further comments, the Chairman closed the public hearing.

B. REPEAL CHAPTER 50, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 1, SECTION 50-45 WINTER PARKING



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 February 20, 2018

The Chairman opened the public hearing. There were no comments. The Chairman closed the public
hearing.

C. AMEND CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE IV, ITINERANT VENDOR ORDINANCE

The Chairman opened the public hearing. There were no comments. The Chairman closed the public
hearing.

D. AMEND CHAPTER 54 BUILDING AND BUILDING REGULATIONS

The Chairman opened the public hearing. There were no comments. The Chairman closed the public
hearing.

E. AMEND CHAPTER 30, ARTICLE III, PARK REGULATIONS,
SECTION 88-5 SPECIAL REGULATIONS

The Chairman opened the public hearing. There were no comments. The Chairman closed the public
hearing.

F. AMEND CHAPTER 46, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 46-147,
SUBSECTION 1, STREET LIGHTING

The Chairman opened the public hearing. There were no comments. The Chairman closed the public
hearing.

G. DINGLEY TIF EXTENSION

The Chairman opened the public hearing. Ms. Steuber reported the Council packet contained the Order and 5-year
TIF Amendment Extension. She said nothing changes within the development plan and everything will go to the
state for approval.

Jim Saffian with Pierce Atwood said two possible changes were previously discussed; one was the simple
extension as it related to Dingley Press and the other potential amendment was to involve some municipal
improvements that the town was considering folding into the TIF as part of the extension. At this point the
decision has been made to hold off on the second part incorporating changes into the Development Plan, but they
can still be made, however; tonight we are simply asking that the TIF be amended only to extend it the 5-year
period.

Councilor Larochelle asked if there was a time limit to do this second part, amending the development plan, for
municipal improvements. If this takes place after April, wouldn’t that mean the amendment would take a year
before it would become effective? Mr. Saffian said the TIF is expiring in March so the first amendment, which is
the 5-year extension, sets that deadline back 5-years. At that point, you can do another amendment to the TIF as it
stands anytime within the next 5-years as long as they are still there and operating. It will go into effect when
Council approves it and the state approves it. He said, in fact, as you are accruing money in your allocation of the
TIF, an amendment would bring in new projects that you could then spend that TIF money on, and you would have
accrued money in the past. Once those projects are in place you could spend any of the money in the TIF reserve
on any of those projects. He said for example, if you approve a sidewalk project a year from now, even TIF money
you are collecting now could be spent on that improvement.

Mrs. Barnes said if another amendment was done and sent in to the state in April, what if the state hasn’t approved
that amendment by the time the town does its commitment. Mr. Saffian said there are a couple of decisions you
would have to make then. You are retaining 50% of the TIF projects and that will still continue. So whether you
have new projects to spend that on or not, you are still sheltering that share of TIF revenue when you do your
commitment; and it’s not in your general fund. Mrs. Barnes said what if they wanted to shelter 100% of the TIF
revenue versus the 50% and that didn’t get approved by the state before our commitment, we would still only get



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 February 20, 2018

the 50% and then the following year we would get 100%. Mr. Saffian said the TIF from 1993 had a starting value
over which you can then create the tax increment and shelter it so there is the starting value and then there is
everything above. The town did an amendment in 1998 for a second project; the way we mechanically set that up
is that the first project gets measured off from the first value and the second project gets measured off from the then
current value. At some point, the town stopped sheltering off from the first value and just sheltered off from the
second value. You are allowed to do that; you are allowed the discretion to not shelter when you could have
sheltered. As it stands, the TIF allows you without any amendments to shelter 100% from the lowest value. He
said you could start retaining that and what you could spend it on is either what is already approved or what you in
the future amend to add for additional projects. He said you can already be sheltering everything over the second
project, first project, or nothing on your share and that’s an annual decision the Council can make. As you amend
your TIF to list additional eligible projects, you are not obligated to spend money on any of them, they are just
eligible. The decision to actually spend TIF money on them would be made by the Council; it’s a separate Council
decision on what to spend the money on when.

Councilor Ward mentioned there was a fine line to balance here; our support for our business partner and
determining what potential benefits this means to the town. He said too many changes so quickly without the time
to explore all the potential pieces could be a disservice to the town for a second time in two years. That said, he
said, the Council will not be doing anything with the potential Development Plan changes, holding onto that
dialogue for a future discussion, so we can meet the March 31 deadline, which is our intent tonight so we can move
forward on this item.

Seeing no further comments, the Chairman closed the public hearing.
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION & RESPONSE FOR AGENDA ITEMS-NONE

CONSENT AGENDA

VOTE (2018-33) Councilor Kolbe, seconded by Councilor Lunt moved to approve the Municipal Accounts
Payable & Payroll Warrants #89 for $15,343.80, #90 for $181,457.32, 491 for $17,941.26, #92 for $8,241.25, #93
for $200086.84, and the School Accounts Payable and Payroll Warrants, #1041 for $1,573.36, #1042 for
$328,990.47, #1043 for $320,027.06, #1044 for $13,252.20, #22 for $1 1,169.57, #1815 for $102,668.43, along
with the Minutes of February 6 and workshop minutes of February 20, 2018, and to approve the Liquor License
and Special Entertainment Permit for the LaVerdiere's d/b/a the Flux Restaurant, and set a public hearing for the
Railroad Restaurant's Special Entertainment Permit. Order passed - Vote 7-0.

COUNCIL ORDERS, ORDINANCES, & RESOLUTIONS
DINGLEY TIF EXTENSION

VOTE (2018-34) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Brunelle moved to amend the proposed Third
Amendment to the Dingley Press TIF District and Development Program presented to Town Council by deleting the
proposed changes to the Town’s Municipal Investment Plan in the Development Program but to simply retain the 5-
year extension to the TIF and adopt the following order:

AN ORDER Providing for: Third Amendment to the Town’s Dingley Press Municipal
Development and Tax Increment Financing District and Related Development Program

WHEREAS, in 1993 and 1997, the Town, acting through Town Meeting, and in 2011, acting
through its Town Council, previously designated and then amended the Town’s Dingley Press
Municipal Development and Tax Increment Financing District (as amended, the “Original
District”) and related Development Program (as amended, the “Original Development Program”);
and

WHEREAS, the Town is authorized pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised
Statutes, as amended, to adopt an amendment to the Original District and the Original
Development Program; and



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 February 20, 2018

WHEREAS, there is and continues to be a need to encourage the expansion, improvement and
attraction of manufacturing, industrial and commercial, businesses in the Town, and to provide
continuing employment opportunities for the citizens of the Town and the surrounding region, to
improve and broaden the tax base of the Town, and to improve the general economy and general
business development climate of the Town, the surrounding region and the State of Maine; and

WHEREAS, adopting and implementing the proposed third amendment to the District and the
Development Program will help to provide continued employment opportunities for the citizens of
the Town and the surrounding region and will help the Town to continue the pursuit of business
development in the Town and the region; and

WHEREAS, the Town has held a public hearing on the proposed third amendment to the District
and the Development Program in accordance with the requirements of 30-A MRSA §5226(1)
upon at least ten (10) days prior notice published in a newspaper of general circulation within the
Town; and, :

WHEREAS, the Town desires to adopt the proposed third amendment to the District and the
Development Program presented to the Town Council this day; and,

WHEREAS, it is expected that the Commissioner of the Maine Department of Economic and
Community Development (“DECD”) will approve the adoption of the above-described third
amendment;

NOW THEREFORE, the Town Council hereby Orders as follows:
1. The Town Council hereby finds and determines that;

(a) Pursuant to Title 30-A M.R.S.A. Section 5226(5) pertaining to tax increment financing
(TIF) district and development program amendments, the third amendment to the Original
District does not result in the District being out of compliance with any of the conditions of
30-A M.R.S.A. Section 5223(3) which pertain to the percentage of area within the District
that is suitable for commercial use, the TIF acreage caps for single TIF districts and for all
TIF districts in the Town, and the total TIF district assessed valuation cap;

(b) Adoption and implementation of the third amendment to the District and the
Development Program will generate substantial economic benefits for the Town and its
residents, including employment opportunities, broadened and improved tax base and
economic stimulus, and therefore constitute a good and valid public purpose and will
contribute to the economic growth or well-being of the inhabitants of the Town or to the
betterment of the health, welfare or safety of the inhabitants of the Town; and

(¢) The Town Council has considered all evidence presented to it with regard to any
adverse economic effect on or detriment to any existing business and has found and
determined that adoption and implementation of the third amendment to the District and the
Development Program will not result in a substantial detriment to any existing business in
the Town, and any adverse economic effect of the third amendment to the District and the
Development Program on any existing business in the Town is outweighed by the
contributions expected to be made by the projects and improvements described in the third
amendment to the District and the Development Program to the economic growth or well-
being of the Town or to the betterment of the health, welfare or safety of the inhabitants of
the Town.

2. Pursuant to Chapter 206 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes, as amended, the Town
Council hereby adopts the third amendment to the District (the “Amended District”) and the
Development Program (the “Amended Development Program”) presented to the Town Council.

3. The foregoing adoption of the Amended District and the Amended Development Program shall
automatically become final and shall take full force and effect upon receipt by the Town of
approval of the Amended District and the Amended Development Program by the Commissioner



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 February 20, 2018

of the State of Maine Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD), without
requirement of any further action by the Town, the Town Council, or any other party.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. §5227, the percentage of the increased assessed
value to be retained as captured assessed value in the Amended District and the term of said
Amended District is confirmed as set forth in the Amended Development Program.

5.The Town Manager be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered and directed to submit the
Amended District and the Amended Development Program to the Commissioner of DECD for
review and approval, pursuant to the requirements of 30-A M.R.S.A. §5226(2). The Town
Manager is further authorized, at his discretion from time to time, to make such revisions to the
Amended District and the Amended Development Program or to the scope, cost or description of
the Town TIF Projects to be financed with the portion of tax increment revenues generated by the
District and retained by the Town as described in the Development Program as the Town Manager
deems reasonably necessary or convenient in order to facilitate the process for review and
approval by DECD, or for any other reason so long as such revisions are not inconsistent with
these resolutions or the basic structure and intent of the Amended District and the Amended
Development Program.

6. This Order shall take effect immediately upon adoption.
Order passed - Vote 7-0.

AUTHORIZATION FOR FIRE DEPARTMENT
TO APPLY FOR THE FIRE HOUSE SUBS PUBLIC SAFETY GRANT

INTRODUCTION: The Fire Department reports the application process is now open for the Fire House Subs
Foundation. The deadline is March 1*. They would like to apply for this to try to get swift water rescue equipment
that Lisbon had to cut but is needed. This is a non-matching type of grant and it will pay 100% of the cost of the
equipment estimated at $11,372.33.

VOTE (2018-35) Councilor Brunelle, seconded by Councilor Crawford moved to authorize the Fire Department
to apply for the Fire House Subs Public Safety Grant and accept the funds for water rescue equipment for the Town
of Lisbon. Order passed - Vote 7-0.

HIGH DENSITY ROLLER SHELVING -
ORDER SHELF REINFORCEMENTS & BOOK SUPPORTS

INTRODUCTION: Mrs. Lycette reported that Dan Clifford from Donnegan Systems stopped by to see
how the roller shelving was working out. She showed him how the heavy books were bending the shelving and
he suggested shelf supports just like the ones used for the shelving for boxes. They discussed the end stops for book
supports that come with the system as previously quoted; however, he suggested going with a different method,
which will serve the town better and save money so the Town Clerk is recommending the town purchase movable
magnetic end stops and shelf reinforcements.

See quote for $494 for book supports and shelf reinforcements, plus shipping. Shipping is expected to be around 75
pounds or about $150+/-. The project was budgeted for $30,000. The bid was accepted for $22,720. We spent
$3,100 for box removal and replacement, along with $232.66 for storage fees. The balance available is $3,947.34.
More than enough to cover the $700 for reinforcements and book supports.

VOTE (2018-36) Councilor Brunelle, seconded by Councilor Crawford moved to authorize the purchase for
shelf reinforcements and magnetic book supports from Donnegan Systems for 494.00 plus shipping. Order passed
- Yote 7-0.

REPEAL CHAPTER 50, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 1,
SECTION 50-45 WINTER PARKING
Final Reading



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 February 20, 2018

VOTE (2018-37) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Brunelle moved to repeal Chapter 50 Article II,
Division 1, Section 50-45 as follows:

(Code 1983, § 9-106)

State Law reference— Snow removal, 29-A M.R.S.A. § 2069.

Roll Call Vote: Yeas — Albert, Lunt, Crawford, Larochelle, Ward, Brunelle, and Kolbe. Nays - None.
Order passed - Vote 7-0.

AMEND CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE IV, ITINERANT VENDOR ORDINANCE
Final Reading

VOTE (2018-38) Councilor Larochelle, seconded by Councilor Albert moved to amend Chapter 10, Article IV,
Itinerant Vendors Ordinance as follows:

ARTICLE 1V. - ITINERANT VENDORS
Footnotes:
e () =

Cross reference— Streets, sidewalks and other public places, ch. 46.
State Law reference— Itinerant vendors, 32 M.R.S.A. § 4681 et seq.

Sec. 10-251. - License required.

No person shall offer for sale any food, drink or merchandise as an itinerant vendor without first
obtaining a license from the town council. Landowners offering space for charge for itinerant
vendors must obtain a license for the facility which will cover the facility. This pertains to
vehicles, pushcarts, temporary stands or other types of distribution units. Promoters of carnivals,
festivals or flea markets shall obtain a license for the event which will cover all vendors. Eerthe

h O

-0 fats or-n a¥a = h dn n-oBan
O et d d

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 5-15-2007, § 2007-068; C.M. of 3-1-2016, V. 2016-55)

Sec. 10-251.5 - Definitions

Itinerant vendor is defined as any person who engages in a temporary business of selling food,
drink or merchandise within the Town of Lisbon. other than at the person’s permanent place of
business or place of legal voting residence.

Flea market is defined as an occasional or periodic market held in an open area or within a
structure where property owners offer space for charge to individuals/eroups to sell eoods for sale
to the public and the event is held more than seven (7) days in any twelve-month period.




Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 February 20, 2018

Sec. 10-252. - Police department review.

Before receiving a license, the police department will certify that the vendor will not create safety
problems for either traffic or pedestrians and that information on file does not indicate that the
applicant is a person of bad moral character.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18) Sec. 10-253. - Term of license; fee.
(a) Every license issued under this article shall be issued only for the following terms, subject to
the corresponding fee.

Application fees shall be:

' Temporary stands (90 $75.00
days or less)
|
} 6 months itinerant $150.00
i vendor 100.00
|
f
12 months itinerant $200
! vendor 150.00
l
I 1 week carmvals and 200.00
festivals
: 12-month outdoor flea 100.00
| market
i
i 12 ind
| month indoor flea 200.00
market
“, Public records checks 50.00
\
? Junleard license 100-00
i

(b) Municipal organizations or agencies are exempt from fees in this section.

(c) The town €council may waive fees for charitable and non-profit organizations registered
with the Secretary of State and in compliance with the Internal Revenue Service Code Section
501.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; Sel. Ord. of 2-18-2003, § 5.158; Sel. Ord. of 6-21-05, § 5.016; C.M.
of 7-1-2014, V. 2014-118; C.M. of 7-7-2015, V. 2015-192; C.M. of 3-1-2016, V. 2016-55)

Sec. 10-254. - Food.
Any vendor serving food shall be considered a victualer and shall be licensed under, and comply
with, the provisions of Article V, Victualers.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 8)

Sec. 10-255. - Revocation of license.

Any license issued under this article may be revoked by the town council after notice and hearing
as provided in 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3814.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 5-15-2007, § 2007-068)



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 February 20, 2018

Sec. 10-256. - Location,

(a) No itinerant vendor may occupy an area larger than 144 square feet. The town council may,
after public hearing, allow for a larger area to be occupied provided the vendor is located in a
private lot and within a zone allowing the proposed use. No vendor may operate within 200 feet,
measured by a direct line, of any establishment doing business at a fixed location, which sells the
same or similar food or merchandise being sold by the vendor. In addition, no vendor may operate
within 100 feet, measured by a direct line, of any other vendor who sells the same or similar food
or merchandise. Vendors authorized to participate in carnivals, festivals, mass gatherings or flea
markets shall be exempt from this section.

(b) A full description of the location where the peddling is to be carried out and a letter of
agreement from the owner of record of the property where the applicant will be located shall be
submitted.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 9-5-2006, § 2006-28)

Sec. 10-257. - Sanitation.

Each vendor shall provide waste receptacles for the use of customers, shall keep the immediate
area free of litter, and will provide for the disposal of such waste.

(T-M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18)

Sec. 10-258. - Public hearing.

The initial license under this article shall be issued by the town council after public hearing. The
town council may delegate authority to the clerk to issue temporary licenses after meeting all
requirements prior to a public hearing. Renewal licenses may be issued by the town council
without subsequent public hearing, except that the town council shall have the authority to require
a public hearing at the request of the applicant or in circumstances where the town council feels a
public hearing would produce information relevant to the license renewal.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 5-15-2007, § 2007-068)

Sec. 10-259. - Amendments.

The town council shall have the further power to adjust the fees and license requirements of this
article as appropriate after public hearing.

(T.M. of 5-20-1996, art. 18; T.M. of 5-15-2007, § 2007-068)
Sec. 10-260. — Violation: penalties.

In addition to revocation or suspension of an itinerant vendor’s license as provided in section 10-
255, the violation of any provision of this article shall be punished by a fine of not less than
$250.00 nor more than $1500.00 for each offense. plus costs of prosecution includine but not
limited to attorney’s fees. Each act of violation and every day upon which any such violation shall
occur shall constitute a separate offense. Any violation of this article or of any condition or
requirement adopted pursuant to these provisions may be restrained, corrected, or abated. as the
case may be. by injunction or other appropriate proceedings as allowed by state law. All fines and

penalties, together with costs of prosecution of violations, shall be recovered for the benefit of the

town.

Sec. 10-261. - Enforcement.

This article shall be enforced by the Lisbon Police Chief, the Lisbon Codes Enforcement Officer.
their designees, or other appropriate staff member, including legal counsel. for the town. Notice of
violations by itinerant vendors of other provisions of the Lishon Code of Ordinances shall be
provided to the police chief, town council. and town attorney.

Secs. 10-260-260—10-290. - Reserved.




Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 February 20, 2018

Roll Call Vote: Yeas — Albert, Lunt, Crawford, Larochelle, Ward, Brunelle, and Kolbe. Nays - None.
Order passed - Vote 7-0.

AMEND CHAPTER 54 BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS
Final Reading

VOTE (2018-39) Councilor Brunelle, seconded by Councilor Crawford moved to amend Chapter 54 Buildings
and Building Regulations as follows:

Chapter 54 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 1

Footnotes:

el Y

Cross reference— Manufactured housing, mobile homes and trailers, ch. 22; sanitary sewers, ch.
34; solid waste transfer and recycling, ch. 38; streets, sidewalks and other public places, ch. 46;
floods, ch. 58; site plans, ch. 62; subdivisions, ch. 66; zoning, ch. 70, town council rules, regulations
and policies for sanitary sewers, ch. 94; town council rules, regulations and policies for solid waste
transfer and recycling, ch. 98.

State Law reference— Authority to adopt technical codes by reference, etc., 30-A M.R.S.A. §
3003; board of appeals, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2691.

ARTICLE L. - IN GENERAL

Secs. 54-1—54-30. - Reserved.

ARTICLE II. - BUILDING CODE
Footnotes:

State Law reference— Authority to adopt building code by reference, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3003;
regulation of buildings, 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4101 et seq., Definitions, 10 M.R.S.A. § 9721, Technical

Building Codes and Standards Board, 10 M.R.S.A. § 9722,

Sec. 54-31. - Adoption.

In accordance with 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3003, as the same may be amended from time to time, the
Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code and its regulated elements theInternational Building

ada 00 2¥atd 3

Ceouneil-Ine are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference herein,

3 ifed, i i tele—as the minimum standards for the construction,
alteration, addition, repair, removal, demolition, use, location, occupancy and maintenance of all
buildings and structures, both existing and proposed, located within the Town of Lisbon.

(T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 7)



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 10 February 20, 2018




February 20, 2018

Page 11

Town Council Meeting Minutes




Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 12 February 20, 2018




Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 13 February 20, 2018




Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 14 February 20, 2018

Sec. 54-35. - Standards mandatory.

Except as otherwise expressly provided, all general provisions of this article and the codes
incorporated herein are mandatory. Exceptions to general prohibitions or requirements shall be
narrowly construed and narrowly applied. Any person asserting that failure to comply with a general
prohibition or requirement-is authorized by an exception to such general prohibition or requirement
shall bear the burden of proof as to such exception.

(T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 7)
Sec. 54-36. - Other code and statutory provisions.

Where any other provisions of this Code contain more stringent requirements, compliance with the
more stringent requirements shall be required. Where approval of the fire chief, or any other
specified town official is required by any provision of this Code as to the subject matter of the permit
application, such approval shall be a condition precedent to issuance of the permit under this article.
Whenever there is an application for a permit for any structure, other than a single or two-family
dwelling, such permit shall not be issued without the written certificate of the fire chief or his
authorized representative that the work described is in compliance with other requirement of this
Code or of state law as to fire prevention or exiting.

(T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 7)°



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 15 February 20, 2018

Sec. 54-37. - Violations.

a 3

ten. Violation of any provision of this article shall
constitute a civil violation punishable by a fine not exceeding $100.00 for each offense. Each day
that a violation continues shall be treated as a separate offense. All fines collected shall inure to
the town.

(T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 7)

Sec. 54-38. - Municipal plumbing inspection and permit fees.

; the-town-shall-charge-a-$10-00-base fee
Mumbiﬂ%mmﬁ-ﬂﬂd—ﬂ}e—feuﬁ%ag Ffees are established for plumbing permits in accordance

with the Maine State Plumbing/Subsurface Wastewater Disposal System Permit Fee Schedule.

(T.M. of 11-3-2005, art. 7)

Secs. 54-39—54-70. - Reserved.

Roll Call Vote: Yeas — Albert, Lunt, Crawford, Larochelle, Ward, Brunelle, and Kolbe. Nays - None.
Order passed - Vote 7-0.

AMEND CHAPTER 30, ARTICLE III, PARK REGULATIONS,
SECTION 88-5 SPECIAL REGULATIONS
Final Reading

VOTE (2018-40) Councilor Crawford, seconded by Councilor Lunt moved to adopt the amendment to
Chapter 30, Article I1I, Section 88.5 as presented and to insert security officer as follows:

Sec. 30-88.5. - Special regulations.
(@ Use of parks, gardens and trails for events requires a permit. Permit applications are
available at the town clerk's office.

(b)  Smoking is not allowed in any park.

(¢)  Alcohol possession or use is not allowed in any park. Any exception to this rule must be
approved in advance by the town council and shall be limited to:

(1) special public events or public gatherings sponsored by a charitable, nonprofit
organization or civic group in which alcohol is served by a licensed establishment with an
off-premise catering license under Title 28-A M.R.S.A. § 1052,

(2) private events or private gatherings sponsored by an individual person or persons, such

as a wedding. in which alcohol is served by a licensed establishment with an off-premise

catering license under Title 28-A M.R.S.A. § 1052.

The Town Council may require, as a condition of allowing alcohol at a gathering or event under
this section, that a security officer or police officer be present at the expense of the applicant,

(d) Dogs are allowed in parks but only on a leash as per section 6-31 and waste removal is
required as per section 6-34.

(¢) No sign advertising any business or commercial enterprise or activity or any political sign,
shall be allowed on park, garden or trail property. Signs for a limited time and for a limited
purpose of advertising community events or events sponsored by non-profit agencies may be
permitted with the issuance of a permit as provided under section 91-36.

(f) No peddling, soliciting or commercial enterprise is permitted to conduct business on Beaver
Park property.

(2) Metal detectors are prohibited on Beaver Park property.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 16

February 20, 2018

(T.M. of 12-9-2003, art. 5; T.M. of 10-16-2007, § 2007-165A; C.M. of 10-7-2014, V. 2014-202;

C.M. of 3-1-2016, V. 2016-56)

Roll Call Vote: Yeas — Albert, Lunt, Crawford, Larochelle, Ward, Brunelle, and Kolbe. Nays - None.

Order passed - Vote 7-0.

AMEND CHAPTER 46 ARTICLE VI, SECTION 46-147
SUBSECTION 1, STREET LIGHTING
Final Reading

VOTE (2018-41) Councilor Albert, seconded by Councilor Larochelle moved to amend Chapter 46 Article VI

Street Lighting Section 46-147 Subsection 1 as follows:

Sec. 46-147. - Street light placement standards.

Street light placement within public right-of-ways shall conform to the following standards as

feasible given utility pole spacing and light pole spacing:

(1)  Village zone. For any roadway within the Village Area Zone indicated on the street light

service map in appendix B*;

a. One streetlight shall be located at all roadway intersections and mid-block locations at a
spacing interval of approximately 220 feet as feasible given existing utility pole and light
pole spacing.

b. Street segments less than 350 feet in length shall only be lit at roadway intersections and
dead ends.

¢. Ornamental and streetscape lighting may be used to light roadways where sidewalks are
present and highlight public building facades and public areas as determined. Ornamental
lighting currently serves to light the public right-of-way for portions of Main Street, Village
Street, Webster Street, and a short distance of Route 196 (Lisbon Street). If ornamental
lighting is the standard thas then all other lighting will be removed from poles unless it is
determined by the town engineer, public safety (police, fire) and public works department
determine the need exists.

d. There are many varied potential street lighting needs to be served in the Village Zone
because it encompasses the most diverse areas of town in building style. density, setback
variances and public infrastructure availability. If recommended by the planning board and
approved by the town council, the town may accept a street lightine plan in the Village
Zone that is not consistent with all standards in this article if the street lighting plan meets
the overall intent of this article, seeks to maintain public safety and will provide an
economic and aesthetic benefit to the town beyond its cost for maintenance.

Roll Call Vote: Yeas — Albert, Lunt, Crawford, Larochelle, Ward, Brunelle, and Kolbe. Nays - None.

Order passed - Vote 7-0.
OTHER BUSINESS

A. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. School: Councilor Albert reported the School Committee has authorized the design piece for the potential

Performing Arts Center using the existing structure and they are shoring up their final budget.

2.Planning: Councilor Ward reported the Planning recently accepted an application from Rusty’s Lantern. They
are holding the medical marijuana application while the applicant looks for an alternative site. The Contracted

Town Planner and CEO and board are reviewing survey information at their next meeting,.

3. Water Commission: Councilor Brunelle reported the Water Commission met prior to the rate increase hearing.
The new rate will go into effect in April. The filter plant #2 vessel will be back online March 6. The Water



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 17 February 20, 2018

Commission met at the Capitol to discuss a charter change to correct the date elected officials take office. He
indicated there was a position open at the Water Department.

4.LDC: Councilor Larochelle reported they met and discussed some short term goals. It was well attended. They
are looking at starting with improvements to the streetscape and visuals downtowns. The next meeting will be
their organizational meeting.

5. Conservation Commission: Councilor Ward indicated that they would be working on their goals.

6. Recreation: Councilor Kolbe said she had nothing to report.

7.County Budget: Councilor Ward reported the bill came in with a $60,000 increase.

8. Library: Councilor Lunt reported they are working on their new goals for next year. They are recovering from
the bust pipes. They lost some book storage space and had to move the magazines.

B. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT
Mrs. Barnes reported she was working with the department heads on their budgets. We have gone over their goals
for the upcoming year. She indicated the Library is looking into high density shelving for books like the ones

purchased last year for the vault,

E: DEPARTMENT HEAD WRITTEN REPORTS — NO COMMENTS

APPOINTMENTS - NONE

COUNCILOR COMMUNICATIONS

Councilor Albert announced the Lisbon Hockey Team plays in Auburn against EL. All are welcome to support the
team. Councilor Ward said Austin’s record at 100 goals would be equivalent to 1,000 points in basketball. Since
we are not known for hockey in Lisbon here, this is quite an accomplishment for a junior in high school.

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION FOR NEW ITEMS - NONE

EXECUTIVE SESSION

VOTE (2018-42) Councilor Crawford, seconded by Councilor Lunt moved to go into Executive Session at 7:35
PM per 1 MRSA Section 405405 (6) (A) Personnel Matters. Order passed — Vote 7-0.

The Council came out of executive session at 8:35 PM and the meeting resumed.
ADJOURNMENT

VOTE (2018-43) Councilor Brunelle, seconded by Councilor Albert moved to adjourn at 8:35 PM. Order
passed - Vote 7-0.

Twila D. Lycette, Council Secretary
Town Clerk, Lifetime CCM/MMC
Date Approved: March 6, 2018



Agenda Item 2018-44C

Normand Albert, At Large 2018

WN Kasie Kolbe, District 1 2018
TO COUNCIL Allen Ward, District 2 2018
WORKSHOP Christopher Brunelle, At Large 2019
MEETING MINUTES Mark Lunt, District 1 2019
Kris Crawford, District 2, 2019

FEBRUARY 27,2018 Fern Larochelle, At Large 2020

CALL TO ORDER. The Chairman, Allen Ward, called the meeting to order at 6:01PM.

ROLL CALL. Members present were Councilors Ward, Kolbe, Larochelle, Brunelle, Crawford, and Lunt. Also
present were Diane Barnes, Town Manager; Tracey Steuber, Economic and Community Development Director/
Moxie Festival Coordinator; Ross Cunningham, Positive Change Lisbon; Mark Stevens, Park and Recreation
Director; 7 members of the Moxie Festival Committee, and 1 citizen.

MOXIE FESTIVAL DISCUSSION

Ms. Tracey Steuber, Moxie Festival Coordinator, presented an overview of the Moxie Festival. Ms. Steuber stated
the festival takes all year to plan, and the schedule really gets hectic in April when the committee begins
coordinating with businesses, processing vendor applications, souvenirs, etc...

Councilor Ward asked if there were other resources the town could use as a template to do better. Councilor Ward
stated that the staff had so much time invested in the festival and asked why the economic and community
development director was involved in the festival. Ms. Steuber stated she had been hired by the town of Lisbon in
2013, and was asked at that time to be the coordinator for the Moxie Festival, as a part of her job. Ms. Steuber said
she became the main contact between the town, the local businesses, and the volunteers. She said the ultimate goal
was to enable the festival committee to be a non-profit entity with its own by-laws. However, the committee would
still need a liaison with the town due to the fact that the town is ultimately responsible for the festival and needs to
have approval over certain budgetary items such as insurance and various permits required.

Ms. Steuber stated the volunteers work hard throughout the year, and as with any volunteer program, they seem to
be the same people every year. The schedule is such that they are maxed out and need more volunteers as the
festival has grown larger.

Councilor Larochelle asked to hear thoughts from the moxie festival committee about where the festival is today
and where it is going.

Several committee members said the Moxie Festival is the biggest event of the year for Lisbon. Members stated the
festival brings our community together, not only with each other and their families, but with people from all over
the world. Many said the festival has really put Lisbon "on the map". Jonathon Jones recalled a trip to London
where he learned, in a conversation, that someone had heard of the festival. Councilor Kolbe stated most of the kids
at the Whoopie Pie contest were from away. Two were from other countries. Ms. Steuber said the Hampton Inn
located in Lewiston promoted the Moxie Festival and offered a discount rate, which helped to spread the word to
travelers staying in Maine. Deb Wagner said the festival has evolved in a good way offering more and more events
each year.

Ross Cunningham stated no one could really answer the question of why the town puts on the moxie festival. Mr.
Cunningham said he would like to see a stronger mission statement from the committee. Councilor Kolbe agreed,
stating she grew up in Lisbon and the festival was always a part of life in the town. She said until she got involved
with the festival she never really thought about why the town put on the festival; it just happened.

Several members of the committee stated that logistics was a challenge. The festival is so spread out that some of
the patrons miss out on some of the events or do not know where to go. Ms. Steuber stated Marcea Crawford was
coordinating the "Art Walk", a new event for the next festival. The "Art Walk" would provide a connection



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 February 27, 2018

between the vendors and the MTM. Ms. Steuber also mentioned that Miss Crawford was a valuable asset to the
committee and would be getting college credit for her help with the festival planning.

Councilor Larochelle said the businesses really benefit from the festival, however they do not understand from
where the Moxie Festival gets its budgetary backing. The business owner, when asked for a donation, always
assumes the town pays for the festival via tax revenues. Councilor Larochelle stated that businesses also worry
about vendors setting up in their storefronts. Ms. Steuber stated that she, along with the Vendor Coordinator; visit
with all the local business owners to discuss the festival schedule and what their plans are for the event. No vendors
will be placed where it may interfere with the operation of those businesses wishing to remain open during the
festival. Councilor Larochelle said it would be nice to see the businesses take ownership of the downtown area
events.

Councilor Larochelle said a lot of things have changed legally over the past few years, and that has made it harder
for businesses to get more involved. One example was the parade. In the past, if a business or individual wanted to
join the parade, they could. Now; proof of insurance is required. Ms. Steuber agreed stating unfortunate societal
changes have made more required permits and insurance increases necessary to protect both the event participants
and those enjoying the festival.

Mr. Cunningham stated from the budget report is looked like the festival made money, yet vendors and non profits
are charged fees, and monies were received from tax revenue. Mr. Cunningham said, from an imaging point of
view, the festival made a bunch of money. Ms. Steuber said the money that is made from the festival pays for the
upcoming festival. Ms. Steuber explained various expenses involved with the festival that must be met before the
event takes place. Ms. Steuber also stated that some of the parade participants are paid to appear in the parade. This
is how some of the Non-Profits earn money for their charities. She said the festival also relied a great deal on the
Coca Cola sponsorship, and new expenses arise as the festival grows larger. She said she had developed a job
description with Mrs. Barnes for an assistant event coordinator to help with the festival in the future. She had
reached out to colleges to try and hire a student to help alleviate expenses and give a student a chance to earn
college credit while working the festival. Ms. Steuber also explained that most festivals are not run by the
presiding towns. Many festivals are either run by a local Chamber of Commerce or involved in the Main Street
Program. Mrs. Steuber said these programs work through large business sponsorships, such as local Hospitals or
Hotels. Lisbon does not have these resources.

Councilor Ward stated he would like the committee to embrace non-profits and encourage more participation and
ideas from them. Councilor Ward stated non-profits were the reason the festival is so successful today, as evident
in the volunteers today.

Councilor Ward asked what the mission statement was for the festival. Ms. Steuber stated the festival not only
helped bring the community together, but helped to introduce the assets of Lisbon, such as Beaver Park to festival
goers, and to demonstrate what a wonderful place Lisbon is to live or conduct business.

Councilor Ward said roughly 40,000 people attend the festival. Councilor Ward asked how much money the
festival brings to local businesses. Ms. Steuber stated businesses say it is the biggest day of the year for them. In
fact, many businesses are reaching out to the town for other events held throughout the year due to the success of
the moxie festival.

Councilor Larochelle asked if the committee could see having an event manager coordinate the festival. Mrs.
Wagner said that no one person can do all that the festival requires and anyone new would have to work closely
with the committee. The festival has become so large that it can no longer be run by volunteers alone. Mr. Jones
stated the amounts of hours required as the festival nears are equivalent to a second job. Several committee
members stated that Ms. Steuber's wealth of knowledge was indispensible to the committee, and they would like to
keep working with her as a liaison to the town. The committee also stated they would like to have a member of the
Council at the monthly meetings.

Councilor Ward conveyed an observation from Councilor Albert stating that what was discussed at this meeting
was for the festival budget 2 years from now in an attempt to keep from having to discuss last minutes changes to
next year's festival budget. Mrs. Barnes said that this year's budget already included the request for an event
manager to help Ms. Steuber. Councilor Ward asked what levels of resources were required. Ms. Steuber stated that
20 hours a week would work from April up to the festival. The Manager would be dealing with the media, graphic
design, vendor applications, and mailings, and all the various administration activities regarding the festival.



Town Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 February 27, 2018

Councilor Ward asked the committee to submit a list of goals for the festival and encouraged the Committee to
continue open communications with the Town Council.

ADJOURNMENT

Seeing no other comments, Councilor Ward adjourned the workshop at 8:18 PM.

Michelle Foss, Assistant Town Clerk
Date Approved: March 6, 2018



Agenda Item 2018-44D

SPECIAL ENTERTAINMENT APPLICATION

License Type: _l $100 Application Fee
___ $50 Public Records Checks per name
——_ 380 Advertisement Fee For First Time Liquor License Applicants Only

***NOTE: Must Attach State Liquor License Application

Owner&_ﬁdfﬁ '#/é:mm Home Phone: 39 3 L6 g E/{_S@W

Email Address: Cell Phone:

Owner’s Home Address: 43&5 & AZM;{ ﬁgg; [( éol ?,2 ﬁté&u ﬁd P

Residence(s) for last five years: S

Name of Business: MM@L Business Phone: Egs'zz YA g
Location of Business: éﬁ S Z&Sérﬂ: é A« LL.Séo;,. Mr M‘S

List Applicant / Partners / Corporate Officers:

Name:gch4r€ ”C- En.S | Name: | Name:
A .| Address: | Address:
| Town/State: | Town/State:
| Birthdate: | Birth date:

Has applicant’s business license ever been revoked: ﬂﬂ o

If so, why?

Has any applicant / partner / corporate officer ever been convicted of a felony? M o

If so, describe specific circumstances

Does the establishment have a valid liquor license? lj eS If so, when does it expire?

I, (—;C. MAE &Q@M (name), o inesA” (title) is
authorized to sign on behalf of said business, and further declare that the forgoing information is
accurate and true to the best of my knowledge and belief, and that the applicant does hereby

acknowledge a public records check may be conducted.
Date: & E’l 3




Business Name:

INSPECTION REQUIRED BELOW

Notice of Compliance (By Selectmen’s Request): I, Dennis Douglass, Code Enforcement Officer for the Town of
Lisbon hereby certify 1 have inspected the above establishment and found the premises to be in compliance with

applicable life safety codes.
Signature://_jm Date: Z/ / 8—/ £S5
—_— /.4:’/ / /

NOTE: State Liquor License Application must be completed and attached to this
- Special Entertainment Application

APPLICANT MUST HAVE COMPLETED TO HERE BEFORE FILING

For Office Use Only
ﬁtbh‘c Records Check Completed.

Notice of Compliance (By Selectmen’s Request): I, Marc Hagan, Police Chief hereby certify I have reviewed the
application and public records check and recommend application for licensing.

Signature: /[f/M ///f{,% / Date: A / Z { / ( y

INFORMATION

The Councilors are the Municipal Licensing Board. All Special Entertainment application requires a public hearing each
time. Public records checks can take up to three or more weeks to process. Complete applications contain the CEQ and
Police Chief signatures. Councilors meet on the first and third Tuesdays of the month. Complete application and fees

paid are required prior to the Council meeting. Meetings are held at the Town Hall at 7:00 PM in the conference room.

SUGGESTED CONTACTS:

353-3000 Ext 112... Town Clerk 624-9693 ......... State Sales Tax Division
353-3007............. Town Office Fax 624-7736.......... Bureau of Corporations

353-3000 Ext 111... Deputy Code Enforcement Officer 624-7220.......... Bureau of Alcohol Beverages
353-2500............. Police Department 287-3841.......... Agriculture Dept— Bakery Licenses
333-6601 Ext 1154..Health Officer 624-6550.......... Marine Resources

287-5671............. State Health Inspection Dept. 1-800-872-3838..Business Answers



" Department of Public Safety Liquor
Division

Promise by any person that he or she can expedite a liquor
license through influence should be completely disregarded.

To avoid possible financial loss an applicant, or
praspective applicant, should consult with the Division before
meking any subsizntial invesiment in an esteblishment thm
now is, or may be, attended by a liquor license.

Licensing & lnspectioh

BUREAU USE ONLY
License No. Assigned:

Class:

Deposit Date:

Amt Deposited:

PRESENT LICENSE EXPIRES 2 - /4 ~/2

INDICATE TYPE OF PRIVILEGE: < MALT

i RESTAURANT (Class LILIILIV)
i HOTEL-OPTIONAL FOOD (Class I-A)
i CLASS A LOUNGE" (Class X)

< CLUB (Class V)

i TAVERN (ClassIV)

< SPIRITUOUS <& VINOUS
INDICATE TYPE OF LICENSE:

X RESTAURANT/LOUNGE (Class XI)

<5 HOTEL (Class LILIILIV)

<5 CLUB-ON PREMISE CATERING (Class I)
«5 GOLF CLUB (Class LILIILIV)

< OTHER:

REFER TO PAGE 3 FOR FEE SCHEDULE
ALLL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED IN FULL

1 APPLICANT(S) —~(Sole :Znﬂnr , Corparation, Limited Lisbility 7..
d%ﬁﬂ/f[l’ q\j 1rKiLS DOE: ’7L/‘21/ 42

2. Business Name (D!BI'A)

R ad HKecuenct#d

DOB:

DOB:

5%( e Addr

Address Siate Zip Code
2B Meusl, Beooe RD Cﬂcér“ 7[ // ( /7?&’ DEL
@lﬂgﬂxdﬂr&s
ity/Town State Zip Code | City/T\ \601’ 17’7 State Zip Code
HAPERY, me 0B kol lle M gz

Telephone Numger _ Fax Number B essTele hone Number Fax Number
= 27 5059 &3

ederal Seller C

52 /5727 /)3 ?fz

3. If premises are a hotel, indicate number of rooms available for hanment gues’

i /7,

4. State amount of gross income from period of last license: ROOMS $ J@

5. Is applicant a corporation, limited Hability company or limited partunership?

complete Supplementary Questionnaire ,Jf YES

YES <& NO s

~ 6. Do you permit dancing or entertainment on the licensed premises? YES ﬂa NO <

7. If manager is to be employed, give name:

8. If business is NEW or under new ownership, indicate starting date:

Requested inspection date: Business hours:
9. Business records are located at: ~L HILGES
10. Is/are applicants(s) citizens of the United States? YES tﬂ NO <&




STATE OF MAINE
Dated at: / S &ﬂﬂ , Maine HM yASC O@(@fb ss

City/Town (County)
On: March (» D0 &
Date
The undersigned being: Q(Municipal Officers s County Commissioners of the
<5 City < Town < Plantation < Unincorporated Place of: Z,/ %bJY) : , Maine

Hereby certify that we have given public notice on this application and held public hearing thereon as required by Section 653 Title 284,
Maine Revised Statutes and herby approve said application.

THIS APPROVAL EXPIRERS IN 60 DAYS
NOTICE - SPECIAL ATTENTION

§ 653. Hearings; bureau review; appeal
1. Hearing. The municipal officers or, in the case of unincorporated places, the county commissioners of the county in which the unincorporated
place is located, shall hold a public hearing for the consideration of applications for new on-premise licenses and applications for transfer of
location of existing on-premise licenses. The municipal officers or county commissioners may hold a public hearing for the consideration of
requests for renewal of licenses, except that when an applicant has held a license for the prior 5 years and a complaint has not been filed against
the applicant within that time, the applicant may request a waiver of the hearing.

A. The bureau shall prepare and supply application forms. [1993, c.730, §27(amd).]

B. The municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, shall provide public notice of any hearing held under this
section by causing a notice, at the applicant’s prepaid expense, stating the name and place of hearing, to appear on.at.least.3.
consccutive days before the date of hearing in a daily newspaper having general circulation in the mumcipahty where. ﬂle‘pre are*
located or one week before the date of the hearing in a weekly newspaper having general circulation in the mumc:paﬂ
premises are located. [1995, c.140, §4 (amd).]

C. 'If the municipal officers or the county commissioners, as the case may be, fail to take final action on an applicatien
premise license, for transfer of the location of an existing on-premise license or for renewal of an on-premise license Withir
the filing of an application, the application is deemed appmvcd and ready for action by the bureau. For purposes of’ this S pa I
date of filing of the application is the date the application is received by the municipal officers or county comiriissioners. " This
paragraph applies to all applications pending before municipal officers or county commissioners as of the effective date of this
paragraph as well as all applications filed on or after the effective date of this paragraph. This paragraph applies to an existing on-
premise license that has been extended pending renewal. The municipal officers or the county commissioners shall take final action on
an on-premise license that has been extended pending renewal with 120 days of the filing of the application. [1999, c389, §1 (amd).]

2, Findings. In granting or denying an application, the municipal officers or the county commissioners shall indicate the reasons for their decision
and provide a copy to the applicant. A license may be denied on one or more of the following grounds:

A. Conviction of the applicant of any Class A, Class B or Class ¢ crime: [1987, c45, PLA§4 (new).]

B. Noncompliance of the licensed premises or its use with any local zoning ordinance or other land use ordinance not directly related to
liguor control; [1987, c.45, PLA§4(new).]

C. Conditions of record such as waste disposal violations, health or safety violation or repeated parking or traffic violations on or in the
vicinity of the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises or other such conditions
caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises that unreasonably disturb, interfere with or affect the ability of
persons or businesses residing or located in the vicinity of the licensed premises to use their property in a reasonable manner; [1993,
¢.730, §27 (amd).]

D. Repeated incidents of record of breaches of the peace, disorderly conduct, vandalism or other violations of law on or in the vicinity of
the licensed premises and caused by persons patronizing or employed by the licensed premises; [1989, ¢.592,§3 (amd).]

E. A violation of any provision of this Title; and [1989, ¢.592, §3 (amd).]

F. A determination by the municipal officers or county commissioners that the purpose of the application is to circumvent the provisions
of section 601. [1989, ¢.592, §4 (new).]

[1993, c730, §27 (amd).]

3. Appeal to bureau. Any applicant aggrieved by the decision of the municipal officers or county commissioners under this section may appeal to
the bureau within 15 days of the receipt of the written decision of the municipal officers or county commissioners. The bureau shall hold a
public hearing in the city, town or unincorporated place where the premises are situated. In acting on such an appeal, the bureau may consider all
licensure requirements and findings referred to in subsection 2.

A, [1993, ¢.730, §27 (1p).]

4. No license to person who moved to obtain a license. (REPEALED)

S. (TEXT EFFECTIVE 3/15/01) Appeal to District Court. Any person or governmental entity aggrieved by a bureau decision under this section
may appeal the decision to the District Court within 30 days of recelUpon resolution of the appeal, if an applicant’s license

renewal is denied, the bureau shall refund the applicant the prorated amount of the unused license fee.




Agenda Item 2018-45

MEMORAND UM

TO: Diane Barnes, Town Manager
FROM: Tracey Steuber, Economic & Community Development Director
CC: Amanda Bunker, Town Planner, Ben Smith, Town Planner

SUBJECT: Approval to submit a CDBG Lisbon Falls Revitalization Project Application
DATE: February 28, 2018

Over the past couple of years the Town of Lisbon has been very successful in receiving
grant funds for revitalization projects based on the Rt. 196 Master Plan and Downtown Plan. The
ECD office submitted a Letter of Intent to the Department of Community Development (CDBG)
for a 2018 CDBG Downtown Revitalization Grant in the amount of $300,000 for the Lisbon
Village area.

On January 30, 2018 we received notification from the Office of Community
Development that our Letter of Intent met the requirements established by Title I of the Housing
and Community Development Act of 1973, as amended and the State of Maine CDBG Program
and is eligible to submit a Downtown Revitalization application.

For the purposes of this match, the Office of Community Development will accept the
approved fagade application from MT Pools as the required match. I have been coordinating with
other owners who are planning property improvements in the project area for additional matching
funds that will count towards the grant. The already approved 25% grant match by Council will
help leverage Lisbon to score higher on the application.

The Lisbon Development Committee along with staff wishes to make the following
recommendation to Council:

1. Set a public hearing date on March 20, 2018 to approve the submittal of a 2018
CDBG DR Grant Application to the Maine Department of Community Development
for the Lisbon Village area.

2. Deadline for the application is March 30, 2018.



Public Hearing Notice
Town of Lisbon

The Town of Lisbon will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, March 20, 2018 at 7:00
p.m._at the Lisbon Town Office, 300 Lisbon Street, Lisbon to discuss an application
being submitted to the State of Maine CDBG program for a Downtown Revitalization
Grant Program. The purpose of the grant application is to fund priority, pedestrian
and streetscape improvements in Lisbon Village area as recommended in the Lisbon
Downtown and Rt. 196 Plans. Public comments will be solicited at this Hearing and
will be submitted as part of the application. All persons wishing to make comments
or ask questions about the grant application are invited to attend this Public Hearing.
Comments may be submitted in writing to: Tracey Steuber, Economic & Community
Development Director, Town of Lisbon, 300 Lisbon Street, Lisbon, Maine 04250 at
any time prior to the Public Hearing. TDD/TTY users may call 711. If you are
physically unable to access any of the Town’s programs or services, please call
Tracey Steuber at 207-353-3000 ext. 122 so that accommodations can be made.

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY

Please publish on: Friday, March 9, 2018

;{wwmw&ah 5@6

ot
Moneln 0, 018 @ Moxch 6

Q@U\v\dﬂ )U\%ﬁ :



Agenda Item 2018-46

Sec. 90-12. - Overtime.

As-a-general-ruleFor employees who are not exempt from overtime under applicable law, occasional
overtime work, in excess of 40 hours per week, if deemed necessary by the department head, will be
compensated for by overtime pay at a rate equal to 1.5 times the employee's regular wage or by
compensatory time at 1.5 times the hours worked for the employee. _ Election of Qovertime pay or
compensatory time will be left up to the employee's discretion, subject to applicable limits on accrual of
compensatory time. Hours used in overtime calculations shall include holidays. vacations. sick leave.
bereavement. jury duty. and compensatory time. However-For salaried positions exempt from overtime. it
is understood that job responsibility is the basis for which salaried positions are paid, and it is the
responsibility of the person who fills this position to accomplish the work within reason. Employees
working and supervising special shifts or hours shall be subject to the same standards that apply to the
employees which they supervise at the discretion of the town manager.

(T.M. of 7-31-2007, § 2007-115; T.M. of 4-7-2009. § 2009-62; C.M. of 8-19-2014, V. 2014-159)

Sec. 90-12.5 - Treatment Plant Call-Time Policy

An employee of the Lisbon Pollution Control Treatment Plant assigned to on-call status shall receive one
(1) hour at time and one half pay for every week night, and two and one half (2.5) hours at time and one

half pay for every weekend day on-call. An employee assigned to on-call status that is not available

when called shall forfeit the on-call pay.

An employee who is called-back while on-call shall receive time and one half pay for the hours worked.

If an employee is called back within one hour of the beginning of a regular work shift then the employee

shall be paid time and one half pay for one hour but shall be paid their regular wage on top of the

overtime pay for the overlapping time. However, the overlapping time of the regular work shift will be

counted for the purpose of determining the forty (40) hour work weel.

If necessary, the on-call employee can call in support staff to be paid at time and one half pay for hours

worked with a minimum of two (2) hours per call-in. The support staff will also be reimbursed for

mileage at the Maine Municipal Association standard rate. If an employee is called back within one hour

of the beginning of a regular work shift than the employee shall be paid time and one half pay for the

one hour, but shall not be paid their regular wage on top of the overtime pay for the overlapping time.

However, the overlapping time of the regular work shift will be counted for the purpose of determining

the forty (40) hour work week.

Sec. 90-43. - Policy for firefighters aaon payroll to go to fires.

It shall be the policy of the town that volunteer firefighters who are employees of the town be
encouraged to provide firefighting services 24 hours a day seven days a week. Therefore volunteers may
leave the workplace to attend to structural fire calls provided leaving the municipal work site does not
present a safety hazard, all while staying on the town payroll during normal working hours. The firefighter
on any standby shall request permission of the senior officer in command for permission to return to
municipal work duty which shall not be unreasonably withheld. When possible a request by the firefighter



to leave duty to attend fire duty shall be made and not unreasonably withheld. When a[n] employee is
being paid for overtime detail and is called to a fire, the municipal pay shall cease. A record of attendance
at fires and hours shall be maintained by the department. Any appeals of this policy shall be to the town
manager whose decision shall be final.

(T.M. of 7-31-2007, § 2007-115; T.M. of 4-7-2009, § 2009-62; C.M. of 8-19-2014, V. 2014-159)

Sec. 90-45 - Treatment Plant Uniform Reimbursement

The Town of Lishon will reimburse each full-time employee of the Lishon Pollution Control Treatment

Plant up to the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00) per calendar year for the purchase of uniforms.

The Town will also reimburse up to two hundred fifty (5250.00) dollars per employee per calendar year

for the purchase of the following:

e Safety footwear containing a steel toe.

e Prescription safety evewear including frames, permanently installed side shields and the

appropriate lenses (Note: The Town of Lishon will not reimburse employees for the cost of the

vision examinations).

In order to be reimbursed for the items purchased, employees must submit all receipts for the items

along with the appropriate Reimbursement Form to the Sewer Superintendant of the Town of Lisbon. In

lieu of reimbursement, any clothing items purchased where the town currently has an account can be

ordered through the employee’s supervisor.




Agenda ltem 2018-47

Part Il Rules, Regulations, and Policies
Chapter 82. Businesses
Division 2. License

Sec. 82-51. - Fee.

Each victualer establishment shall pay an annual license fee as follows:

Neoiguorlicense ... $100.00

(Sel. Ord. of 9-21-1993; Sel. Ord. of 6-21-1994; Sel. Ord. of 2-18-2003, § 5.158; C.M. of 7-1-
2014,V.2014-118)

Under Ordinances Chapter 10. Business License
Article V. Victualers

Sec. 10-294. - Types of victualers licenses; fees.

The various classifications of victualers licenses and fees corresponding to those classifications shall
be set by the town council. The town council shall have the further power to adjust the fees and
classifications, as may be necessary or appropriate. The fees and requirements are contained in part Il,
section 82-51 of this volume.

(T.M. of 5-15-1993, art. 92, § 16-126; T.M. of 12-4-2007, § 2007-214)

Summary of Change: This changes the fee for a Victualer’s License to $100.00 for processing with or
without a liquor license. Some of those businesses with liquor licenses already pay a fee to have the
liquor license application processed in the Clerk’s office. A small decrease ($500.00 +/-) in revenue is
expected because those businesses who sell liquor at convenience stores do not need the town
Council’s approval and we do not process those in the Clerk’s office.






Agenda ltem 2018-48

APPENDIX C - FEE SCHEDULE

Section

'this Code Description Fee/Rate

ADMINISTRATIVE

Vital records fee for non-certified research including a five-year
] $ 7.00
search payable whether record is found or not, per name
Voter list fees regulated under title 21-A section 196 as follows:
! For 1 to 1,000 records i 11.00
For 1,001 to 7,500 records 22.00
For 7,501 to 15,000 records 33.00 i
Faxes 2.00
One-sided copies .50
Two-sided copies .75
Ledger copies 1.50
' Attested copy of voter registration card 7.00
| Copies of zoning ordinance 10.00
Council meetings—Eemputergenerated- HbDretrieval
30.00
Electronic copies
Notary fee for non-municipal documents (excludes weddings by -
town clerk) '




Bad check fee

35.00

ANIMALS

78-1 Rabies and spaying/neutering verification fees:
Rabies verification 2.00
Spaying/neutering verification 2.00
Dog owner list 100.00
BUILDINGS AND CONSTRUCTION
Building permit fees:
Conditional use fees 150.00
Appeals Board application 150.00
5.5 Manufactured housing., ho.use trailer on-' mabile home park 500.00
application for permit
22-33 Park license, renewable annually on May 1 250.00
i 46-132 Entrance onto public way permits 150.00
62-51 Fill/excavation permit < 500 yards 50.00

Fill/excavation permit > 500 yards

See site plan fees




BUSINESSES

10-
 352(d) Adult use establishment processing and licensing fee 250.00
- 10- After-hours entertainment event licenses; nonrefundable processing 5000
- 352(d) fee '
*In addition, the town may require a deposit to offset any costs or
expenses expected to be incurred by the town in enforcing the
terms and conditions of the license
i Alcoholic Beverages:
- 10-203 Annual license for bottle club 200.00
Liquor license processing fee 100.00
Note:
Dup of . . .
- Liguor—Off premisepermit-perevent 25-90
line 3
below
Late liquor license processing fee 50.00
Games of chance processing fee 25.00
Off premise catering processing fee 25.00
' 10-253 Itinerant vendors application fee:
Temporary Stands (90 days or less) 75.00
3 Six months itinerant vendor 150.00- 100.00
; 12 months itinerant vendor 200-00- 150.00
One week carnivals and festivals 200.00




12-month outdoor flea market 100.00
| 12-month indoor flea market 200.00
l Junkyard license $50 fee for application & S50 fee for advertising 100.00
Municipal organizations or agencies are exempt from fees in this
section
' Moxie Festival Saturday Craft/Trade Vendor Fees:
Y Lisbon Business or Lisbon Non-profit $75.00
After May 18 $125.00
Out of Town or Out of Town Non-Profit $125.00
After May 18 $175.00
| Moxie Festival Saturday Food Vendor Fees:
r Lisbon Businesses $100.00
After May 18 $150.00
| Out of Town Businesses $175.00
After May 18 $225.00
r Electrical Fee Per Space for Saturday only $25.00
T Friday Night All Vendors — no power available $100.00
?rk Clean Up Fee (if area not left clean) $25.00
| 10-505 Pawnbroker 250.00
| 10-166 Special amusement permit application fee 100.00

82-51

Victualer establishment annual license fee:




Noliguorlicense 100.00

Reinspection by health officer or codes enforcement officer, per

. . 150.00
reinspection
CEMETERY FEES
Lots—Purchase of a new lot includes perpetual care and recording
10.5-33 575.00 per lot
of deed
10.5-36 Perpetual care—Cost for perpetual care of a currently owned lot 300.00 per lot
10.5- . . N .
47 Penalties—Any person found guilty of violating sections 10.5-37—
1075:38 10.5-39 of the Cemetery Ordinance shall be subject to the following:
First offense Not more than 50.00
Not more than 100.00
Each subsequent offense
each
FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT
58-34 Flood hazard development permit application fee, non-refundable 100.00

LIBRARY FEES




Non-resident membership

$50.00 yearly

Fines overdue books

.10 per day Max $3:00

$5.00 per item

Fines overdue DVD's

$1.00 per day $3-080
$5.00 Max per DVD

Qutgoing fax fees

$2.00 per page

Photocopies S.25.50
Replacement fees for new telescope $325
Replacement cost for new microscope $110

Replacement cost for lost or damaged library materials

Fees are based on
replacement cost per

item
PARKS AND RECREATION
30-90 Beaver Park fees:
Day use, per person per day:
Residents of Lisbon 2.00
Non-residents 4.00
Children three and under Free
Family pass, per family per year:
Residents of Lisbon 20.00




Agenda [tem 2018-49

DRAFT Proposed Street Acceptance Ordinance
February 2, 2018

Section 46-61. - Purpose
The purpose of this Ordinanee-Article is to provide a uniform, consistent, and equitable process for
the dedication and acceptance of municipal roads.

Sec. 46-62. - Minimum right-of-way.

No street or extension of a street shall be accepted by the town with a right-of-way of less than 50
feet, except that (1) streets or ways dedicated prior to January 1, 1969, may be accepted at lesser
widths to the extent of their dedicated and recorded rights-of-way, provided they otherwise meet
the construction standards as established in section 66-147 and chapter 66, article III, division 3;
and (2) any street or way which, through extended public usage and prolonged maintenance by
the town highway department prior to January 1, 1969, may, with the approval of the Planning
Board, be recommended for acceptance by the Town Council.

(Code 1983, § 13-201; C.M. 0f 4-18-2017, V. 2017-96)

Sec. 46-63. - Minimum construction standards.

(a) Generally. No building permit shall be issued for any structure proposed for erection on an
unaccepted street or way, except on those streets or ways that meet the standards provided

in section 66-147 and chapter 66, article III, division 3.

(b) Less than 50-foot right-of-way. Permits may be issued for structures proposed for erection on
unaccepted streets or ways with dedicated rights-of-way less than 50 feet in width, providing such
dedication occurred prior to January 1, 1969, and further providing that the applicant or owner
has constructed, or guaranteed by the posting of a performance bond to construct, a roadway
contiguous to the accepted portion of the street or way to the end of the lot to be built upon in
accordance with the specifications set forth in section 66-147 and chapter 66, article II1, division
3 except specification 66-186(1), Minimum right-of-way.

(c)Form of bond. With his-the application for a building permit, the applicant shall tender either a
certified check payable to the town or a faithful performance bond running to the town in an
amount of money to be determined by the town manager to be equal to the costs of furnishing,
installing, connecting and completing all aspects of the street grading, construction, storm
drainage and utilities required within one year from the date of the check or bond. This bond may
be renewed for one additional year at the discretion of the town manager.

(Code 1983, § 13-202; C.M. 0f 4-18-2017, V. 2017-96)

Section 46-64. - Preliminary Threshold Requirements
Prior to submitting an application for the dedication and acceptance of a road proposed to be
accepted as a municipal road, the applicant must comply with the following standards.

o Fifty Percent Rule: Fifty percent of the lots abutting the private road proposed for
acceptance as a municipal road must be developed, including the construction of the
principal structure.



Exception to Fifty Percent Rule: If the private road (or portion of the private road)
proposed for acceptance as a municipal road extends between two municipal roads,
connecting those two roads, then the fifty percent threshold requirement for applications
road acceptance shall be reduced to twenty five percent

Connection to Municipal Road: The private road (or portion of the private road) proposed
for acceptance as a municipal road must connect to an existing municipal road in a manner
acceptable to the Public Works Director

Street Design and Construction Standards: The private road proposed for acceptance as a
municipal road shall be built to Chapter 66, Article III, Division 3-Streets of the Lisbon
Subdivision Ordinance prior to an application being filed for road acceptance.

Section 46-65. - Application Process and Review Procedure for the Dedication and
Acceptance of Municipal Roads

This section outlines the process and procedure required by the tFown efEisben-to review and
accept a private road as a municipal road.

L.

Prior to submittal of a formal application the applicant must present to the Public Works

Director the following documentation:

a. Proof of unencumbered fee simple title in the private way being proposed for acceptance;

b. Proof that all improvements required by the Planning Board have been satisfactorily
completed and that all performance guarantees associated with those improvements have
been released; and

c. Proof that the private way has endured without damage at least two consecutive
freeze/thaw cycles after construction

d. An application packet including an original application form as prescribed by the Public
Works Director and all required documents and items specified in Section 46-66.
Applications may contain multiple streets within a development.

The Public Works Director, or their designee, shall determine if the application is

complete within thirty (30) business days of receipt.

If the application is determined incomplete Public Works staff shall notify the applicant of

the missing information. When an application is determined to be complete, the Department

shall forward the application to the Police Chief and Fire Chief.

The Public Works Director, Police Chief, and Fire Chief shall provide written reports

within thirty (30) days of receipt of the determination of completeness. Reports shall

address the following:

a. Conformance with the tFown's comprehensive plan as well as other adopted plans that
address desired street patterns;

. Budget impact regarding provision of adequate municipal services;

c. Expenditures by the tFown for upgrading or extending water and/or sewer mains, storm
drains, sanitary sewers, gas mains, culverts, underdrains and all underground and
overhead utilities;

d. Town liability for damage to private property such as, but not limited to, walks, fences,
lawns and other items that encroach within the proposed right-of-way; and

e. Any concerns for providing public safety and access to the street and its occupants.

5. At such time as the Public Works Director determines that the application is ready for

consideration by the Town Council, the Town Manager shall place the application on the



next available Town Council agenda.

5:6.In determining whether to accept a private road. the Town Council shall consider the

recommendations of the Public Works Director, Fire Chief and Police Chief as to whether or
not acceptance of the private road (or portion of the private road) would be in the best interest
of the town for public safety and/or road maintenance reasons. If the Town Council
determines that the street is in order for acceptance, an order shall be scheduled at such time
as the Public Works Director determines that all documents noted in Section 46-66 are
submitted and acceptable.

Sec. 46-66. - Application and-Ddocuments Rrequired

The following documentation shall be included in an application for dedication and acceptance of a
road:

1. A plot plan showing the as-built condition of the private way drawn to a scale of forty (40)
feet to one (1) inch or a scale acceptable to the Public Works Director and on one (1) or
more sheets of paper not exceeding twenty-four (24) inches by thirty-six (36) inches in size:

magnetic and true north,

bar and ratio scale,

current ownership, name of way and subdivision, if any,

date of Planning Board approval, revision dates and other pertinent information,

the location, frontage lengths and current ownership of all adjoining lots of land,

right-of-way width(s),

location of easements with necessary metes and bounds for location in the field

and deed reference,

h. location of all underground and overhead utilities, including sanitary sewer and
building laterals, transformers, electrical service, telephone service, cable and fiber
optic service, water mains, fire hydrants, utility poles and street lights,
locations of boundary monuments including type,
location, species and size of street trees,
location and schedule of any street signs, including name, speed limit, and caution signs,
edge of pavement, edge of shoulders, edge of sidewalks and edge of curbs,

. pavement markings,
original and finished contours associated with the private way, both within and
outside of the right-of-way,
natural and manmade drainage courses with contours at not greater than two-foot
intervals plus all existing storm drainage systems, including any laterals installed
for connecting to building foundation and /or floor drains,

p. all angles, bearings curve data and radii necessary for the plotting of the streets and

lots and their reproduction on the ground, including turning radii,

q. the relative location to the nearest public street or way, together with the stations
of their sidelines, .

r. any private improvements which encroach within the right-of-way such as irrigations
systems, fences, walls, etc., and

s. seal and signature of a Maine Registered Land Surveyor or Maine Professional
Engineer and certification that the plans reflect an “as-built” condition.

e e ene o

BB S

e

2. A profile of the proposed street drawn to a horizontal scale of 1"=50" (one inch equals
fifty feet) and vertical scale of 1"=5" (one inch equals five feet) The profile shall show:
a. the profile of the centerline of the proposed street,
b. centerline stationing,



10.

c. street grades at critical points,

d. elevations of all underground utilities, drainage structures, including pipe sizes and
materials, pipe slope and the location and inverts of all catch basins and manholes,

e. complete curve data for all vertical curves, and

f. seal and signature of a Maine Professional Engineer.

A cross section of the proposed street drawn to a horizontal scale of five (5) feet to one

(1) inch and a vertical scale of one (1) foot to one (1) inch with the following details:

a. the location, size, materials and conditions of the existing and proposed water
and/or sewer mains, storm drains, sanitary sewers, gas mains, culverts,
underdrains,

b. the location of all underground and overhead utilities, and

c. seal and signature of a Maine Professional Engineer.

Documentation on any deviations from the current street standards.
List of waivers granted by the Planning Board for street standards.

A digital copy of all plans and documents shall accompany the paper submission, one
file set in PDF format and one in AutoCad (dwg) format.

Proposed warranty deed describing the right-of-way, all necessary easements, and
paper street connections to other properties. Deed shall reference any existing
easements encumbering the property being deeded.

Application fees as required by the Town Council,

Copies of any documents containing restrictions or easements on the development such
as utility easements, declarations of covenants, and the like.

Public and private responsibilities for improvements within the right-of-way. Ifit is
proposed that the tFown assume these costs, historical costs of maintenance shall be
provided. Ownership or maintenance responsibility for detention ponds and common
space outside of the right-of-way shall not be transferred to the tFown without specific
approval of the Town Council. The request shall include a statement about the
responsibility for:

walls and fences,

copy of, and if applicable, transfer of, any Maine Department of Environmental
Protection, Army Corps of Engineers or other storm water, wetlands or similar
permits. Any transfer of permits must be under conditions that the tFown does not
agree to maintenance obligations over and above those typically required of the
tFown.

a. street lights and landscape lighting,
b. fire hydrants,

c. landscaping,

d. signs,

€.

£

Section 46-67. — Documentation Required Prior to Council Acceptance

Prior to the Council scheduling an order to accept the a private road, the applicant shall

produce the following documents as required:

1.

A petition, agreement., warranty deed, affidavit or other writing specifically

describing the property or interest and its location. and stating that the owner
voluntarily offers to transfer such interests to the municipality without claim for

damages,




2. Recordable mylars and one paper copy of the plans of the street for recording at the
Androscoggin County Registry of Deeds,

3. Defect guarantee,
a. A defect guarantee shall be furnished prior to the order for acceptance by the
Town Council. The guarantee shall provide that the applicant will be financially
responsible for the repair of any defects or conditions as determined by the Public
Works Director to be unsatisfactory to the town for a period of two vears from the
date of acceptance and which arise out of the failure of the applicant or developer to
construct the road to Chapter 66. Article III. Division 3 Streets of the Lisbon
Subdivision Ordinance. This guarantee shall be in addition to, and independent from
any performance guarantee given to the town in connection with any other matter.
b. The defect guarantee, unless waived by the Town Council. shall be tendered
in the form of a certified check payable to the town or faithful performance bond
consistent with section 66-85.
C. The Town Council may waive the defect guarantee provided the road has
been constructed and in place for a minimum of two years and there are no known
defects at the time of the proposed acceptance as determined by the Public Works
Director.

4. Executed utility agreements (CMP, Fairpoint, Spectrum. Unitil, etc.).

Title insurance, and

6. Any other item as required by the Town Council.

n

Need to change 66-52, 4, s - Typical cross-section views of all proposed streets and drainage
systems as prepared by a licensed professional engineer;

To: Typical cross-section views of all proposed streets, drawn to a horizontal scale of five (5) feet
to one (1) inch and a vertical scale of one (1) foot to one (1) inch showing all drainage, and utility
systems as prepared by a licensed professional engineer



CHAPTER 34. SEWER USE ORDINANCE

(Fabruary—2048—Revision-3March 2. 2018 - B & | Revisions)
ARTICLE TABLE OF CONTENTS
34.0 General
341 Reference to Definitions
34.2 Use of Public Sewers Required
343 Private Disposal Systems
344 Building Sewers and Connections
345 Sewer Extensions
34.6 Use of the Public Sewers
34.7 Pretreatment and Permitting of Industrial, Commercial
or Unusual Wastes
348 Power and Authority of Inspectors
349 Sewer Service Fees, Rates and Charges
3410 Liens for Non-Payment
3411  Abatements
34.12  Protection from Damage
34.13 Enforcement and Penalty
34.14  Board of Sewer Appeals
34.15 Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances
34.16  Severability

3417

Effective Date

Agenda Item 2018-50



Page 3401

APPENDIX

Appendix A - Typical-Sewer Ordinance Definitions

Appendix B - Sanitary Sewer Ordinance Fee Schedule
Appendix C - Guidelines for Design and Construction of Sewers
Appendix D - Calculating the “One Time” Sewer Credit
Appendix E - Applicable Municipal References



Page 3402

CHAPTER 34 - SEWER USE ORDINANCE

Article 34.0 - General

Section 34.0.1 - Ordinance Scope. AnThis Ordinance regulating-regulates the use of
public and private sewers and drains, private sewage disposal, the installation and
connection of building sewers, and the discharge of waters and wastes into the public
sewer system.: and previding-provides penalties for violations and procedures for
enforcement.thereof-in-the Town-of LisbonCounty-of Androscoggin-State-of- Maine:

Section 34.0.2 - Ordinance Scope-and-Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance is to
promote the health and general welfare of the citizens of the Town of Lisbon by
regulating and restricting the construction and use of sewerage systems and the
accumulation, transportation, treatment and disposal of sewage in such a manner that
the creation of any sewerage system, whether public, private, commercial or industrial,
shall not result in pollution, health hazards, or other nuisance. Hereafter, any person
owning any building or structure within the Town which is the source of sewage and/or
commercial or industrial wastes, or who proposes to erect such building or structure
shall conform to the requirements of this Ordinance.

Article 34.1 Reference to Definitions

Section 34.1.1 - Definitions. Language and terminoclogy used in this Ordinance shall
have the meanings commonly used and recognized in the wastewater collection and
treatment field by professionals familiar with that field.

Section 34.1.2 - Appendix A. Specific definitions of some frequently used and
referenced terms can be found in Appendix A of this Ordinance.

Section 34.1.3 - “Wastewater Treatment Facility or Sewer Works” is also known as the
Sewer Department consisting of all public sewer treatment facilities including interceptor
piping and connections, force main piping and connections, pump stations, treatment
plant and facilities, treatment processes, and other assets along with personnel and
vehicles of the Town of Lisbon utilized for the purpose of collecting, conveying, and
treating sewage. The Wastewater Treatment Facilities exist as a Division of Lisbon's
Public Works Department operated by the Town of Lisbon.

Article 34.2 Use of Public Sewers Required

Section 34.2.1 - General Restrictions. It shall be unlawful for any person to place,
deposit or permit to be placed or deposited in any unsanitary manner on public or
private property within the Town, or in any lake, pond, stream or harbor, or in any area
under the jurisdiction of the Town, any human or animal excrement, garbage, or other
objectionable waste. The term "unsanitary manner" shall not include reasonable
spreading of animal excrement or other fertilizer in farming or animal husbandry
operations.

[Formatted: Underline

l Formatted: No underline




Page 3403

Section 34.2.2 - Unlawful Discharge. It shall be unlawful to discharge to any natural
outlet within the Town or in any area under the jurisdiction of the Town, any wastewater
or other polluted waters, except where suitable treatment has been provided in
accordance with subsequent provisions of this article and the requirements of State,
Federal and local laws.

Section 34.2.3 - Individual Wastewater Disposal. - Except as hereinafter provided, , it
shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or
other facility intended or used for the disposal of wastewater except where no public
sewer is available and where such private facilities are constructed or maintained in
conformance with all State and municipal laws, ordinances, or regulations. -

Section 34.2.4 - Requirements to Connect to the Public Sewer System. The owners of
all buildings, or other properties used for human occupancy, employment, recreation or
other purposes situated within the Town and abutting on any street, alley, or right-of-way
in which there is now located or may in the future be located a public sanitary sewer of
the Town is required at the owner’s expense to install suitable toilet facilities in such
places and to connect such facilities directly with the proper public sewer in accordance
with the provisions of this article within 90 days after date of official notice to do so,
provided that said public sewer is within 200 feet of the structure to be served unless
undue hardship would result, in which case the property owner should request in writing
a deferral of this property; and the owner shall be required to demonstrate the nature
and degree of hardship. (Refer to Section 34.14.2(b) of-this- Ordinance for definition of
“Undue Hardship®.) Readiness-to-serve charges will be made on unimproved lots if they
are buildable within the terms of Chapter 70 of the Town's Codes upon issuance of a
building permit.

Article 34.3 Private Disposal Systems

Section 34.3.1 - Private Disposal Systems. Where a public sewer is not available under
the provisions of Article-Section 34.2.4, the building sewer shall be connected to a
private wastewater disposal system complying with the provisions of this article and the
State of Maine Plumbing Code, Part Il, Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Regulations
144A CMR 241, the Minimum Lot Size Law (12 M.R.S.A. § 4807 et seq.) and Town
Ordinances as may be amended from time-to-time. No private wastewater disposal
system shall be permitted to discharge to any natural outlet.

Section 34.3.2 - Plumbing Permits Required. Before commencement of construction of a
private wastewater disposal system, the owner shall first obtain a written permit signed
by the licensed Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector. The application for such
permit shall be made on a form furnished by the Town obtained from the division of
health engineering, state department of human services, which the applicant shall
supplement by any plans, specifications and other information as are deemed
necessary by the Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector. A permit and
inspection fee, as specified by the Town in Appendix B, shall be paid to the plumbing
inspector at the time the application is filed.




Page 3404

Section 34.3.3 - Inspection of Private Disposal System Required. A permit for a private
sewage disposal system shall not become effective until the installation is completed to
the satisfaction of the Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector. The Code
Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector shall be allowed to inspect the work at any
stage of construction. The applicant for the permit shall give the Code Enforcement
Officer/Plumbing Inspector at least fourty eight (48) hours before the work is ready for
final inspection and before any underground portions are covered.

Section 34.3.4 - Maintenance of Private Sewage Facilities. The owner shall operate and
maintain the private wastewater disposal facilities in a sanitary manner at all times, at no
expense to the Town.

Section 34.3.5 - Conflicts of Ordinance. No statement contained in this Article shall be
construed to interfere with any additional requirements that may be imposed by the
Town.

Section 34.3.6 - Use of Private Disposal Systems Following Availability of Public Sewer.
At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private
wastewater disposal system, as provided in Section 34.2 4, a direct connection from the
building sewer to the public sewer shall be made within 90 days after the date of official
notice; and any septic tanks, cesspools, and similar private wastewater disposal
facilities shall no longer be used and shall be cleaned of sludge and filled with suitable
material, such as clean bank run gravel, or completely removed. Upon inspection, and
to the satisfaction of the Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector, the
Superintendent may allow the continued use of a private wastewater disposal system for
the duration of its useful life and in accordance with Article-Section 34.2.4-of -this
Qrdinance.

Article 34.4 Building Sewers and Connections

Section 34.4.1 - Sewer Connection Permit. No unauthorized person shall uncover, make
any connections with or opening into, use, alter, or disturb the public sewer or
appurtenance of the sewer without first obtaining a sewer connection permit from the
Superintendent. All work related to the installation of building sewers and the connection
to the public sewer shall be performed by persons qualified on this class of work and
acceptable to the Superintendent.

Section 34.4.2 - Notification of New Discharge or Change. Any person proposing a new
discharge into the system or a substantial change in the volume or character of
pollutants that are being discharged into the system shall notify the Superintendent at
least 45 days prior to the proposed change or connection, and shall comply with 38
M.R.S.A. § 361 et seq.

Section 34.4.3 - Classes of Building Sewer Permits. There shall be two (2) classes of
building sewer permits, one for residential and commercial service and one for service
to establishments producing industrial wastes. In either case, the owner or his agent
shall make application on a special form furnished by the Town. The permit application
shall be supplemented by any plans, specifications, or other information considered




Page 3405

pertinent in the judgment of the Superintendent. A permit and inspection fee for
residential or commercial building sewer permits and a separate fee plus all costs for
the review and analysis of the waste for a commercial or industrial building sewer permit
shall be paid to the Town at the time the application is filed. (Appendix B contains the
most recent fees set by the Town Council).

Section 34.4.4 - Sewer Connection Fees. For all connections into the sewer system,
there will be both a permit connection fee and an inspection fee. Both the connection
fee and the inspection fee shall be paid at the time that the applicant files a permit for
the connection. The applicant is also required to obtain the sewer connection permit at
the time the building permit is applied for. The amount of these fees shall be set
annually by the Town Council. (Appendix B contains the sewer connection fees set by
the Town Council). A connection fee shall be charged for each new connection to the
public sewer. -(See Appendix B.) For non-residential customers discharging typical
domestic-strength wastewater (no more than 300 mg/l BOD5 or 350 mg/l total
suspended solids and no contaminants not expected to be found in typical domestic
wastewater), the connection fee shall be based on a cost/gallon factor multiplied by the
estimated flow in gallons per month. (See Appendix B.); For non-residential customers
with estimated flows greater than 50,000 gallons per month or with wastes exceeding
domestic-strength, the fee shall be negotiated with the Superintendent, taking into
consideration the quantity and character of the wastewater and approved by the Town
Council.

Section 34.4.5 - Monetary Deposit for Certain Discharges Required. In the case of
multiple building units or connections, connections involving sewer extensions, or
industrial discharges or pretreatment applications, the Town may require a monetary
deposit sufficient to cover the cost to review the application, including any expert advice
deemed necessary by the Superintendent. The applicant may also be required to pay
an initial deposit. The amount of deposit shall be estimated by the Town and upon
payment by the applicant, kept in a non-interest-bearing account. Upon completion of
the review process, the unused portion, if any, will be refunded. If the initial deposit is
not sufficient to pay for the costs incurred by the Town, a second deposit shall be made
and handled in the same manner as the first.

Section 34.4.6 - Permit Availability. One copy of the permit shall be available for
inspection at all times at the site of the work.

Section 34.4.7 - Separate and Independent Sewer Required, Exceptions. A separate

and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building requiring a sewer
connection; except that where one building stands at the rear of another on an interior
lot and no private sewer is available or can be constructed to the rear building through
an adjoining alley, courtyard, or driveway, the building sewer from the front building may
be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one building sewer,
except for the purposes of Article 34.9. and if approved by the Superintendent. In such
instance, the owner or user shall provide to the Superintendent proof of a recorded
easement giving the right to cross the other property.- Where building sewers are to
serve multiple dwelling structures, there shall be provided at least one (1) separate
building sewer to each group of four (4) structures.



Page 3406

Section 34.4.8 - Building Pipe Used. The new building sewer shall be polyvinyl chloride
{(PVC pipe) conforming to the requirements of ASTM D 3034 SDR 35, or other material
approved by the Superintendent. (See Construction Requirements in Appendix C.)

Section 34.4.9 - Connection to Existing Building Sewers. Existing building sewers or
portions thereof may be used in connection with new buildings only when they are
found, on examination and test by the Superintendent, to meet all requirements of this
Ordinance and Appendix C.

Section 34.4.10 - Sewer Cleanouts. - Building sewer cleanouts shall be installed at
intervals not to exceed 100 feet in straight lines and at all bends greater than 22-%
degrees. The cleanouts shall consist of wyes and 45-degree elbows. Cleanouts shall be
installed vertically to within six (6) inches of the surface. A stainless-steel strap shall be
installed around the top of cleanouts constructed of nonmetallic pipe to allow their
detection with a metal detector. (See Appendix C for specific requirements.)

Section 34.4.11 - Building Sewer Depth and Elevations. The diameter of the building
sewer shall not be less than four (4) inches norshalland the slope of the pipe shall not
be less than one-eight inch per foot. (In some cases, the building sewer may be required
to be larger - refer to Appendix C.) Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be
brought to the building at an elevation below the basement floor. The depth shall be
sufficient to afford protection from frost, but in no event, shall the depth be less than
three feet. The building sewer shall be laid at a uniform grade and in straight alignment
insofar as possible as described in Section 34.4.11. The ends of building sewers which
are not connected to the building drain of the structure for any reason shall be sealed
against infiltration by a suitable mechanical, watertight cap or other means approved by
the Superintendent.

Section 34.4.12 - Mechanical Lift Where Gravity Flow is Naot Possible. In all buildings
in which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary
sewage carried by such building drain shall be lifted by an approved mechanical means
and discharged to the building sewer at the expense of the building owner. Plans and
details of the proposed lifting method shall be submitted to the Superintendent for
review. (See Appendix C for specific requirements.)

Section 34.4.13 - Connections to Force miViains Not Permitted. No connection of any
kind shall be made directly from any private property to a Town pressurized force main
Sewer.

Section 34.4.14 - Excavations and Backfill. All excavations required for the installation
of a building sewer shall be open trench work unless otherwise approved by the
Superintendent. Pipe laying and backfill shall be performed in accordance with
Appendix C and no backfill shall be placed until the work has been inspected.

Section 34.4.15 - Sewer Joints. All joints and connections shall be made gastight and
watertight. The transition joint between pipes of different materials shall be made with
adaptors and joint materials approved by the Superintendent. Pre-molded gasket joints



Page 3407

shall be used and shall be neoprene compression type gaskets which provide a positive
double seal in the assembled joint. The gasket shall be a pre-molded, one-piece unit
designed for joining the pipe material used. The assembled joint shall be sealed by
compression of the gasket between the exterior surface of the spigot and the interior
surface of the hub. The joint shall be assembled following the manufacturer's
recommendation using acceptable lubricant and special pipe coupling tools designed for
that purpose. The lubricant shall be a bland, fat based, nontoxic material, and shall not
chemically attack the gasket material. (See Appendix C.).

Section 34.4.16 - Pipe Inspection. The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify
the Superintendent at least forty-eight (48) hours before beginning the work and also
when the building sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The
connection shall be made under the supervision of the Superintendent or his
representative.

Section 34.4.17 - Inspection of Trenches. When trenches are opened for the laying of
building sewer pipes, such trenches shall be inspected by the Superintendent before the
trenches are filled; and the person performing such work shall notify the Superintendent
when the installation of the building sewer is completed. If the trench is filled before
inspection, the Superintendent may require it to be re-excavated for inspection.

Section 34.4.18- Leakage Testing. All parts of new building drains and sewers shall
withstand, under test without observable leakage, a ten-foot head of water for a
minimum period of fifteen minutes at a temperature above the freezing point of water.
(Alternatively, the line may be air tested as defined in Appendix C.)

Section 34.4.19 -Protection of the Public from Excavations. All excavations for a building
sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with barricades and lights so as to
protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, parkways, and other public property
disturbed in the course of the work shall be restored in a manner satisfactory to the
Town.

Section 34.4.20 -Method and Indemnification; Connection to Existing Public Sewer. The
connection of the building sewer into an existing public sewer shall be made at the
existing public sewer. All costs and expenses incident to the installation and connection
of the entire length of building sewer shall be borne by the owner. The owner shall
indemnify the Town from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be
occasioned by the installation of the building sewer. The method of connection of the
building sewer to the public sewer will be dependent upon the type of pipe material
used, and in all cases, shall be approved by the Superintendent. The connection of the
building sewer into the public sewer shall be made with a Wye or Tee branch. If none is
available, a connection may be made by tapping the existing sewer with a saddle or
other method approved by the Superintendent. All connections shall be made gastight
and watertight and verified by proper testing. The Town is responsible for all
maintenance and repairs of the public sewer only. The method of connection of the
building sewer to the public sewer shall be dependent upon the type of pipe material
used, and in all cases, shall be approved by the Superintendent. (Refer to Appendix C.)-




Page 3408

Section 34.4.21 - Manhole Required for Certain Sewers. When any building sewer is to
serve a school, hospital, or similar institution, public building, or is to serve a complex of
industrial or commercial buildings, or will, in the opinion of the Superintendent, receive
sewage or industrial wastes of such volume or character that frequent maintenance of
the building sewer is anticipated, such building sewer shall be connected to the public
sewer through a manhole. The Superintendent shall determine if and where this type of
connection to the public sewer is required. Connections to existing manholes shall be
made as directed by the Superintendent or his representative. If required, a new
manhole shall be installed in the public sewer pursuant to Section 34.7.7 or Appendix C,
and the building sewer connection made to the sewer as directed by the
Superintendent.

Section 34.4.22- Privately Owned Sewer Lines. Main sewer collector lines which are
constructed within subdivisions, condominiums and other developments, and which
eventually discharge or connect into the public sewer system shall not be accepted by
the Town of Lisbon for ownership and maintenance; but remain privately owned and
privately maintained unless within a public right-of-way in which case, the Town could
choose to accept the line. (Refer to Section 34.5.9). The engineering design for the
construction of sewer lines within subdivisions, condominiums and other developments
shall comply with this Ordinance and shall be submitted to the Town for written
approval. The Town and Superintendent may require that the engineering design plans
be submitted to the Town's Consulting Engineer for their evaluation and approval prior
to final approval by the Town. Cost of the Town's Consulting Engineers to review,
comment, recommend and approve the engineering design plans and the cost of on-site
inspection during construction, shall be borne by the applicant, subdivider, developer or
builder who shall agree in writing when the sewer plans are submitted to the Town that
he/she will pay for all review, approval and inspection costs. Private individual
connections into private sewer lines shall also conform to this Ordinance.

Section 34.4.23 - Building Drain System Venting. The building drain system shall be so
vented that under no circumstances will the seal of any appliance be subjected to a
pressure differential in excess of one-inch of water. All appliances connected directly or
indirectly to the building drain shall have traps with a liquid seal not less than two-inches
in depth.

Section 34.4.24 - References for Sewer System Design. Sewer design, including
building services, sewer collectors and interceptors shall conform to the State Plumbing
Code and to the specific specifications set forth in the Town's Guidelines for Design and
Construction of Sewers which is found in Appendix C. Any deviation from the prescribed
procedures and materials must be approved by the Superintendent as being equivalent
of, or superior to, those specified before installation.

Article 34.5 Sewer Extensions

Section 34.5.1 - Town Construction of Sewer Extension. Sewer extensions, including
individual building sewers from the sewer to the property line, may be constructed by the




Page 3409

Town under public contract if, in the opinion of the Town Council and approved at Town
Referendum, if applicable, the number of properties to be served by such extension
warrants its cost and if the treatment plant has the capacity to handle said extension.
Under this arrangement, the property owner shall pay for and install the building sewer
from the public sewer to his residence or place of business in accordance with the
requirements of Article 34.4. Property owners may propose sewer extensions within the
incorporated Town by drafting a written petition, signed by a majority of the benefiting
property owners, and filing it with the Town Council. The cost of such extensions may
be assessed to the benefited property owners by the Town in any manner
recommended by the Town Council and the Town.

Section 34.5.2 - Property Owner Construction of Sewer Extension. If the Town does not
elect to construct a sewer extension under public contract, the property owner, builder or
developer may construct the necessary sewer extension, if such extension is approved
by the Town Council in accordance with the requirements of Section 34.5.1. The
property owner, builder or developer must pay for the entire installation, including all
expenses incidental thereto. Each building sewer must be installed and inspected as
previously required, and the inspection fees shall be paid. —Design of sewers shall be
as specified in this Article and the specifications set forth in the Guidelines for Design
and Construction of Sewers which is included in Appendix C. The installation of the
sewer extension must be subject to periodic inspection by the Superintendent or the
Town'’s Engineer and the expenses for this inspection shall be paid for by the owner,
builder or developer. The Superintendent’s decisions shall be final in matters of quality
and methods of construction. The sewer, as constructed, must pass the exfiltration or
leakage test required in Appendix C before it is to be used. The cost of sewer
extensions thus made shall be absorbed by the developers or the property owners,
including the cost of all building sewers.

Section 34.5.3 - State Law Adopted. The Town adopts, for the purpose of
implementation of this Article involving sewer extensions and the construction of new
sanitary sewers, the procedures, assessment of betterment fees, and the collection of
those fees as set forth in 30-A M.R.S.A. Subpart §§ 3442-3445, (See Appendix E.)

Section 34.5.4 - Sewer Extension Design Requirements. All extensions to the sanitary
sewer system shall be designed by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of
Maine. Plans and specifications for sewer extensions shall be submitted to the
Superintendent at least forty-five (45) days before the regularly scheduled Planning
Board meeting at which approval of the plans and specifications will be evaluated based
on recommendation by the Superintendent or Town Engineer. The expenses incurred
by the Town in reviewing the plans and specifications shall be paid from a deposit made
by the owner, builder, or developer at the time of application. The design of sewers and
pump stations that may be deeded to the Town shall anticipate and allow for flows from
possible future system extensions or developments within the future drainage areas.

Section 34.5.5 - Sewer Testing. All testing of sewers shall be conducted in the presence
of the Superintendent or designee. If the installation fails any test, the source of leakage



Page 3410

shall be found and repaired and all defective materials shall be replaced. (See specific
Construction and testing requirements in Appendix C.)

Section 34.5.6 - Sewer Extension Ownership/Bond. All sewer extensions constructed at
the property owner's, builder's or developer’s expense after final approval and letter of
acceptance by the Town Council, shall become the property of the Town and at the
Town's sole discretion shall thereinafter be maintained by the Town. The sewers after
their acceptance by the Town shall be guaranteed against defects in materials and
workmanship for twelve (12) months. The guarantee shall be in the form of a
maintenance guarantee bond in an amount not less than 100 percent of the Engineer’s
estimate of the cost of the extension. The Town is under no obligation to accept any
new sewer extension. Extensions that remain privately owned shall be maintained by
their owners.

Section 34.5.7 - Suitable Sewage Disposal Required. No builder or developer shall be
issued a building permit for a new dwelling or structure requiring sanitary facilities within
the Town, unless a sewer permit has been obtained for a suitable and approved method
of sewage disposal.

Section 34.5.8 - Connection of Sewer Extension to Public Sewer. Connection of the
sewer extension to the Town’s facilities shall not be permitted until, 1) the completed
sewer has been tested and passed to the satisfaction of the Superintendent, 2) all
building permits have been obtained and all fees have been paid to the Town for the
approved lots to be connected, 3) the one year maintenance guarantee bond in a form
acceptable to the Town has been delivered, and 4) a formal decision has been made by
the Town to retain the line as private and to allow its connection to the public sewer or to
allow it to be connected for later consideration for acceptance as a Town sewer.

Section 34.5.9 - Requirements for Acceptance of Sewer as Public. Should the Town, at
its sole discretion, elect to accept the connected sewer as a public sewer to be owned
by the Town, no such acceptance may be made until 1) reproducible record drawings of
the completed sewer have been provided to the Town, 2) an offer has been made from
the owner(s), builder(s) or developer(s), in a form acceptable to the Town, to transfer
ownership and maintenance responsibilities and property and easement rights to the
Town, and 3) the Town has formally agreed to accept the sewer line.

Article 34.6 Use of the Public Sewers

Section 34.6.1 - Discharge of Unpolluted Waters. No stormwater, surface water,
groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, uncontaminated cooling water, or
unpolluted industrial process waters shall be discharged or caused to be discharged to
any sanitary sewer. No direct connection shall be made from a public or private water
supply to a building drain discharging to any sanitary sewer without specific permission
from the Superintendent.

Section 34.6.2 - Discharge of Unpolluted Drainage to Natural Outlet. Stormwater and all
other unpolluted drainage shall be discharged to such sewers as are specifically
designated as storm sewers, or to a natural outlet approved by the Superintendent.




Page 3411

Unpolluted industrial cooling water or unpolluted process waters may be discharged, on
approval of the Superintendent, to a storm sewer or natural outlet if in accordance with
regulations of the Maine Department of Environmental Protection or 38 M.R.S.A. § 413
or other applicable standards. ’

Section 34.6.3 General Discharge Prohibitions. No user shall contribute or cause to be
contributed, directly or indirectly, any pollutant or wastewater which will interfere with the
operation or performance of the POTW or collection system whether or not the user is
subject to National Categorical Pretreatment Standards, or any other national, state or
local pretreatment standards or requirements. The following described waters or wastes
shall not be discharged or caused to be discharged to any public sewers:

(a.) Any liquids, solids or gases which by reason of their nature or quantity are
or may be sufficient either alone or by interaction with other substances to
cause fire or explosion or be injurious in any other way to the POTW or to
the operation of the POTW. At no time shall two successive readings on
an explosion hazard meter, at the point of discharge into the sewer system
be more than five (5) percent nor any single reading over ten (10) percent
of the Lower Explosive Limit (LEL) of the meter. Prohibited materials
include but are not limited to gasoline, kerosene, naphtha, benzene,
toluene, xylene, ethers, alcohol, ketones, aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates,
percolates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, and sulfides and other
substances which the Town, DEP or EPA has notified the user is a fire
hazard or a hazard to the system.

(i.) No person shall discharge wastewater containing in excess of the
following standards:

Bassimate: Maximum Daily Average
(mg/l) (mg/l)
Arsenic 4.0 1.0
Cadmium 0.6 0.5
Chlorine 15.0 15.0
Chromium 5.0 2.75
Copper 8.0 8.0
Lead 4.0 2.0
Mercury 0.2 0.1
Nickel 5.0 .
Phenolic Compounds 10 10
Silver 3.0 1.0
Zinc 10 5.0
Cyanide 3.0 2.0

(b.) Any wastewater containing toxic pollutants in sufficient quantity, either
singly or by interaction with other pollutants, to injure or interfere with any



()

(e)

()

(g.)

(h.)

Page 3412

wastewater treatment process, constitute a hazard to humans or animals,
create a toxic effect in the receiving waters of the POTW, or to exceed the
limitation set forth in a categorical pretreatment standard. A toxic
pollutant shall include but not be limited to any pollutant identified pursuant
to section 307(a) of the act.

The standards er-in subsection (a) above shall apply unless a more
stringent National Pretreatment Standard has been promulgated by EPA,
or as further regulated by the Town's Wastewater Discharge Permit or by
the Town's Superintendent in setting Local Limits to protect the treatment
plant. State requirements and limitations on discharges shall apply in any
case where they are more stringent than federal requirements and
limitations or those in this article. The Town reserves the right to establish
by Ordinance more stringent limitations or requirements on discharges to
the wastewater disposal system if deemed necessary to comply with the
objectives presented in-SactionArticle 34.0.

Waters or wastes having a single grab pH sample lower than 5.0 s.u. or
having a composite of less than 5.5 s.u., or any other corrosive property
capable of causing damage or hazard to structure or waters or wastes
having a single pH result of greater than 12.0 s.u. or a composite sample
in excess of 9.5 s.u.

Solid or viscous substances in quantities or of such size which may cause
obstruction to the flow in a sewer, or other interference with the operation
of the wastewater treatment facilities or collection system, such as, but not
limited to, grease, garbage with particles greater than one-half inch in any
dimension, animal guts or tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or
fleshing’s, entrails, whole blood, feathers, ashes cinders sand spent lime,
stone or marble dust, metal , glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags,
spent grains, spent hops, beer or distillery slops, wastepaper, cardboard,
paper dishes, disposable wipes, cups, milk containers, wood, plastics,
gravel, ashes, cinders, sand, concrete, gas, tar, asphalt residues,
residues from refining, or processing of fuel or lubricating oil, mud, or glass
grinding or polishing wastes, etc.

Garbage that has not been properly shredded. The installation and
operation of any garbage grinder equipped with a motor of three-fourths
(3/4) horsepower or greater shall be subject to the review and approval of
the Superintendent.

Any wastewater having a temperature which would inhibit biological
activity in the POTW treatment plant resulting in interference, but in no
case wastewater with a temperature at the introduction into the POTW
which exceeds 40 degrees Celsius (104 degrees Fahrenheit).

Water or waste containing fats, soluble fats, wax, grease, or oils, whether
emulsified or not, in excess of one hundred (100) mg/L or containing



)

(k.)

()

(m.)

(n.)

(p.)

Page 3413

substances, which may solidify or become viscous at temperatures
between thirty-two (32) and one hundred fifty (150) degrees Fahrenheit
(and O to 66 degrees Celsius) which, in the sole opinion of the
Superintendent, may overload or inhibit or otherwise cause adverse
impacts on the treatment plant and its processes or on the sewerage
collection system or its pump stations.

Waters or wastes containing strong acid, iron-pickling wastes, or
concentrated plating solutions whether neutralized or not.

Waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, and similar
objectionable, or toxic substances; or wastes exerting an excessive
chlorine requirement, to such degree that any such material received in
the composite sewage at the sewage treatment works exceeds the limits
established by the Superintendent for such materials.

Waters or wastes containing phenols or other taste or odor-producing
substances in such concentration not to exceed 10 mg/l or any other more
stringent limits, which may be established by the Superintendent as
necessary, after treatment of the composite sewage, to meet the
requirements of the State, Federal, or other public agencies of jurisdiction
for such discharge to the receiving waters.

Any wastewater containing radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life
or concentration as may exceed limits established by the Superintendent
in compliance with applicable State or Federal regulations.

Materials which exert or cause unusual concentrations of inert suspended
solids such as, but not limited to, Fiuller's earth, lime slurries and lime
residues, or dissolved solids such as; but not limited to, sodium chloride
and sodium sulfate.

Material which exert or cause excessive discoloration such as, but not
limited to, dye wastes and vegetable tanning solutions.

Any pollutants, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, etc.),
released at a flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which a user knows
or has reason to know will cause interference to the POTW. In no case
shall a slug load have a flow rate or contain concentration or quantities of
pollutants that exceed for any time period longer than 15 minutes more
than five times the average 24-hour concentration, quantities or flow
during normal operation. In no case shall a peak day discharge have a
flow rate or contain pollutant loadings of any controlled substance in
excess of twice the 30-day, 24-hour average flow, concentration or
quantity.

Materials which exert or cause unusual volume of flow or concentration of
wastes constituting “slugs” as defined herein.



(@)

(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)

(v)

(w.)

Page 3414

Overflowing by draining from cesspools or other receptacles storing
organic wastes.

Steam exhausts, boiler blow-off, sediment traps, or pipes carrying hot
circulating water.

-Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to
treatment or reduction by the sewage treatment process employed, which
may inhibit treatment plant processes or sludge use, disposal criteria,
guidelines or regulations developed under Section 405 of the Solid Waste
Disposal Act, the Clean Air-Act, the Toxic Substance Control Act or any
state criteria applicable to the Sludge Management Method used, or are
amenable to treatment only to such degree that the sewage treatment
plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies having
jurisdiction over discharge to the groundwater receiving waters of the
Town'’s wastewater treatment system.

Any noxious or malodorous liquids, gases or solids which either singly or
by interaction with other wastes, are sufficient to create a public nuisance
or hazard to life or are sufficient to prevent entry into sewers for
maintenance and repair.

Any stormwater, roof drains, spring water, cistern or tank overflow, footing
drains, discharge from any non-approved car wash, non-approved floor
drains or the contents of any privy vault, septic tank or cesspool. (The
Town’s goal is to review the discharge to the sewer system of certain
discharges such as car wash systems and commercial drain systems -
additional controls may be required by the Superintendent. Refer to
Section 34.6.5.)-

Any wastewater which causes a hazard to human life or creates a public
nuisance. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any
waters or wastes containing a toxic or poisonous substance, a high
chlorine or oxygen demand, or suspended solids in sufficient quantity to
injure or interfere with any sewage treatment process, constitute a hazard
to humans or animals, or create any hazard or violation in the groundwater
receiving waters or effluent of the Town's sewage treatment plant, or
contaminate or restrict the final end use of the treatment plant's sludge
residuals.

Any wastewater with objectionable color not removed in the treatment
process, such as but not limited to dye wastes and vegetable tanning
solutions which could cause a visible discoloration of the treatment's
plant's effluent.



Page 3415

(x.) Any waters or wastes containing suspended solids, whether inert or
organic, which would cause visible turbidity of the treatment plant's
effluent.

(y.) Any substance which will cause the POTW to violate its NPDES or/or state
disposal system permits or the receiving water quality standards.

(z.) Any septage, septic process or camper discharge without the express
written approval of the Superintendent or which causes pass through or
interference with the treatment works.

Section 34.6.4 - Pretreatment of High Strength Wastes. Any discharge of waters or
wastes having a) a five (5) day Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) greater than 300
parts per million; or b} containing more than 350 parts per million of suspended solids,
or ¢) containing more than 15 parts per million of chlorine demand, or d) containing any
quantity of substances having the characteristics described in this Article or e) having an
average daily flow or pollutant mass greater than two (2) percent of the average daily
sewage flow of the Town, shall be subject to the review and approval of the
Superintendent. Where necessary, in the opinion of the Superintendent, the owner shall
provide, at his expense, such pretreatment as may be necessary to, 1) reduce the
Biochemical Oxygen Demand to 300 parts per million and the suspended solids to 350
parts per million by weight, or 2) reduce the chlorine demand to 15 parts per million, or
3) reduce objectionable characteristics or constituents to within the maximum limits
provided for in this Article, or 4) control the quantities and rates of discharge of such
waters or wastes. Plans, specifications, and any other pertinent information relating to
proposed pretreatment facilities shall be submitted for the approval of the Town, and no
construction of such facilities shall be commenced until said approvals are obtained in
writing. Failure to comply with one or more of the remedial procedures as required by
the Town shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance.

Section 34.6.5 - Grease, Qil and Sand Interceptors. Grease, oil and sand interceptors
shall be provided by the producer when the Ordinance limits for those substances are
exceeded or when, in the opinion of the Superintendent or Code Enforcement Officer,
they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excess
amounts, or any flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients; except that such
interceptors shall not be required for private living units.

All interceptors shall be of a minimum type and capacity permitted by Maine Subsurface
Wastewater Disposal Rules, 144A CMR 241 and shall be approved by the
Superintendent prior to installation, and shall be located as to be readily and easily
accessible for cleaning and inspection. Although the Maine Internal Plumbing Code
Rules may permit smaller trap sizes, the provisions of the Maine Subsurface
Wastewater Rules, 144A CMR 241, shall prevail. External grease and oil receptors
shall be constructed of impervious materials capable of withstanding abrupt and
extreme changes in temperatures. They shall be of substantial construction, watertight,
and equipped with easily removable covers which, when bolted in place, shall be
gastight and watertight. In the maintenance of these interceptors, the owner shall be
responsible for the proper removal and disposal by appropriate means of the captured



Page 3416

material and shall maintain records of the dates and means of disposal, which are
subject to review by the Superintendent. A maintenance record shall be maintained by
the owner for the Town'’s periodic review for any removal and hauling of the collected
materials. Any removal and hauling of the collected materials not performed by the
owner's personnel must be performed by licensed waste disposal firms.

Section 34.6.6 - Treatment of Unusual Wastes. No statement contained in this Article
shall be construed as preventing any special agreement or arrangements between the
Town and any discharger whereby a waste of unusual strength or character may be
accepted by the Town for treatment, subject to payment by the discharger of concemn,
provided that such agreements do not contravene any requirements of existing federal
or state laws and/or regulations promulgated under such laws, and are compatible with
any user charge in effect.

Article 34.7 Pretreatment and Permitting of Industrial, Commercial or Unusual Wastes

Section 34.7.1 - Pretreatment, General. Users shall provide necessary wastewater
treatment as required to comply with this chapter and shall achieve compliance with all
National Categorical Pretreatment Standards within the time limitations specified by the
pretreatment regulations. Any facilities required to pretreat wastewater to a level
acceptable to the Town shall be provided, operated and maintained at the user's
expense. Detailed plans showing the pretreatment facilities and operating procedures
shall be submitted to the Town for review and shall be acceptable to the Town before
construction of the facility. The review of such plans and operational procedures will in
no way relieve the user from the responsibly of modifying the facility as necessary to
produce an effluent acceptable to the Town under the provisions of this chapter. Any
subsequent changes in the pretreatment facilities or method of operation shall be
reported to and be acceptable to the Town prior the user's initial initiation of the
changes.

Section 34.7.2 - Town’s Right to Require Pretreatment. If any waters or wastes are
discharged, or are proposed to be discharged to the public sewers, which waters
contain the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated in Section 34.6.3,
and which in the judgment of the Superintendent, may have a deleterious effect upon
the sewage works, processes, equipment, or receiving waters, or which otherwise
create a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the Town may:

(a.) Reject the wastes.

(b.) Advise the user of the impact of the contribution to the collection system or
POTW.

(c) Develop effluent limitations for such user to correct the interference with
the POTW and require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for
discharge to the public sewer.

(d.) Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge.



(e.)

Page 3417

Require payment to cover the added cost or sewer charges for the
handling and treatment of such wastes under the provisions of this
Ordinance.

If the Superintendent permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste
flows, the design and installation of the plants and equipment shall be
subject to the review and approval of the Superintendent and the Town,
and subject to the requirements of all applicable codes, ordinances, and
laws and Discharge Permit. Under no circumstances will the National
Categorical Pretreatment Standards or Federal Prohibited Discharges be
contravened.

Section 34.7.3 - Approval Process for Industrial, Commercial or Unusual Wastes. The
Town, at its discretion, may elect to allow an industrial or commercial or unusual waste
producer to utilize the sewage works provided that it can be demonstrated that
acceptance of the waste will result in:

(@)

(b.)

(c)

(d.)

(e.)

(f)

No violation of applicable Federal or State regulations, including
DEP/EPA pretreatment requirements.

No inhibition of, or damage to, the treatment plant's processes or
equipment and no upsets of the plant's processes which lead to
nuisance conditions, operational problems, or discharge license non-
compliance.

No pass through of any waste material not treatable in the Town's
treatment plant.

No contamination of the Town’s sewage sludge with toxic or undesirable
waste constituents and no impairment of the Town's ability to dispose of
the treatment plant's sludge residuals.

No creation of hazardous or unsafe conditions in the sewer system or
treatment plant which might jeopardize the health and welfare of the
general public or the Town's staff.

Equitable allocation of sewer user fees such that the true cost of treating
the industrial or unusual waste is fully borne by the sewer user that
generated the wastes.

Section 34.7.4 - Flow Equalization. Prior to accepting the waste, the Town may require
that appropriate industrial or unusual wastes undergo pretreatment or flow equalization
prior to its discharge into the Town's sewer system.

Section 34.7.5 - Pretreatment Operation and Maintenance. Where preliminary treatment
or flow-equalizing facilities are provided for any waters or wastes, they shall be
maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective operation by the owner at his

expense.




Page 3418

Section 34.7.6 - Monitoring Facilities. The Town shall require to be provided and
operated at the user’'s own expense monitoring facilities to allow inspection, sampling
and flow measurement of the building sewer and/or internal drainage systems. The
monitoring facility should normally be situated on the user's premises; but the Town
may, when such a location would be impractical or cause undue hardship on the user,
allow the facility to be constructed in the public street or sidewalk area and located so
that it will not be obstructed by landscaping or parked vehicles. There shall be ample
room in or near such or facilities to allow accurate sampling and preparation of samples
for analysis. The facility, sampling and measuring equipment shall be maintained at all
times in a safe and proper operating condition at the expense of the user. Whether
constructed on public or private property, the sampling and monitoring facilities shall be
provided in accordance with the Town's requirements and applicable local construction
standards and specifications. Construction shall be completed within 90 days following
written notification by the Town.

Section 34.7.7 - Sampling Manholes. When required by the Superintendent, the owner
of any property serviced by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes or other
discharges of concern shall install a suitable control manhole, together with such
necessary meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer, to facilitate
observation sampling and measurement of the wastes. Such manhole, when required,
shall be accessible and safely located, and shall be constructed in accordance with
plans approved by the Superintendent. The manhole shall be installed by the owner at
his expense and shall be maintained by him to be safe and accessible to the
Superintendent at all times.

Section 34.7.8 - Sampling and Analysis Procedures. All industries discharging in to a
public sewer shall permit such monitoring of their discharges as the Superintendent may
reasonably require, including installation, use and maintenance of monitoring equipment
and keeping records and reporting the results of such monitoring to the Superintendent.
Such records shall be made available upon request by the Superintendent to other
agencies having jurisdiction over discharges to the receiving waters. All measurements,
tests and analysis of the characteristics of waters and wastes to which reference is
made in this article shall be determined in accordance with procedures established by
the administrator of the EPA pursuant to Section 304 (g) of the Act and contained in 40
CFR 136, or with any other test procedures approved by the administrator. Sampling
shall be at the control manhole or other designated sampling location approved by the
Superintendent.

Section 34.7.9 - Dilution is not Permitted. No discharger or user shall ever increase the
use of potable or process water or in any way attempt to dilute a discharge as a partial
or complete substitute for adequate treatment to achieve compliance with the National
Categorical Pretreatment Standards, or in any other pollutant-specific limitation
developed by the Town or State.

Section 34.7.10 - Requirements for Wastewater Discharge Permit for Categorical
Pretreatment Standards. Upon the promulgation of the National Categorical




Page 3419

Pretreatment Standards for a particular industrial subcategory, the national standard, if
more stringent than the limitations imposed under this Aarticle for sources in that
subcategory, shall immediately supersede the limitations imposed under this Aarticle.
The superintendent shall notify all affected users of the applicable reporting
requirements under 40 CFR 403.12.

Section 34.7.11 - Modification of National Categorical Pretreatment Standards. Within
nine months of the promulgation of a National Categorical Pretreatment Standard, the
wastewater discharge permit of user's subject to such standards shall be revised to
require compliance with such standard within the time frame prescribed by such
standard. Where a user subject to a National Categorical Pretreatment Standard has not
previously submitted an application for a wastewater discharge permit as required by
Section 34.7.10, the user shall apply for a wastewater discharge permit within 180 days
after the promulgation of the applicable National Categorical Pretreatment Standard. In
addition, the user with an existing wastewater discharge permit shall submit to the
Superintendent within 180 days after the promulgation of an applicable National
Categorical Pretreatment Standard the information required by Section 34.7.13 (a)
- through (o).

Where the Town's wastewater treatment system achieves consistent removal of
pollutants limited by national pretreatment standards, the Town may apply to the
approval authority for the modification of specific limits in the national pretreatment
standards. The term "consistent removal" shall mean reduction in the amount of a
pollutant or alteration of the nature of the pollutant by the wastewater treatment system
to a less toxic or harmless state in the effluent which is achieved by the system in 95
percent of the samples taken when measured according to the procedures set forth in
40 CFR 403.7(c)(2)-General Pretreatment Regulations-for Existing and-New-Sources-of
Pollution-promulgated-pursuant-the act. The Town may then modify pollutant discharge
limits in the national pretreatment standards if the requirements contained in 40 CFR
403.7 are fulfilled and prior approval from the approval authority is obtained.

Section 34.7.12 - Development of Local Limits. Local limits for certain pollutants may
also be established by the Town to protect against pass-through, interference, process
inhibition and damage, safety concerns, and sludge residual contamination or any other
regulatory or operational concern. No person shall discharge wastewater containing in
excess of the instantaneous maximum allowable discharge limits as identified in this
Ordinance or on the user's wastewater discharge permit. All discharge limits shall be
technically based and approved by the appropriate regulatory agency.

Section 34.7.13 Wastewater Application Form and Requirements. When required by
the Superintendent or Town, users must complete a wastewater application form, on a
form supplied by the Superintendent, which contains information on the nature and
characteristics of their wastes. This application must be submitted to the
Superintendent prior to the discharge of the user's wastewater info the Town's sewage
works. All new applications shall be accompanied by a fee as established in Appendix
B. The Superintendent is authorized to prepare a form for this purpose and may
periodically require existing users to update the information provided to determine




Page 3420

compliance with this Aarticle. Failure to complete the submission of updated
information shall be reasonable grounds for terminating service to the user and shall be
considered a violation of this Ordinance. Existing industrial dischargers or any other
commercial establishment shall file wastewater application forms or provide updated
information within thirty (30) days after being notified by the Superintendent or the Town,
and proposed new dischargers shall file such forms at least ninety (90) days prior to
connecting to the sewage works. The form shall include as applicable, but not be
limited to, the following information:

(@)
(b.)

(c.)

(d.)

(f)

)

(h.)

The name, address, and location of the user.

The SIC number according to the Standard Industrial Classification
Manual, Bureau of the Budget 1972, as amended and as applicable.

Chemical analysis of wastewaters - Wastewater constituents and
characteristics including but not limited to those listed in this Ordinance as
determined by a reliable analytical laboratory. Any sampling and analysis
that is required by the Town shall be performed in accordance with
procedures established by the EPA pursuant to section 304(g) of the
Clean Water Act (33 USC 1201 et seq.) and contained in 40 CFR 136, as
amended or the latest edition of Standard Methods. The costs of all such
sampling, analysis, and reporting shall be fully borne by the user.

The time and duration of discharge or contribution.

Wastewaters discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period.
The average daily, instantaneous peak and 30-minute peak wastewater
flow rates, in gallons per day, including daily, monthly and seasonal
variations, if any. All flows shall be as actually measured unless other
verifiable measurement techniques are approved by the Town.

A plot plan of sewers of the user's property showing sewer an
pretreatment facility location - The site plans, floor plans, pretreatment
facility location and details, mechanical and plumbing plans and details to
show all sewers, sewer connections, inspection manholes, sampling
chambers and appurtenances by size, location, and elevation adjacent to,
or at, the user's premises.

Description of the activities, facilities, and plant processes on the
premises, including all materials which are, or could be, discharged.

Where known, the nature and concentration of any pollutants in the
discharge which are limited by any Town, State ef-or Federal pretreatment
standards, and a statement regarding whether or not compliance is being,
or will be, achieved with this Ordinance or pretreatment regulations on a
consistent basis, and if not, whether additional operation and maintenance
activities and/or additional pretreatment is required for the user to comply
with this Ordinance and applicable pretreatment standards.



Page 3421

(i) The identification of each product produced by the user by type, amount,
process or processes, and rate of production.

(i) The type and amount of raw materials processed, average and maximum
per day, by the user.

(k.) Number and type of employees, and hours of operation of plant and
proposed or actual hours of operation of pretreatment system.

() Quantity and disposition of specific liquids, sludges, oils, solvents, or other
materials important for sewer use control.

(m.) Details of systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through
spills to the municipal sewer.

(n) If additional pretreatment and/or O&M will be required to meet the
pretreatment standards, the shortest schedule by which the user will
provide such additional pretreatment. The completion date in this schedule
shall not be later than the compliance date established for the applicable
pretreatment standard. (See Section 34.7.26.)-

(0.)  Any other information as may be deemed by the Town to be necessary to
evaluate the permit application.

Section 34.7.14 - Required Signatory. All disclosure forms, applications and any
periodic reports submitted by a user shall be signed by the principal executive officer of
the user and shall contain the following certification: “I certify under penalty of law that
this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in
accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather
and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the persons who
manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information,
the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and
complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information,
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations”.

Section 34.7.15 - Evaluation of Application Forms. The Superintendent or designee will
evaluate the completed wastewater permit application forms furnished by the user and
may require the user to furnish additional information. The User shall submit within
fifteen (15) days, after receiving notification form the Superintendent, that the additional
information is required. After full evaluation and acceptance of all of the data furnished,
the Superintendent or Town may issue a wastewater discharge permit subject to terms
and conditions provided in this Section.

Section 34.7.16 - Requirements of Categorical Users. Every new or existing user of the
Town's sewage works who is determined to be a categorical user or significant industrial
user as defined in this Ordinance is required to obtain a wastewater discharge permit
from the Superintendent.




Page 3422

Section 34.7.17 - Prevention of Pass-through and Interference. Wastewater discharge
permits shall include such conditions as are reasonably deemed necessary by the
Superintendent to prevent waste pass-through or interference, protect the quality of the
water body receiving the treatment plant's effluent, protect worker health and safety,
facilitate sludge management and disposal, and protect against damage to the sewage
works. Wastewater discharge permits may impose effluent restrictions or limits on the
user if the Superintendent determines that such limits are necessary to protect the
quality of the treatment plant influent, effluent, or sludge, or to maintain compliance with
any applicable Federal or State law, including requirements under the Town’s DEP or
NPDES permit and national categorical pretreatment standards for new and existing
sources set forth in 40 CFR Chapter |, Subchapter N Parts 401-471.

Section 34.7.18 - Permit Conditions. Wastewater discharge permits shall be expressly
subject to all provisions of this Article and all other applicable regulations, user charges
and fees established by the Town. Permits may contain the following:

(a.) The unit charge or schedule of user charges and fees for the wastewater to
be discharged to a community sewer.

(b) Limits on the average and maximum wastewater constituents and
characteristics.

(c.) Limits on average and maximum rate and time of discharge or requirements
for flow regulations and equalization.

(d.) Requirements for installation and maintenance of inspection and sampling
facilities.

(e.) Specifications for monitoring programs, which may include sampling
locations, frequency of sampling, number, types and standards for tests and
reporting schedule.

(f.) Compliance schedules.

(g.) Requirements for submission of technical reports or compliance reports. (See
Section 34.7.27.):

(h.) Requirements for maintaining and retaining plant records relating to
wastewater discharge as specified by the Town and affording town access to
such records.

(i.) Requirements for notification of the Town of any new introduction of
wastewater constituents or any substantial change in the volume or character



Page 3423

of the wastewater constituents being introduced into the wastewater
treatment system.

() Requirements for notification of slug discharges as per Section 34.7.23.

(k.) Other conditions as deemed appropriate by the Town to ensure compliance
with this SectienArticle.

Section 34.7.19 - Permit Duration. Wastewater discharge permits shall be issued for a
specified time period not to exceed five (5) years. A permit may be issued for a period
less than a year or may be stated to expire on a specific date. The user shall apply for
permit reissuance a minimum of 180 days prior to the expiration of the user's existing
permit. The terms and conditions of the permit may be subject to modification by the
Town during the term of the permit as limitations or requirements as identified in- this
Ordinance are modified or other just cause exists. Each wastewater discharge permit
shall indicate a specific date upon which it will expire. The user shall be informed of any
proposed changes in his permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the change.
Any changes or new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule
for compliance.

Section 34.7.20 - Permit Modifications. The Superintendent may modify, at any time, the
wastewater discharge permit with good cause. The user shall be informed of any
proposed changes in his permit at least 30 days prior to the effective date of change.
Any changes or new conditions in the permit shall include a reasonable time schedule
for compliance.

Section 34.7.21 - Transfer of Ownership. Wastewater discharge permits are issued to a
specific user for a specific operation. A wastewater discharge permit shall not be
reassigned or transferred or sold to a new owner or a new user, different premises, or a
new or changed operation without the approval of the Town. To facilitate the issuance
of new, separate permits, the Superintendent may allow new owners or individuals to
operate under an existing wastewater discharge permit for a period not to exceed ninety
(90) days. Any succeeding owner or user shall also comply with the terms and
conditions of the existing permit.

Section 34.7.22 - Requirement for Pretreatment Devices. Wastewater discharge permits
may contain requirements and compliance schedules for the installation of pretreatment
technology, pollution control, or construction of appropriate containment devices, any of
which would be designed to reduce, eliminate, or prevent the introduction of pollutants
into the Town's sewage system.

Section 34.7.23 - Accidental Discharges/Slug Control Plan. Each user shall provide
protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or other substances
regulated by this Aarticle. The Superintendent may require any user to develop and
implement an accidental discharge/slug control plan. At least once every five (5) years,
the Superintendent shall evaluate whether each significant industrial user needs such a




Page 3424

plan. Facilities to prevent accidental discharge of prohibited materials shall be provided
and maintained at the owner’s or user's own cost and expense. Detailed plans showing
facilities and operating procedures to provide this protection shall be submitted to the
Town for review, and shall be approved by the Town before construction of the facility.
Review and approval of such plans and operating procedures shall not relieve the
industrial user from the responsibly to modify the user’s facility as necessary to meet the
requirements of this Aarticle. In the case of an accidental discharge, it is the
responsibility of the user to immediately telephone and notify the POTW of the incident.
The notification shall include location of discharge, type of waste, concentration and
volume, and corrective actions. Any user required to develop and implement an
accidental discharge/slug control plan shall submit a plan which addresses, at a
minimum, the following:

(a.)  Description of discharge practices, including nonroutine batch discharges;
(b.) Description of stored chemicals;

(c.) Procedures for immediately notifying the Town of any accidental or slug
discharge. Such notification must also be given for any discharge which
would violate any of the prohibited discharges in this Ordinance; and

(d.) Procedures to prevent adverse sewage system impacts from any
accidental or slug discharge. Such procedures include, but are not limited
to, inspection and maintenance of storage areas, handling and transfer of
materials, loading and unloading operations, control of plant site runoff,
worker training, building of containment structures or equipment,
measures for containing toxic organic pollutants (including solvents),
and/or measures and equipment for emergency response.

Section 34.7.24 - Written Notice of Accidental Discharge - Within five (5) days following
an accidental discharge, the user shall submit to the superintendent a detailed written
report describing the cause of the discharge and the measures to be taken by the user
to prevent similar future occurrences. Such notification shall not relieve the user of any
expenses, loss, damage or other liability which may be incurred as a result of damage to
the POTW, fish Kkills, or any other damage to persons or property; nor shall such
notification relieve the user of any fines, civil penalties or other liability which may be
imposed by this Azrticle or other applicable law.

Section 34.7.25 - Notice to Employees - A notice shall be permanently posted on the
user's bulletin board or other prominent place advising employees whom to call in the
event of an accidental discharge. Employers shall ensure that all employees who may
cause or suffer such an accidental discharge to occur are advised of the emergency
notification procedure.

Section 34.7.26 - Pretreatment Compliance Schedule. Where additional pretreatment
and/or operations or maintenance activities will be required to comply with this
Ordinance, the user shall provide a declaration of the shortest schedule by which the
user will provide such additional pretreatment and/or implementation of additional




Page 3425

operations and maintenance activities. The Town reserves the right to determine the
reasonableness of the proposed schedule, to modify the proposed schedule, or to reject
the schedule.

(a.) The schedule shall contain increments of progress in the form of milestone
dates for the commencement and completion of major events leading to
the construction and operation of additional pretreatment required for the
user to meet the applicable pretreatment standards, including, but not
limited to, dates relating to hiring an engineer, completing preliminary
plans, completing final plans, executing contracts for major components,
commencing construction, completing construction, and all other acts
necessary to achieve compliance with this Ordinance.

(b.) No later than fourteen (14) days following each date in the schedule and
the final date for compliance, the user shall submit a progress report to the
Superintendent including, as a minimum, whether or not it complied with
the increment of progress to be met on such date and, if not, the date on
which it expects to comply with this increment of progress, the reason for
delay, and the steps being taken by the user to retumn to the established
schedule.

(c.) In no event shall more than nine months elapse between such progress
reports to the Superintendent.

Section 34.7.27 - Compliance Reports. Within 90 days following the date for final
compliance with applicable pretreatment standards or, in the case of a new source,
following commencement of the introduction of wastewater into the publicly owned
treatment works, any user subject to pretreatment standards and requirements shall
submit to the Superintendent a report. All significant industrial user(s) shall, at a
frequency stated in their wastewater permit or as determined by the Superintendent, but
in no case less than twice per year, submit a report to the Superintendent. The report
shall indicate the nature and concentration of pollutants in the discharge from the
regulated processes which are limited by pretreatment standards and requirements and
the average and maximum daily flow for these process units in the user facility which
are limited by such pretreatment standards or requirements. All periodic compliance
reports must be signed and certified in accordance with this Ordinance. All wastewater
samples collected must be representative of the user's discharge. Wastewater
monitoring and flow measurement facilities shall be properly operated, kept clean, and
maintained in good working order at all times. The failure of a user to keep its
monitoring facility in good working order shall not be grounds for the user to claim that
sample results are unrepresentative of its discharge. If a user subject to the reporting
requirement in this Ordinance or its permit monitors any pollutant more frequently than
required, the results of this additional monitoring shall also be included in the report.
The report shall state whether the applicable pretreatment standards or requirements
are being met on a consistent basis and, if not, what additional Operation and
Maintenance (O&M) and/or pretreatment is necessary to bring the user into compliance
with the applicable pretreatment standards or requirements. This statement shall be




Page 3426

signed by an authorized representative of the industrial user and certified by a qualified
professional engineer.

(a.) Any user subject to a pretreatment standard, after the compliance date of such
pretreatment standard, or, in the case of a new source, after commencement of
the discharge into the publicly owned treatment works, shall submit to the
Superintendent during the months of June and December, unless required
more frequently in the pretreatment standard or by the Superintendent, a report
indicating the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effluent which are
limited by such pretreatment standards. In addition, this report shall include a
record of all daily flows which during the reporting period exceeded the
average daily flow. At the discretion of the Superintendent and in consideration
of such factors as local high or low flow rates, holidays, budget cycles, etc., the
Superintendent may agree to alter the months during which these reports are
to be submitted.

(b.) The Superintendent may impose mass limitations on users. In such cases, the
report required by subsection (a) of this section shall indicate the mass of
pollutants regulated by pretreatment standards in the effluent of the user.
These reports shall contain the results of sampling and analysis of the
discharge, including the flow, nature, concentration and mass where requested
by the Superintendent, of pollutants contained in the discharge which are
limited by the applicable pretreatment standard. All analyses shall be
performed in accordance with procedures established by the administrator
pursuant to section 304(g) of the clean water act and contained in 40 CFR 136
as amended or with any other test procedures approved by the administrator.
Sampling shall be performed in accordance with the techniques approved by
the administrator.

(Note: Where 40 CFR does not include a sampling or analytical technique for
the pollutant in question, sampling and analysis shall be performed in
accordance with the procedures set forth in the EPA publication, Sampling and
Analysis Procedures for Screening of Industrial Effluents for Priority Pollutants,
April, 1977, as amended, or with any other sampling and analytical procedures
approved by the administraterSuperintendent.)

Section 34.7.28 - Planned Significant Changes. Each user must notify the
Superintendent in writing of any planned significant changes to its operations or process
systems which might alter the nature, quality or volume of its wastewater at least sixty
(45) days before the change. No user shall implement the planned changed
condition(s) until and unless the Superintendent has responded in writing to the user's
notice.  Significant changes include, but are not limited to, flow or pollutant load
increases of ten percent (10%) or greater, and the discharge of any previously
unreported pollutants.

Section 34.7.29 - Sampling Violations. If sampling performed by a user indicates a
violation of their permit or this Ordinance, the user must notify the Superintendent within




Page 3427

twenty-four (24) hours of becoming aware of the violation. The user shall also repeat
the sampling and analysis and submit the results of the repeat analysis to the
Superintendent within thirty (30) days after becoming aware of the violation. In the case
of any discharge, including, but not limited to, hazardous waste discharges, accidental
discharges, discharges of a nonroutine or episodic nature, a noncustomary batch
discharge, or a slug load that may cause potential problems for the sewage works, the
user shall immediately telephone and notify the Superintendent of the incident. This
notification shall include the location of the discharge, type of waste, concentration and
volume, if known, and corrective actions taken by the user. (See Reporting
Requirements included in Section 34.7.24 and Notice Requirements in Section 34.7.25.)

Article 34.8 Power and Authority of Inspectors

Section 34.8.1 - Private Property. The Superintendent, the Town Engineer, and other
duly authorized employees of the Town bearing proper credentials and identification
shall be permitted to enter upon all industrial and commercial properties for the purpose
of inspection, observation, measurement, sampling and testing, in accordance with the
provisions of this chapter. Persons or occupants of premises shall allow the Town or its
representative ready access to all locations where wastewater is created or discharged
at all reasonable times for the purposes of inspection, sampling, records examination or
copying, or in the performance of any of their duties. Where a user has security
measures in force which would require proper identification and clearance before entry
into his premises, the user shall make necessary arrangements with his security guards
so that upon presentation of suitable identification, personnel from the town and the
approval authority will be permitted to enter, without delay, for the purposes of
performing their specific responsibilities. Inspection of private residences, upon
complaint, will be completed after 24-hour notice by the Superintendent.

Section 34.8.2 - Public Easement. The Superintendent, and other duly authorized
employees of the Town bearing proper credentials and identifications shall be permitted
to enter all private properties through which the Town holds a duly negotiated easement
for the purposes of, but not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling,
repair, and maintenance of any portion of the sewer works lying within the easement.
All entry and subsequent work, if any, on said easement, shall be done in f
accordance with the terms of the duly negotiated easement pertaining to the private
property involved.

Section 34.8.3 - Inspection of Installations. All installations shall be inspected before
burying by a duly authorized inspector employed by the Town.

Section 34.8.4 - Sampling and Metering Authority. The Superintendent shall have the
authority to set up, on the user’s property, or require installation of, such devices as are
necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the user's waste discharges. The
user shall bear the costs of such setup or installation. (Also see Section 34.7.6.)

Section 34.8.5 - Sampling and Monitoring Equipment Required. The Town may require
the user to install monitoring equipment as the Superintendent deems necessary. The
user's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and




Page 3428

proper operating condition by the user at its own expense. All devices used to measure
wastewater flow and quality shall be calibrated at least annually to ensure their
accuracy. (Also see Section 34.7.6 and 34.7.7.)-

Section 34.8.6 - Availability of Records. Users subject to the reporting requirements of
this Ordinance shall retain, and make available for inspection and copying, all records or
information obtained pursuant to any monitoring activities required by this Ordinance
and any additional records or information obtained pursuant to monitoring activities
undertaken by the user independent of such requirements. Records shall include, but
are not limited to, the date, exact place, method, and time of sampling and the name of
the person(s) taking the samples; the dates analyses were performed; who performed
the analyses; the analytical techniques or methods used; and the results of such
analyses. These records shall be retained by the user for a period of at least three (3)
years. This period shall be automatically extended for the duration of any litigation
concerning the user or the Town, or where the user has been specifically notified of a
longer retention period by the Superintendent.

Section 34.8.7 - Confidential Information. Information and data on a user obtained from
reports, questionnaires, permit applications, and monitoring programs, and from the
Superintendent’s inspections and sampling activities, shall be available to the public or
other governmental agency without restriction, unless the user specifically requests, and
is able to demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Superintendent, that the release of such
information would divulge information, processes or methods of production entitled to
protection as trade secrets or proprietary information of the user under applicable State
or Federal law. Effluent data shall be considered a matter of public information at all
times, however.

When requested by, and demonstrated by the user furnishing a report, that such
information should be held confidential, the portions of a report which might disclose
trade secrets or secret processes shall not be made available for inspection by the
public, but shall be made available immediately, upon request, to State and Federal
governmental agencies for users related to this Section, the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit, state disposal system permit and/or the
pretreatment programs and such portions of a report shall also be available for use by
the state of any state agency in judicial review or enforcement proceedings involving the
person furnishing the report. Wastewater constituents and characteristics will not be
recognized as confidential information. Information accepted by the Town as
confidential shall not be transmitted to the general public by the Town.

Section 34.8.8 - Access Refused. If the Superintendent or designee has been refused
access to any building, structure or property, or any part thereof, for the purpose of
inspecting, sampling or otherwise monitoring compliance with this Ordinance, the Town
Council shall seek to secure an Administrative Inspection Warrant from the District Court
pursuant to Rule 80E of Maine Rules of Civil Procedure. The warrant, if issued by the
District Court, shall be executed pursuant to Rule 80E of Maine Rules of Civil Procedure
and the Superintendent shall be accompanied by a uniformed Town police officer during
said execution.



Page 3429

Article 34.9 Sewer Service Fees, Rates and Charges

Section 34.9.1 - General - The Town may change and adopt charges and fees included
in Appendix B which may include:

a. Fees for reimbursement of costs of setting up and operating the Town's
pretreatment program;

b. Fees for monitoring, inspections and surveillance procedures;

c. Fees for reviewing accidental discharge procedures and construction;

d. Fees for permit applications;

e. Fees forfiling appeals;

f. Fees for consistent removal by the Town of pollutants otherwise subject to federal

pretreatment standards; and
g. Other fees as the Town may deem necessary to carry out the requirements
contained in this Ordinance.

2) These fees relate solely to the matters covered by this Ordinance and are separate
from all other fees chargeable by the Town.

Section 34.9.2 - Source of Revenues. The source of the revenues needed for retiring
debt services, capital expenditures, operation and maintenance of the public sewer
system shall be a sewer service charge assigned to Owners of property located within
the limits of the Town whose residency, property or place of business is connected
within the boundaries of the public sewer system.

Section 34.9.3 - Establishment of Rates. Sewer service charge rates, including "Ready-
to-Serve" charges shall be determined by the Town Council after notice and hearing.
This charge will be computed and billed on a quarterly basis throughout each calendar
year and will be based on the volume of water consumed, as determined by records of
the Water Department. In the event, the water supply is not metered, the customer shall
be billed at a flat rate determined by multiplying together the number of bedrooms in the
dwelling unit, 1,100 cubic feet per quarter per bedroom, and the prevailing user charge
per cubic foot. The number of units will be determined by assessment records or an
assessor's review. Alternatively, a customer at his own expense can purchase a meter
and outside reader from the Water Department in order to obtain a metered rate. Each
customer shall be required to install the meter and outside reader utilizing a licensed
plumber at their own expense.

Section 34.9.4 - Billing Abatements. All billing shall also be subject to just and equitable
discounts and abatements in exceptional cases (Refer to Section 34.11), or in the case
of private water supply, a fair estimate shall be used or reading from an installed water
meter shall be made. (Refer to Section 34.11.4). The Town may also assess capacity
consumption fees and impact fees, as applicable, for new or modified sewer
connections. (Refer to Sections 34.9.9.)-

Section 34.9.5 - Summer Usage Policy. To allow for the correction for the excessive
summer usage due to irrigation and filling pools, billing for the two summer quarters will




Page 3430

be based on the average of the two winter quarters or consumption reported by the
Lisbon Water Department, whichever is less. (Refer to Appendix D.)

Section 34.9.6 - Changes in Rates. The Town Council reserves the right to change the
rates of sewer service charges originally or previously assigned to any property owner.

Section 34.9.7 -Collection of Unpaid Rates. The owner of the property connected to the
municipal sewer will be charged for the use of sewer service. Each sewer charge levied
pursuant to this division which remains unpaid shall be collected as provided in 30-A
M.R.S. A. § 3406(3). (See Article 34.10.)

Section 34.9.8 - Interest Charges. An interest charge at the same rate as established by
the Town for uncollected taxes will be made on all sewer bills not paid within thirty (30)
days after the due date.

Section 34.9.9 - Special Industrial or Commercial_Rates. A special sewer service
charge shall be established for any industrial firm, commercial user, who, by virtue of the
volume, strength or unusual characteristic of their waste alone, would overload or upset
the capacity of efficiency of the sewerage works or any part thereof if such waste
entered the public sewer, if the cost to treat that wastewater is higher than that of typical
domestic sanitary sewage, or whose waste disposal situation is such that it would be in
the public interest to waive the basic requirements. The Town, after appropriate study,
shall establish a Special Sewer Service Charge to the industrial firm, commercial user,
or organization by separate agreement with said firm. The appropriate portions of the
proceeding-preceding sections, as well as the equitable rights of the public, shall be the

basis for such an arrangement.

Section 34.9.10 - "Ready-to-Serve" Fee. The Town may assess a “Ready-to-Serve” fee
to be paid by any property owner (with an improved lot or vacant lot) that has an active
Building Permit and Sewer Application Permit or if the lot was previously billed, unless
the stub has been capped as approved by the Superintendent. This only applies when
the public sewer service is available within two-hundred feet (200°) of the structure to be
served, but for any reason, has yet to connect to the sewer, provided that a building
sewer stub has been installed and is ready for connection. If no building sewer stub is
in-place, no Ready-to-Serve fee will be assessed. This fee is intended to offset the cost
of making sewer service available to the property in the future even though there is not a
current physical connection. This fee will be billed quarterly at the same time as
connected sewer users receive their sewer bills.

Section 34.9.11 - Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee - Before the issuance of a connection
permit for any activity requiring a connection permit under this Ordinance, the applicant
shall pay to the Town a sanitary sewer connection fee in accordance with a fee schedule
established by order of the Town Council as shown in Appendix B. The purpose of this
fee is to allow the Town to recover a portion of the costs of the wastewater infrastructure
capacity which will be consumed by a new sewer user or by the modified use of an
existing sewer user.




Page 3431

Section 34.9.12 - Impact Fee for Existing Infrastructure. In instances where any
proposed development or use of any parcel of land in the Town results in the need to
construct, replace, upgrade, reconstruct, enlarge, expand, or repair any essential
infrastructure of the sanitary sewer system in order to accommodate the wastewater
attributable to the proposed development or use, the Town may require the payment of
an impact fee to cover the costs of the required improvements. The amount of the
impact fee shall be determined by the Town Council based on the portion of the
improvements that will be utilized by the development or use. All impact fees shall be
deposited into a special interest-bearing reserve fund, and any impact fee may only be
expended for the purpose for which it was collected. If the Town does not use any
impact fee within ten years from the date of payment, Town shall refund that impact fee,
with interest, to the person who paid the fee, or that person’s successor or assignee. In
addition, Town shall refund any portion of the impact fee that exceeds the
development's share of the Town's actual costs for the improvements associated with
that impact fee. If the development or use for which an impact fee was paid is not
commenced within two years from the date of payment of the fee, the Town shall refund
the impact fee, with interest, to the person who paid the fee, or that person’s successor
or assignee, unless the Town and the person enter into a written agreement extending
the time for the commencement of the development or use. Provided, however, that if
Town has incurred costs or entered into obligations in reliance on the proposed
development and the payment of the impact fee, Town may retain so much of the impact
fee as may be reasonably necessary and appropriate to cover those costs or
obligations.

Section 34.9.13 - Construction of Excess Capacity. The Town may elect, at its sole
discretion, to construct excess capacity in a serviee area in conjunction with a project
requiring the assessment of an impact fee. For example, a new sewer line upgrade or a
pump station upgrade may be constructed with capacity beyond that needed for the
current project since the sizing of such projects is not exact. Should a developer pay the
full cost of a project through impact fees, the Town shall collect proportionate impact
fees from future connections that benefit from the added capacity and shall refund the
newly collected fees to the previous developer or their assignees. Should the Town
elect to pay a portion of the initial capital costs for which impact fees are assessed, it
may recover proportionate future impact fees from future connected sewer users that
benefit from the added incremental capacity that was provided.

Article 34.10 Liens for Non-Payment

Section 34.10.1 Each sewer charge levied pursuant to the ordinance is hereby
made a lien on the premises and if the same is not paid within 30 days after it shall be
due and payable, it shall be certified to the Treasurer of the Town who shall place the
same on the real property tax bill for that year with interest and penalties allowed by law,
and be collected as other Town taxes are collected.

Section 34.10.2 There shall be a lien placed on real estate served or benefited by a
municipal sewer to secure the payment of sewer service charges duly established
hereunder which shall take precedence over all other claims on such real estate
excepting only claims for taxes. The Town shall have the same authority and power to



Page 3432

collect such sewer service charges as are granted in 38 M.R.S.A. § 3406 as amended.
In addition to the lien established hereby, the Town may bring a civil action against the
party so charged for the amount of said sewer service charges in any court competent to
try the same, and in such action, may recover the amount of such charges with legal
interest on the same from the date of said charge plus costs.

Article 34.11 Abatements

Section 34.11.1 - Abatement Recommendation and Due Care. All requests for sewer
abatements shall be forwarded to the Superintendent for his recommendation and then
shall be forwarded to the Town Manager for decision. Abatements of sewer use
charges may be granted by the Town Manager based on recommendation by the
Superintendent upon application of a ratepayer where the ratepayer can demonstrate
that a "loss” of water that did not enter the sewer occurred due to no fault of the
ratepayer, his or her agents, or employees. Ratepayers are responsible for exercising
“due care” in the maintenance of their water and sewer systems to prevent water losses
for purposes of abatement. “Due care” shall be defined as the normal and reasonable
steps which would be taken by a prudent individual in operating and maintaining their
water and sewer systems. Abatements may also be granted if an applicant can
demonstrate that an error in billing occurred or that significant volumes of water did not
enter the sewer.

Section 34.11.2 - One-Time Sewer Usage Abatement. A Qone-time sewer abatement
will be assessed at the request of the property owner for consumption calculated to be
above four times the average water use for the previous year. This abatement can only
be used once per each property owner.

Section 34.11.3 - Abatement Review. The Town Manager shall be responsible for
reviewing the basis for the requested abatement in light of the “due care" standard
established in Section 34.11.1 above. The Superintendent or his designee shall make a
record of the results of the investigation which shall include an estimate of the amount of
water lost. The estimate of water loss shall be based on the previous four quarters of
water consumption, if available, and consideration of seasonal water use patterns. If not
available, the abatement shall be based on the current flat rate billing procedure until
such time there are a minimum of two (2) quarters available. This estimate of water loss
shall be used to calculate the amount of the abatement should one be granted.

Section 34.11.4- Billing Records. When an abatement is granted, the Town Treasurer
shall be responsible for taking the necessary steps to correct the appropriate billing
records to reflect the abatement or to process a credit where the sewer use charge in
question has been paid. Any abatement provided, will only apply to the specific account
being abated. For abatements involved in real-estate transactions, the abatement will
only be granted after the final meter readings. If no prior history is available on which to
base an abatement, an excessive first bill will receive an abatement based on what the
non-metered rate would be for a similar building. After the property has been billed for
consumption for the first year, the abatement shall be reassessed and appropriate
charges made.



Page 3433

Section 34.11.5 - Requirement for Secondary Meter, Abatements shall not be granted
for water used for watering lawns, gardens, filling swimming pools, or other outside
water uses outside their summer average quarters, unless ratepayers, at their own cost,
install a secondary water meter that will measure only water used for these water use
purposes. The installation of the meter shall be inspected by the Superintendent or his
designee and must have an outside reader. The ratepayer will read the meter quarterly
in order to allow abatements, if applicable, to quarterly sewer bills. The Superintendent
reserves the right to periodically inspect such meters to ensure continued compliance
with the requirements of this subsection. Where a secondary meter is installed, the
ratepayer may be granted an abatement. The Town Manager shall have the ability to
prorate and abate the first bill of a non-metered flat rate account based on the date of
the sewer entrance permit.

Section 34.11.6 - Abatement Period. An abatement request shall only be considered for
a maximum six month (two quarter period). If such conclusive proof cannot be
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Superintendent, the abatement may be denied
for all or part of the maximum period. The Town Manager can approve an abatement
request outside this timeframe but no longer than a one-year period for due cause.

Section 34.11.7 - Payment Receipts. In order for an abatement to be considered for any
previous billing quarters, the applicant must demonstrate, with receipts marked “Paid",
that full payment has been made for those sewer billing quarters. No abatement request
will be reviewed for any billing quarter in which outstanding sewer bills, interest or
penalties remain unpaid. Abatement requests for the current billing quarter will be
considered even though the current bill is unpaid; however, the applicant shall remain
responsible for all interest and penalties that may accrue during the current period while
the abatement request is under review. Abatement will not be applied to any billing in
the rears.

Section 34.11.8- Water Used in Manufacturing. Any ratepayer who uses water in its end
manufactured product which is shipped from the ratepayer's facility or in the process of
manufacturing a product or providing a service and where such water does not enter
into the sewer system, either in whole or in part, may apply for consideration of an
adjustment to their sewer use fee determination to offset that portion of the water which
does not reach the Town's sewer system. The applicant shall bear the burden of
providing the necessary proof and documentation which must accompany the request
for adjustment and must clearly demonstrate the quantity of water used which does not
enter into the sewer system. All such requests for adjustment shall be made to the
Superintendent who shall be responsible for reviewing the basis for the adjustment as
well as the adequacy of the information provided. The Superintendent shall provide to
the Town Manager his or her recommendation as to whether the adjustment should or
should not be granted. The Town Manager shall make the final determination as to
whether the sewer rate adjustment request shall or shall not be granted. The applicant
should make this request at the time that they first connect their manufacturing process
to the Town's sewer. During the period in which an adjustment is in effect, the
Superintendent reserves the right to periodically inspect the ratepayer’s premises and
records to ensure that the ratepayer is in compliance with the terms and basis by which




Page 3434

the adjustment was considered and granted. Should it be determined that the
information provided by the ratepayer is invalid, that changes have occurred in the
ratepayer's processes which have the effect of increasing the amount of water reaching
the sewer system, or that more water is reaching the sewer system than reported by the
ratepayer, the Town Manager may revoke the adjustment and the ratepayer shall be
subject to a revised user charge equal to the full value of the adjustment for the period in
which a current or prior adjustment was in effect.

Article 34.12 Protection from Damage

Section 34.12.1 - Damage to Public Sewer Prohibited. No person shall maliciously,
willfully, or negligently break, damage, destroy, uncover, deface, or tamper with any
structure, appurtenance, or equipment, which is a part of the sewer works. Any person
violating this provision shall be subject to immediate arrest under charge of disorderly
conduct.

Section 34.12.2 - Evidence of Insurance by Contractor. A contractor must present a
certificate of insurance showing minimum liability coverage for bodily injury and a limit
for property damage including collapse and underground coverage in an amount
established annually by the Town before a permit will be issued for construction of
building sewers or sewer extensions. Sewer extensions may require higher coverage if
so recommended by the Town Council, Town Manager or Town Engineer. Minimum
insurance coverage shall be liability coverage of $1,000,000/$2,000,000 for bodily injury
and a $300,000 limit for property damage including collapse and underground
coverage.)

Article 34.13 Enforcement and Penalty

Sec. 34.13.1. - Notice of violation. Any person found to be violating any provision of this
Ordinance shall be served by the Town with written notice stating the nature of the
violation and providing a reasonable time limit for its satisfactory correction. The
offender shall, within the period of time stated in such notice, permanently cease all
violations. Any person found in violation of section 34.12.1 shall be prosecuted and
punished under relevant sections of 17-A M.R.S.A. § 1 et seq. (Maine Criminal Code).

Sec. 34.13.2 - Harmful contributions; suspension of service.

(a.) The Town may suspend the wastewater treatment service and/or a wastewater
contribution permit when such suspension is necessary, in the opinion of the
town, in order to stop an actual or threatened discharge which presents or may
present an imminent or substantial endangerment to the health or welfare of
persons or to the environment, causes interference to the publicly owned
treatment works, or causes the Ttown to violate any condition of its National
Pollution Discharge Elimination System permit.



Page 3435

(b.) Any person notified of a suspension of the wastewater treatment service and/or
the wastewater contribution permit shall immediately stop or eliminate the
contribution. If the person fails to comply voluntarily with the suspension order,
the Town shall take such steps as deemed necessary, including immediate
severance of the sewer connection, to prevent or minimize damage to the
POTW system or endangerment to any individuals. The Town shall reinstate
the wastewater contribution permit and/or the wastewater treatment service
upon proof of the elimination of the noncomplying discharge. A detailed written
statement submitted by the user describing the causes of the harmful
contribution and the measures taken to prevent any future occurrence shall be
submitted to the town within 15 days of the date of occurrence.

Sec. 34.13.3. - Revocation of permit. Any user who violates the following conditions of
this section, or applicable state and federal regulations, is subject to having his permit
revoked in accordance with the procedures of this section:

(a.) Failure of a user to factually report the wastewater constituents and
characteristics of his discharge;

(b.) Failure of the user to report significant changes in operations, or wastewater
constituents and characteristics;

(c) Refusal of reasonable access to the user's premises for the purpose of
inspection or monitoring; or

(d.) Violation of conditions of the permit.

Sec. 34.13.4. - Notification of violation. Whenever the Town finds that any user has
violated or is violating this chapter, wastewater contribution permit, or any prohibition,
limitation or requirements contained in this chapter, the Town may serve upon such
person a written notice stating the nature of the violation. Within 30 days of the date of
the notice, a plan for the satisfactory correction of the violation shall be submitted to the
Town by the user. The Town may also suspend service as described in Section 34.13.2

@).
Sec. 34.13.5. - Show-cause hearing.

(a.) The Town may order any user who causes or allows an unauthorized
discharge to enter the POTW to show cause before the Town Council why the
proposed enforcement action should not be taken. A notice shall be served on
the user, specifying the time and place of a hearing to be held by the town
council regarding the violation, the reasons why the action is to be taken, the
proposed enforcement action, and directing the user to show cause before the
Town Council as to why the proposed enforcement action should not be taken.
The notice of the hearing shall be served personally or by registered or certified



Page 3436

mail (return receipt requested) at least ten days before the hearing. Service
may be made on any agent or officer of a corporation.

(b.) The Town Council may conduct the hearing and take the evidence, or may
designate any of its members or any officer or employee to:

(i) Issue in the name of the Town Council notices of hearings, requesting the
attendance and testimony of witnesses and the production of evidence
relevant to any matter involved in such hearings.

(i) Take the evidence.

(iii) Transmit a report of the evidence and hearing, including transcripts and other
evidence, together with recommendations to the Town Council for action.

(c.) At any hearing held pursuant to this section, testimony taken must be under
oath and recorded stenographically. The transcript, so recorded, will be made
available to any member of the public or any party to the hearing upon payment
of the usual charges.

(d.) After the Town Council have reviewed the evidence, they may issue an order
to the user responsible for the discharge directing that, following a specified
time period, the sewer service be discontinued unless adequate treatment
facilities, devices or other related appurtenances shall have been installed and
are properly operated. Further orders and directives as are necessary and
appropriate may be issued.

Sec. 34.13.6. - Legal action. If any person discharges sewage, industrial wastes or other
wastes into the Town's wastewater disposal system contrary to the provisions of this
chapter, federal or state pretreatment requirements, or any order of the Town, the Town
may commence an_court action for appropnate Iegal and/or equitable relief-ia it
court-af-this-county, including suspension of service as described in Section 34 13 2 (a)

Sec. 34.13.7. - Civil penalties. Any user who is found to have violated an order of the
Town or who willfully or negligently failed to comply with any provision of this chapter
and the orders, rules, regulations and permits issued under this chapter shall be fined as
defined in Appendix B for each offense, plus reimbursement of all costs incurred as a
result of each offense. Each day on which a violation shall occur or continue shall be
deemed a separate and distinct offense. In addition to the penalties provided in this
section, the Town may recover reasonable attorney's fees, court costs, court reporter's
fees and other expenses of litigation by appropriate suit at law against the person found
to have violated this chapter or the orders, rules, regulations and permits issued under
this chapter.

Sec. 34.13.8 - Falsifying information. Any person who knowingly makes any false
statements, representation or certification in any application, record, report, plan or other




Page 3437

document filed or required to be maintained pursuant to this chapter, or wastewater
contribution permit, or who falsifies, tampers with or knowingly renders inaccurate any
monitoring device or method required under this chapter, shall-uper-conviction; be
subject to civil penallies punished-by-a—iine—as established in -Appendix B, e~by
imprisonment-for-not-more—than-six-menths—or-by-bethand also shall be subject to
criminal prosecution in accordance with applicable law.

Section 34.13.9 - Advertisement of Significant Noncompliance. The Town shall
annually publish in a newspaper a list of the users which were in significant
noncompliance with any pretreatment requirements or standards at least once during
the twelve (12) previous months. The notification shall also summarize any
enforcement actions taken against the users during the same twelve (12) months. For
this provision, significant noncompliance shall mean a violation which:

(a.) Remains uncorrected 45 days after notification;

(b.) Is part of a pattern of noncompliance over a 12-month period;

(c.) Involves a failure to accurately report noncompliance; or

(d.) Resulted in the POTW exercising its emergency authority under clean water
act, § 403.8(f)(1)(iv)(B).

(e.) All records relating to compliance with pretreatment standards shall be made
available to officials of the Environmental Protection Agency or approval
authority upon request.

Sec. 34.14 Board of Sewer Appeals

Sec. 34.14.1. - Creation and appointment. The establishment of a board of sewer
appeals is authorized. The members of the board shall be appointed by the Town
Council and be the same board as hears the appeals of zoning. In accordance with the
Zoning Board of appeals rules and laws of the state, the following provisions shall apply:

(a.) Composition. The board shall consist of five members and one associate
member.

(b.) Municipal officers prohibited. No municipal officer shall be a member or
associate member of the board of sewer appeals.

(c.) Associate members to act. When a member is unable to act because of conflict
of interest, physical incapacity or absence from the state, the associate member
shall act in his stead.

(d.) Vacancy. When there is a permanent vacancy, the Town Council shall appoint a
person to serve for the unexpired term.

(e.) Officers. The board of sewer appeals shall elect a chairman and a secretary
from its own membership annually in the month of April.

Sec. 34.14.2. - Powers and duties. The Board of Sewer Appeals shall follow the Zoning
Board of appeals rules and -have the following powers and duties, to be exercised only




Page 3438

upon written appeal by a person aggrieved by a decision of the Superintendent, the
Town Health Officer, and/or Code Enforcement Officer the Town Manager, or the
plumbing inspector insofar as each decision arises from requirements of this chapter:

(a.) Review decisions; chapter interpretation. To determine whether the decisions of
the officers are in conformity with the provisions of this chapter, and to interpret
the meaning of this chapter in cases of uncertainty.

(b.) Variances. To grant variances from the terms of this chapter where necessary to
avoid undue hardship, provided there is no substantial departure from the intent
of this chapter. The Board of Sewer Appeals shall determine, in specific cases,
where a relaxation of the terms of this ordinance would not be contrary to the
public interest and where, owing to the conditions peculiar to the property and
not to the results of the actions by the applicant, a literal enforcement of the
requirements would result in an “undue hardship”.. The term “Undue Hardship”
shall mean:

i)  That the land in question cannot yield a reasonable return unless a
variance is granted.

i)  That the need for a variance is due to the unique circumstances of the
property and not the general condition of the neighborhood’

i)  That the granting of a variance will not alter the essential character of the
locality; and

iv)  That the hardship is not the result of an action taken by the applicant of a
prior owner.

(c.) Federal categorical standards and prohibited discharges. The Board of Sewer
Appeals shall have no jurisdiction over imposition of either federal categorical
standards or prohibited discharges. The discharge requirements of the Clean
Water Act and the Town's National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
permit may not be contravened by local initiative.

Sec. 34.14.3. - Hearings. The Board of Sewer Appeals shall meet the third Monday of
the month at 7:00 PM as necessary. —All appeals or other matters to come before the
Board requiring a notice shall be filed with the Town Clerk at least 15 days prior to the
next monthly meeting date. The Town Clerk shall cause to be advertised in a newspaper
of general circulation in the town a notice of such appeal, identifying the property
involved, the nature of the appeal and stating the time and place of a public hearing of
such appeal. The public hearing shall not be earlier than ten days after the date of such
publications. Owners of properties within 300 feet of the property for which the appeal is
made shall be notified by registered mail. Failure of any such owner to receive this
notice shall not invalidate the proceedings prescribed in this division.

(a.) The Superintendent shall attend all hearings pertaining to the public sewer
system. The Health Officer and/or Code Enforcement officer shall attend all



Page 3439

hearings pertaining to the private sewer systems. The plumbing inspector shall
attend such hearings as he may be involved in.

(b.) The officer concemed shall present to the board of sewer appeals all plans,
photographs or other factual material which is appropriate to an understanding
of the appeal.

(c.) The Board of Sewer Appeals shall not continue hearings on an appeal to a
future date except for good cause. Written notice of the decision of the Board
shall be sent to the appellant and to the officer concerned, forthwith. Failure of
the board to issue such notice within 30 days of the date of the hearing shall
constitute a denial of the appeal.

Sec. 34.14.4 - Appeal procedure. Any person and any municipal department aggrieved
by the decision of the Superintendent, the Town Health Officer, Town Manager, and/or
the Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing Inspector, which decisions arise from
provisions of this chapter, may appeal such decision to the Board of Sewer appeals.

(a) Appeal deadline. Within 30 days of the date of the decisions of the
Superintendent, Health Officer and/or Code Enforcement Officer/Plumbing
Inspector, Town Manager, the appeal shall be entered at the office of the Town
Clerk upon forms to be approved by the board of appeals. The appellant shall
set forth in the form the grounds of his appeal and shall refer to the specific
provisions of this chapter that are involved. Following the receipt of any appeal,
the Town Clerk shall notify forthwith the officer concemed and the chairman of
the board of appeals. The appellant shall pay to the Town Treasurer a fee of as
defined in Appendix B.

(b) Appeal to superior court. An aggrieved person may appeal from the decision of
the Board of Sewer Appeals to the superior court as provided by the laws of the
State.

Sec. 34.14.5. - Successive appeals. After a decision has been made by the board of
sewer appeals, a new appeal of similar nature by the same appellant shall not be
entertained by the board until one year shall have elapsed from the date of the decision;
except that the board may entertain a new appeal if the chairman believes that, owing to
a mistake of law or misunderstanding of fact, an injustice was done, or if he believes that
a change has taken place in some essential aspect of the appeal.

Article 34.15 Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances

Section 34.15.1 - All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

Article 34.16 Severability




Page 3440

Section 34.16.1 - The invalidity of any section, clause, sentence, or provision of this
Ordinance shall not affect the validity of any other part of this Ordinance which can be
given effect without such invalid part or parts.

Article 34.17 Effective Date

Asticle-Section 34.17.1 - This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect on Town Council
Meeting, dated , at which time, it was adopted by the Town of
Lisbon.




APPENDIX A

Typical Sewer Ordinance Definitions



APPENDIX A

TOWN OF LISBON
TYPICAL SEWER ORDINANCE DEFINITIONS

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have
the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the content clearly
indicates a different meaning:

1.

“Act or the Act” shall means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also
known as the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251, et seq.

“Administrative Inspection Warrant” shall mean a written order issued by
the Maine District Court to require sewer user to allow access to their
property for purpose of inspection by Town representatives to ensure
compliance with Town’s Sewer Ordinance.

“Appeals Board’ shall means that board appointed according to the
provisions of Section 34-6134.14.

“Approval Authority” shall means the director in an NPDES state with an
approved state pretreatment program and the administrator of the EPA in
a non-NPDES state or NPDES state without an approved state
pretreatment program.

“ASCE’ shall means the American Saociety of Civil Engineers.
“ASTM’ shall means the American Society for Testing and Materials.

“Authorized Representative of Industrial User” shall means one of the
following:

a) A principal executive officer of at least the level of vice-president if
the industrial user is a corporation;

b) A general partner or proprietor if the industrial user is a partnership
or proprietorship, respectively;

c) A duly authorized representative of the individual designated in
subsection (1) or (2) of this definition if such representative is
responsible for the overall operation of the facilities from which the
indirect discharge originates.

“Biochemical Oxygen Demand” (BOD) shall means the quantity of oxygen
utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic matter under standard

A-1



10.

11

12.

13.

14,

18.

16.

17.

18.

=

laboratory procedure (five (5) days at 20 degrees Celsius) expressed in
milligrams per liter (mg/l).

“Building” shall means a structure built, erected and framed of component
structural parts designed for the housing, shelter, enclosure or support of
persons, animals or property of any kind.

“Building Drain”_shall means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a
drain system, which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other
drainage pipes inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the
building sewer. The building drain extends eight_(8) feet (2.44 meters)
outside the inner face of the building wall.

“‘Building Sewer” shall means the extension from the premises of a user to
the RO W public sewer or other place of disposal.

“Building Sewer Connection Permit” shall mean document issued by Town
to authorize and allow physical connection of building sewer pipe to
Town’s municipal sewer system subject to the requirements of Town's
Sewer Ordinance.

“Categorical Standards” shall means National Categorical Pretreatment
Standards or pretreatment standard, as defined in 40 CFR 403.

‘Categorical User” shall mean any user of the Town's wastewater
treatment system whose discharges are regulated under 40 CFR Part 403
and 40 CFR Parts 405-471, or who is otherwise subject to U.S. EPA
pretreatment requirements.

“Chlorine Demand” shall mean the amount of chlorine required to destroy
all pathogenic organisms present and oxidize all organic, inorganic, and
ammonia-based compounds in a sewage stream.

“Code Enforcement Officer” shall mean the Code Enforcement Officer of
the Town of Lisbon.

“Combined Sewer” shall means a sewer intended to receive both
wastewater and stormwater or surface water.

“Control Authority” _shall means the approval authority or the

Superintendent if the Town has an approved pretreatment program under
the provisions of 40 CFR 403.11.

“Cooling Water” shall means the water discharged from any use such as

air conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, or to which the only pollutant
added is heat.

A-2



20.

21

22,

23.

24.

25.

26.

27

28.

29,

“DEP” shall mean the Maine Department of Environmental Protection.

“Developer”_shall means any person_or persons who undertakes to
construct simultaneously, or in planned sequence, more than one housing
unit on a given tract or land, subdivision_or any other commercial project
involving the municipal sewer.

“Direct Discharge” _shall means the discharge of treated or untreated
wastewater directly to the waters of the state.

"Easement’_shall means an acquired legal right for the specific use of
land owned by others.

“Engineer’_shall means a_certified professienal-Professional engineer
Engineer retained as tewn—Town engineer—Engineer or Consulting

Engineer by the tTown.

“Environmental Protection Agency” or EPA means the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency, or where appropriate, the term may also be used as a
designation for the administrator or other duly authorized official of the

ageneyAgency.

“Excessive” shall mean masses or concentrations of a constituent in a
sanitary or commercial wastewater which, in the judgment of the Town: (a)
will cause damage to any facility, (b) will be harmful to any wastewater
treatment process, (c) cannot be properly removed in the Town's
treatment facilities, (d) may inhibit the final disposal or reuse of the
treatment plant’'s sludge residuals, (e) can otherwise endanger life or
property, or (f) can constitute a nuisance.

“Floatable Oil” shall means oil, fat or grease in a physical state such that it
will separate by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved
pretreatment facility. A wastewater shall be considered free of floatable oil
if it is properly pretreated and the wastewater does not interfere with the
collection system.

“Garbage”_shall means_solid wastes from the domestic and commercial
preparation, cooking and dispensing of food, and the-animal-and-vegetable

waste-resulting—from the handling, preparation,—cooking—and-serving—of

foed:storage and sale of food products or produce.

‘Grab Sample” shall means a sample which is taken from a waste stream
on a one-time basis with no regard to the flow in the waste stream and
without consideration of time.



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.
36.

37.

38.

39.

“Holding Tank Waste” shall means any waste from holding tanks such as
vessels, chemical toilets, campers, trailers, septic tanks and vacuum-
pump tank trucks.

“Indirect Discharge”_shall means the discharge or the introduction of
nondomestic pollutants from any source regulated under section 307(b) or
(c) of the act (33 USC 1317), into the POTW (including holding tank waste
discharged into the system).

“Industrial User”_shall means a source of indirect discharge which does
not constitute a discharge of pollutants under regulations issued pursuant
to section 402 of the act (33 USC 1342).

“Industrial Wastes” shall means the liquid wastes from industrial

manufacturing processes, trade, or business as distinct from domestic or
sanitary wastes_or sewage.

“Interference” shall means a discharge by an industrial user which, alone
or in conjunction with discharges by other sources, inhibits or disrupts the
POTW, its treatment processes or operations, or its sludge processes,
use or disposal, and which is-a cause of a violation of any requirement of
the POTW's NPDES permit (including an increase in the magnitude or
duration of a violation) or of the prevention of sewage sludge use or
disposal by the POTW in accordance with the following statutory
provisions and regulations or permits issued thereunder (or more
stringent state or local regulations): section 405 of the Clean Water Act,
the Solid Waste Disposal Act (SWDA) including title 1l, more commonly
referred to as the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and
including state regulations contained in any state sludge management
plan prepared pursuant to subtitle D of the SWDA, the Clean Water Act,
the Toxic Substances Control Act, and the Marine Protection Research
and Sanctuaries Act.

“Kg” shall means kilograms.

“L" shall means liters.

“Living unit” shall means one or more rooms arranged for the use of one
or more individuals living together as a single housekeeping unit with
cooking, living, sanitary and sleeping facilities.

‘Mg’ shall means milligrams.
“National Categorical Pretreatment Standard” or pretreatment standard
shall _means any regulation containing pollutant discharge limits

promulgated by the EPA in accordance with section 307(b) and (c) of the
act (33 USC 1347) which applies to a specific category of industrial users.

A-4



40.

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

“National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)” permit shall

means a permit issued pursuant to section 402 of the act (33 USC 1342).

“National Prohibitive Discharge Standard” or prohibitive discharge
standard shall means any regulation developed under the authority of
section 307(b) of the act and 40 CFR 403.5.

“Natural Outlet”_shall means any outlet, including storm sewers and
combined sewer overflows, into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other
body of surface or groundwater.

“New Source” shall means any building, structure, facility or installation
from which there is or may be a discharge of pollutants, the construction
of which commenced after the publication of proposed pretreatment
standards under section 307(c) of the act, which will be applicable to such
source if such standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with
that section.

“Owner”_shall means any individual, firm, company, association, society,
person, municipal or quasi-municipal agency, state agency, federal
agency, or other legal entity having title to real property.

“Pass Through” shall means the discharge of pollutants through the
POTW into navigable waters in quantities or concentrations which, alone
or in conjunction with discharges from other sources, are a cause of a
violation of any requirement of the POTW's NPDES permit (including an
increase in the magnitude or duration of a violation).

“Person”_shall means any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm,
company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate,
institution, society. group, governmental entity, or any other legal entity, or
their legal representatives, agents or assigns.

‘pH” shall means the logarithm (base 10) of the reciprocal of the
concentration of hydrogen ions expressed in grams per liter of solution.

“Plant Operator” shall mean the Superintendent, Operations Manager, or
designated person designated by the Superintendent or Town to operate
the Town's wastewater treatment facilities, or their authorized deputy,
agent, or representative. (See also “Superintendent”)

“Plumbing Inspector’” _(Local Plumbing Inspector (LPI) or Code
Enforcement Officer) shall means the person or persons duly appointed by
the tewn-Town Mrranager who is responsible to perform duties as outlined
in 30-A M.R.S.A Subpart 4221,

A-5



50.

2L

52

53.

54.

95.

56.

57.

58.

“Pollutant”_shall means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator
residue, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes,
biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or discharged
equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial, municipal and
agricultural waste discharged into water.

“Pollution”_shall means the manmade or man-induced alteration of the
chemical, physical, biological and radiological integrity of water.

‘Pretreatment or Treatment” shall means the reduction of the amount of
pollutants, the elimination of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of
pollutant properties in wastewater to a less harmful state prior to or in lieu
of discharging or otherwise introducing such pollutants into the POTW.
The reduction or alteration can be obtained by physical, chemical or
biological processes, or process changes by other means, except as
prohibited by 40 CFR 403.6(d).

‘Pretreatment Requirements” shall means any substantive or procedural
requirement related to pretreatment, other than a National Pretreatment
Standard imposed on an industrial user.

“Properly Shredded Garbage” shall means the wastes from the
preparation, handling, cooking, and serving of food that have been
shredded to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely under the
flow conditions normally prevailing in public sewers, with no particle

greater than one-half (1/2) inch (1.27 centimeters) in any dimension.

“Property Line” shall mean the edge of a road right-of-way in those
instances where the building sewers connect to the public sewer in a right-
of-way.

‘Public Sewer”_shall means a common sewer owned, operated and
maintained by the public authority, or governmental agency.

‘Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW)” shall means a treatment
works_or treatment plant as defined by seetien-Section 212 of the act (33
USC 1292), which is owned in this instance by the tewnTown. This
definition includes any sewers that convey wastewater to the POTW or
treatment plant, but does not include pipes, sewers or other conveyances
not connected to a facility providing treatment. For the purposes of this
article, POTW shall also include any sewers that convey wastewaters to
the POTW from persons outside the tewn-Town who are, by contract or
agreement with the tewnTown, users of the tewn's-Town's POTW.

“Sanitary Sewer” shall means a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried
wastes from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants and



59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

institutions, together with minor quantities of groundwaters, stormwaters
and surface waters that are not admitted intentionally.

“Septage” shall mean the mixture of liquids and solid matters removed
from septic tanks during normal cleaning.

“Sanitary Wastewater” shall mean the liquid waste discharged from a
building’s or structure’s sanitary fixtures, such as toilets, washrooms,
urinals, sinks, showers, small laundries, and from kitchens and cafeterias
essentially free of industrial wastes or toxic materials.  Sanitary
wastewater may or may not be discharged separately from industrial or
commercial wastewater. For a combined discharge, the Town shall
determine if a wastewater discharge meets the definition “sanitary
wastewater”.

“Sewage” shall mean a combination of the water-carried wastes from
residences, business dwellings, institutions, and industrial establishments,
together with such ground, surface, and stormwaters as may be present.

“Sewer” shall means a pipe or conduit that carries wastewater or drainage
water.

“Sewer Connection Permit” - See “Building Sewer Connection Permit”
“Shall” is mandatory; “May” is permissive.

“Significant Industrial User’_shall means any industrial-user subject (o
Federal categorical pretreatment standards; or a user of the tewr’s-Town’s
wastewater disposal system whethat :

a) Has a discharge flow of 2510,000 gallers—er—mere—per—average

workdayGPD or more of process wastewater to the sewage works,
excluding sanitary, noncontact cooling and boiler blowdown
wastewater; or

b) Has—a—flow—greater—than—five—percent—of theflow—in—the—town's
wastewater—treatment—systemContributes a process waste stream
which makes up two percent (2%) or more of the average dry weather
dry weather hydraulic or organic capacity of the sewage works; or

c) Has in its wastes toxic pollutants as defined pursuant to section
Section 307 of the act or state statues and rules; or

d) Is designated as such by the Town on the basis that it has a
reasonable potential for adversely affecting the seage work’s operation
or for violating nay local limit, pretreatment or effluent standard or
reguirement; or




66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

12

73,

e) Is found by the town, state DEP or the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) to have significant impact, either singly or in
combination with other contributing industries, on the wastewater
treatment system, the quality of sludge, the system's effluent quality,
or air emissions generated by the system.

“Slug” shall means any discharge of water or wastewater which the rate of
discharge. or the mass or concentration of any given constituent exceeds,
in_ the opinion of the Town, adversely affects the collection system and/or

performance of the wastewater treatment plant. in-concentration—of-any
given-constituent-or-in-guantity-of flow-exceeds-for-any-period-of duration

longer—than—5—minutes—more—than—fivetimes—the—average—24-hour
concentration—quantities-or-flows-during-normal-eperation-and-adversely
affects—the—collection—system—and/or—perormance—of—the—wastewater
treatmentwerks.

“Special Sewer Service Charge” shall mean an additional sewer user
charge, above and beyond the standard sewer user charges, assessed to
specific sewer users that discharge wastewater of unusual volume,
strength, or pollutant characteristics that are significantly greater than
similar characteristics of normal domestic sewage. The purpose of these
added charges is to allow the Town to recover the added costs that it may
incur to treat wastes with unusual characteristics.

“Standard Industrial Classification (SIC)” shall means a classification
pursuant to the Standard Industrial Classification Manual issued by the
Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget,
1972.

‘State DEP”_shall means the state—dDepartment of envirenmental
Environmental pretectienProtection.

“Storm drain (sometimes termed “storm sewer”)” _shall means a drain or
sewer for conveying water, groundwater, subsurface water or unpolluted
water from any source.

“Standard Methods” shall mean “Standard Methods for Examination or
Water and Wastewater”, published by the American Public Health
Association, latest edition approved for use by DEP.

“Stormwater” shall means any flow occurring during or following any form
of natural precipitation and resulting from such precipitation.

“Superintendent” shall means the Superintendent or Operations Manager
of wastewater facilities, and/or of wastewater treatment works, and/or of

A-8



74.

75.

76.

4 T

78.

79,

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

water pollution control of the tewn-Town or his authorized deputy, agent or
representative.

“Suspended Solids” shall means total suspended matter that either floats
on the surface of or is in suspension in water, wastewater or other liquids,
and that is removable by laboratory filtering as prescribed in Standard
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, published by the
American Public Health Association and refereed to as nonfilterable
residue.

“Town” shall mean the Town of Lisbon, Maine.

“Toxic pollutant” shall means any pollutant or combination of pollutants
listed as toxic in regulations promulgated by the administrator of the
Environmental Protection Agency under the provision of CWA 307(a) or
other acts.

“Unpolluted water and unpolluted industrial process waters’ shall means
water of quality equal to or better than the effluent criteria in effect or
water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality standards
and would not be benefited by discharge to the sanitary sewers and
wastewater treatment facilities provided.

“User”_shall means any person who contributes, causes or permits the
contribution of wastewater into the tewn's-Town's POTW.

‘Wastewater”_shall means the liquid and water-carried industrial or
domestic wastes from dwellings, commercial buildings, industrial facilities
and institutions, together with such groundwaters, surface waters and
stormwaters which may be present, whether treated or untreated, which is
contributed into or permitted to enter the POTW.

"Wastewater Discharge Permit”_shall means a permit as set forth in
Section-34-151this Ordinance.

“Wastewater Facilities” shall means the structures, equipment and
processes required to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and
industrial wastes and dispose of the effluent.

“Wastewater Treatment Works” shall means an arrangement of devices
and structures for treating wastewater, industrial waste and sludge.

“Watercourse” shall means a natural or artificial channel for the passage
of water either continuously or intermittently.

‘Waters of the State” shall means all streams, lakes, ponds, marshes,
watercourses, waterways, wells, springs, reservoirs, aquifers, irrigation

A-9



systems, drainage systems and all other bodies or accumulations of
water, surface or underground, natural or artificial, public or private, which
are contained within, flow through or border upon the state or any portion
of the state.

85. “WPCF” shall means the Water Pollution Control Federation.






APPENDIX B

Sanitary Sewer Ordinance Fee Schedule



Code Section

34.43

34.4.3

34.4.4/349.1

34.4.4/349.1

34.4.4/34.9.1

34.4.4/349.1

" Each subsequent dwelling unit connected through the same

APPENDIX B

TOWN OF LISBON
SANITARY SEWER ORDINANCE FEE SCHEDULE

Description Fee/Rate
SANITARY SEWERS

BUILDING SEWER PERMIT AND INSPECTION FEE

Residential and commercial service $25.00
Industrial, plus all costs for review and analysis of the waste $50.00

FEE FOR NEW CONNECTION TO PUBLIC SEWER

Residential customers, for the first dwelling unit $1,000.00

building sewer or private sewer =750.00
Multifamily r-esidential units:
For the first unit $1,000.00
Each additional unit $750.00
Mobile home parks:
For the first unit $1,000.00
Each additional unit $750.00

Non-residential customers discharging typical domestic- $0.20  times  the
strength wastewater (no more than 300 mg/l BODs or 350 estimated flow in

'mg/l Total Suspended Solids) gallons per month, but

no less than $1,000.00
(Strength of discharge expected to be as found in typical a3nd no more than

domestic wastewater) $10,000.00

Page 1



The fee shall be:
'Non-residential customers with estimated flows greater than negotiated with the
: 50,000 gallons per month or with wastes exceeding domestic- Superintendent, taking
|strength, the fee shall be negotiated with the Superintendent, into consideration the
?taking into consideration the quantity and character of the quantity and character
‘wastewater and approved by the Town Council. of the wastewater and

‘ approved by the Town
(Strength of discharge expected to exceed that of typical

domestic wastewater.)

34.4.4/349.1

Council.

- The ¢ y : g i
jeenside;edf

| Wastewater discharge permit application fee - (Industrial,
34.7.13 - R : $100.00
Commercial or Unusual Wastewaters)

Civil Penalties - Violations of order of Town and permit $100-51,000/

34137 | o
i Limitations eath offerise
34.13.8 1 Falsification of Information $1,000
34.14.4(a) Appeals to the Board of Sewer Appeals i §25.00

Page 2






APPENDIX C

Guidelines for Design and Construction of Sewers



APPENDIX C

TOWN OF LISBON
GUIDELINES FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF SEWERS

Sewer design including sewer collectors, interceptbrs, and building services shall be in
accordance with the following minimum previsieasguidelines:

1) Pipe Material Shall be:

a) PVC made from virgin plastic conforming to ASTM D 1784, Type 1, Grade 1, and
manufactured in accordance with ASTM D 3034, SDR 35;

b) Ductile iron conforming to ANSI Specification A21.51, with iron grade 60-42-10,
and cement lining meeting ANSI Specification A21.4, but twice the thickness
specified;

c) Reinforced concrete conforming to ASTM C 76, with a maximum absorption of
5.5 percent of the dry weight; or

d) Other material approved by theFewn-Ceuneil Superintendent.

2) All joints shall be prepared and installed in accordance with the manufacturer's
recommendations, and shall be gastight and watertight. Joint materials shall be as
follows:

a) PVC-ASTM D 1869.
b) Ductile iron - ANSI Specification A21.11.

¢) Reinforced concrete - ASTM C 443.

3) Minimum internal pipe diameter for gravity collectors and interceptors shall be eight
(8) inches and shall be four (4) inches for building sewers that serve a single
residence or housing unit. Pipe sizes for building sewers that serve multiple
housing units, residences or industrial or commercial concerns shall be determined
by Engineer based upon connected fixture unit or design flow analysis as defined
under Maine State Plumbing Code or other applicable standards.

4) Wye-bBranch fittings for house services shall be PVC wyes or tees, or PVC or ductile
iron saddles, as appropriate, with stainless steel straps and “O-ring” seal set in mastic
to affect a watertight connection. Fittings shall be of a style and material designed
specifically for connection to sewer material that exists in public way. If, in the

C-1



6)

opinion of the Superintendent, an appropriate fitting is not available to properly
connect the building sewer material to the public sewer material, the Superintendent
may require an approved section of suitable sewer material to be spliced into the
public sewer. Appropriate splicing connections, Fernco or equal, shall be used to
connect the new fitting to either end of the existing public sewer which shall first be
cut evenly and smoothly prior to installation of the spliced section. In no case will
connection by hole cutting, pipe protrusion, and mortaring be allowed.

and-mMinimum slope of sewer pipe shall be as given in the following table:

Minimum Slope in Feet

Pipe Diameter Per 100 Feet
Building services 4" 2.08 (1/4" per foot)
6" 1.04 (1/8" per foot)
Sewer lines 8” 0.40
10" 0.28
12" 0.22
14" 0.17
15° 0.15
16" 0.14

PV C-and-reinforced-conereteSewer pipe shall be laid on six_(6) inches of screened
gravel or crushed stone bedding material, and the sereened-gravel-bedding material
shall be shaped to a height of one-fourth the pipe diameter so as to give uniform
circumferential support to the pipe. Unless bedding material is required for ductile
iron pipe due to unsuitable conditions, the existing excavated bottom shall be shaped
to a height of one-eighth of the pipe diameter so as to give uniform circumferential
support to the pipe.

a) Screened gravel shall have the following gradation:

Sieve Size % By Weight Passing
1 inch 100
3/4 inch 90 - 100
3/8 inch 20 - 55
#4 mesh 0 - 10
#8 mesh 0 - 5

b) 3/4" Crushed Stone shall have the following characteristics: Durable, clean
angular rock fragments obtained by breaking and crushing rock material. Sieve
analysis by weight:

C-2



Sieve Size % Passing by Weight

i 100
3/4" 95 - 100
1/2" 35 - 70
3/8" 0 - 25
No. 200 0 - 2

7) The sereened-gravel-bedding material shall be brought to-the-pipe-mid-diameter at
least twelve (12) inches over the top of the pipe.

8) Trench sand shall be placed over PVC and reinforced concrete pipe to a height of
one foot over the top of the pipe. Trench sand shall be hard, durable particles or
granular material with 100 percent passing the half-inch sieve and zero-15 percent
passing the #200 sieve. (Percentages are by weight).

9) Backfill material shall be placed and compacted. Suitable backfill material shall be
the following or a combination of the following:

a) Excavated material that will compact to the compaction requirements.

b) Native Mmaterial that does not contain rocks larger than six-three (3)
inches in any dimension.

C) Dry clay backfill free of clods or lumps.

d) Wet clay that alone would unstable, but when mixed with sand and/or
gravel will be stable and will compact.

10)Compaction densities specified herein shall be the percentage of the maximum
density obtainable at optimum moisture content as determined and controlled in
accordance with T-180, Method C, depending upon the material size. Field density
tests shall be made in accordance with AASHTO T-191. (Other methods may be
required by the Town's Engineer when appropriate.) Each layer of backfill shall be
moistened or dried as required, and shall be compacted to the following densities:

a) Pipe bedding material and trench sand 9592%
b) Suitable backfill under paved or shoulder areas 9095%
c) Gravel base:

(@) Under paved areas 95%

(b) In shoulder areas 9095%
d) Loam or unpaved areas 9590%
e) Beside structures: foundation walls, retaining

walls, and tank walls 95%
f) All other areas 85%

C-3



11)If the trench widths are found to exceed the limits specified, the sewer pipe shall be
encased in a minimum of six inches of concrete or high-strength pipe used as
determined by the engineer.

12)A minimum pipe wall thickness of SDR 35 shall be used for all sewer lines and
services. Minimum pipe thickness for deep burial or special applications shall be
determined by methods outlined in ASCE Manuals and Reports on Engineering
Practice - No. 60/WPCF Manual of Practice - No. FD-5 "Gravity Sanitary Sewer
Design and Construction”, latest edition. Pipe classes shall-can also be determined
according to W.P.C.F. Manual of Practice No. 9 Pipe thickness shall be calculated
using the following criteria:

Safety Factor -2.0

Load Factor - 1.7

Weight of soil, per cubic foot in pounds - 120
Wheel loading, in pounds - 16,000

13)All excavations required for the installation of sewers extensions-shall be open trench
work unless approved otherwise by the superintendentSuperintendent. No backfill
shall be placed until the work has been inspected by the Superintendent or
authorized representative.

14)The depth of new sewer collectors, interceptors and building services sewers shall be
sufficient as determined by the Superintendent to afford protection from frost, but in
no event, shall be less than five (5) feet to the crown of the pipe. The building sewer
shall be laid at uniform grade and in straight alignment to the extent that is possible.
Changes in direction shall be made only at a manhole in the public way or with pipe
and fittings with a vertical cleanout to grade on private building sewers. The ends of
building sewers, which are not connected to the building drain of the structure for any
reason, shall be sealed against groundwater infiltration by a suitable stopper, plug, or
other approved means.

15)Manholes shall be constructed at all changes in slope or alignment or at intervals not
exceeding 300 _+/- 50 linear feet, unless_an alternative distance is approved by the
Superintendent, and shall be precast concrete.

a) Precast manhole sections shall conform to ASTM C 478 and be asphalt
coated; cement shall be Type Ill with a minimum compressive strength
of 4,000 psi.

b) Precast base and barrel sections shall have tongue and groove joints,
with two strips with-round-rubber-gaskets—set—in—specially—provided
indentations—conforming-to-ASTM-G-443-or of butyl base joint sealant

that permits installation in temperatures from minus 20 degrees

C-4



Fahrenheit to 120 degrees Fahrenheit, and meets Federal Specification
SS-5-00210.

Each section of the precast manhole shall have two (2) holes for the
purpose of handling and setting. These holes shall be tapered and
shall be plugged with nonshrink mortar or grout in combination with
concrete plugs after installation.

Pipe to manhole joints shall be_Interpace CP Series, lock-joint flexible
manhele-sleeve Kor-N-Seal joint sleeve_manufactured to fit diameter
and size of pipe without the use of gaskets, Link-seal Century Line”
Model CS100 by Thunderline Corporation with sleeve seal equal to

‘Link-Seal"KerN-Sealjeint-sleeve, or equivalent.

All manholes shall be wrapped in a minimum of four (4) layers of high
grade polyethylene frost wrap six (6) mils thick to a minimum depth of
seven (7) feet.

—Manheole-invert-bricks-shallconform-to-ASTM-C-32 grade-SS-hard-brick

h)

{rmadefrom-clay or shale):

Dampproofing for concrete shall be semimasticsemi-mastic type Horn
"Dehydratine #4," "RIW Marine Emulsified Liquid" by Toch Bros., Inc.,
"Hydrocide 600" by Sonneborn, or equivalent.

Manhole rungs, when required, shall be_Aluminum alloy 6061-T6,
reinforced plastic rungs, or copolymer polypropylene reinforced wnth

3/8" grade 60 steel rebar throughout and ef-five-eights-inch-diameter.

alumwmn—saiety—gcpe—steps—RwQS—shan—be—placed with a minimum
width of 12 inches on center in concrete. Rungs—and shall not be

subjected to any loads for a minimum of seven days. GCepelymer
pelypropylene—steps—reinforeced-with—three-eights-inch—grade—60-steel
rebar-througheout-may-be-used-in-place-of aluminum. Aluminum to be

cast into concrete must be coated with bituminous paint.

After the excavation has been done and leveled, one (1) foot of % inch
crushed stone bedding material sereened-gravel-shall be placed in the
bottom of the excavation, leveled and thoroughly compacted.

Precast concrete manhole sections shall be set so as to be vertical and
with sections in true alignment, one-fourth-inch maximum tolerance to
be allowed.

The top of the precast reinforced concrete unit shall be set at a grade
that will allow a minimum of one and a maximum of three precast
concrete risers before setting the cast iron frame and cover. |f brick




C-6

risers are permitted by the Superintendent, the top of the precast
reinforced concrete unit shall be set at grade that will allow a twe
courses-and-a minimum of two courses and a maximum of five courses
of brick and mortar before setting the cast iron frame and cover. Mortar
for brick masonry shall be type Il Portland cement mixed in the
proportion of ere-partone-part cement to two parts sand, worked to the
proper consistency.__ (Manhole bricks shall conform to ASTM C 32,
Grade SS. hard brick (made from clay or shale).

The inside and outside of the masonry work of all manholes shall be
plastered with a 1:2 Portland cement mortar. The thickness of the
mortar shall be one-half (1/2) inch, and the mortar shall be carefully
spread and thoroughly troweled, leaving a smooth, substantially
waterproof surface. The mortar shall be extended to completely cover
the outside and inside surfaces of all masonry work.

The concrete manholes shall have a channel passing through the
bottom which corresponds in shape with the lower two-thirds of the
pipe. Inverts shall be cast in place or precast concrete, 3000 psi
minimum strength. Side inverts shall be curved and main inverts
(where direction changes) shall be laid out in smooth curves of the
longest possible radius. The top of the shelf shall slope to drain
towards the flow-through or main channel.

Manholes shall be constructed as the sections of the pipelines between
them are completed, and unless this is done, the Superintendent or
Town's eEngineer shall have the authority to stop trenching and pipe
laying until manhole construction is brought up properly. All
groundwater shall be kept away from any newly placed concrete or
freshly laid masonry work until newly placed concrete or freshly laid
masonry work has properly set and a watertight job is obtained.

All surfaces to be dampproofed shall be clean, smooth, dry and free
from loose material. The dampproefingdamp proofing shall be brushed
onto the outside concrete manhole surface and fill all voids. Two coats
shall be required that conform to the covering capacity of the material
used in strict accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.
The first coat shall be applied by the manufacturer of the manholes and
the second coat shall be field applied by the contractor.
PampproefingDamp proofing shall not be applied in freezing or wet
weather.

i) Iron castings for manhole frames and covers shall conform to
ASTM A 48 and shall be elass-Class 30- and as approved by the
Superintendent can be the same as used on the Town's existing
sewer system or equivalent.




ii)

Manhole frames and covers shall be tough gray iron free from
cracks, holes, swells, and cold shuts. The quality shall be such
that a blow from a hammer will produce an indentation on an
edge of the casting without flaking the metal. Frames and covers
shall be machine seated_and provided with a gasket so as to
provide a tight, even fit.

Manhole frames shall be six to eight inches high and shall be
approximately 35-30 inches in diameter with a minimum opening
of 22 inches and a maximum opening of 24 inches. Manhole
covers shall be 24 inches to 26 inches in diameter. Covers shall
be solid and shall have the word “SEWER” (three inches high)
cast on the top. Frames and covers shall be certified as meeting
H-20 loading and shall be compatible with existing frames and
covers if required by the Superintendent. The approximate total
weight of frame and cover shall be 395 pounds. Covers shall two
concealed pickholes

Casting shall be given one (1) coat of cold-tar pitch varnish at the
factory before shipment, and this coating shall be smooth and
tough and not brittle.

Frames shall be set concentric with the top of the masonry and in
full bed of mortar so that the space between the top of the
manhole masonry and the bottom flange of the frame shall be
completely filled and made watertight. A thick ring of mortar
extending to the outer edge of the masonry shall be placed all
around and on top of the bottom flange. Mortar shall be
smoothly finished and have a slight slope to shed water away
from the frame.

16)All sewers shall satisfy requirements of a leakage test before they are accepted by
the Superintendent. The leakage test shall be as follows:

a)

For each size of pipeline, an initial leakage test shall be made on the
first section of the pipeline complete between two adjacent manholes.
Thereafter, the leakage tests shall be made on sections of approved
lengths of completed pipeline which in no case shall exceed 1,000 feet.

Each section shall be tested upon its completion.

Air checking of sewer lines shall be as follows:

)

After backfilling sewer line from manhole to manhole, the
Contractor shall conduct an air leakage test in the presence of
the Superintendent or Engineer, using low-pressure air.




(iii)

The equipment used shall meet the following minimum
requirements:

(a)

Pneumatic plugs shall have a sealing length equal to or
greater than the diameter of the pipe to be inspected.

Pneumatic plugs shall resist internal test pressures
without requiring external bracing or blocking.

All air used shall pass through a single control panel.

Three individual hoses shall be used for the following
connections:

(i) From control panel to pneumatic plugs for inflation.

(ii) From control panel to sealed line for introducing the
low-pressure air.

(i)  From sealed line to control panel for continually
monitoring air pressure rise in the sealed line.

Procedures shall be as follows:

(a)

(b)

All pneumatic plugs shall be seal tested before being used
in the actual test installation. One length of pipe shall be
laid on the ground and sealed at both ends with the
pneumatic plugs to be checked. Air shall be introduced
into the plugs to 25 psig. The sealed pipe shall be
pressurized to 5 psig. The plugs must hold against this
pressure without having to be braced.

After a manhole-to-manhole reach of pipe has been
backfilled and cleaned, and the pneumatic plugs are
checked by the above procedure, the plugs shall be
placed in the line at each manhole and inflated to 25 psig.
Low-pressure air shall be introduced into this sealed line
until the internal air pressure reaches four (4) psig greater
than the average backpressure of any groundwater that
may be over the pipe. At least two minutes shall be
allowed for the air pressure to stabilize.

After the stabilization period (3.5 psig minimum pressure
in the pipe), the air hose from the control panel to the air
supply shall be disconnected. The portion of line being
tested shall be termed “Acceptable” if the time required in



minutes for the pressure to decrease from 3.5 to 3:02.5
psig (greater than the average backpressure of any
groundwater that may be over the pipe) shall not be less
than:

T = 0.085 (DK)
(Q)

Where: T = Shortest time, in seconds, allowed
for the air pressure to drop 1.0 psig,

= 0.000419 DL, but not less than 1.0,

= 0.0015 cubic feet/minute/square feet

of internal surface,

= Nominal pipe diameter in inches, and

= Length of pipe being tested in feet.

Fa OR
|

Table 1 indicates the time required for various lengths and pipe sizes.
TABLE 1

SPECIFICATION TIME REQUIRED FOR A L0 PSIG PRESSURE DROP
FOR SIZE AND LENGTH OF PIPE INDICATED FOR Q = 0.0015

2 Length 4

| Minimum for P tor Specification Time or Length (1) Shown (nunosecd
Pipe T N Longer
Diameter tmin lime I enpth
[110] SeC) 111 fsec) [ILYRI 150 1t 200 1t 2301 MM it 3501 EILIR] 450 1
1 346 7 LRIV 346 46 346 A6 146 146 46 LR 15
i} 540 LA 8541 S0 SH0 sS40 sS40 540 S:40 542 624
b T 298 15281 TM 73 7.3 7:34 7:36 %52 10:08 11:24
10 9:26 20 2341 036, 9: 20 0-26 933 Filz52 [3.51 15:49 17:48
12 11:20 199 481 11:20 1120 1124 1415 17205 149:56 2:47 1548
15 1410 159 S 3421 410 14:10 17:48 e b 26.42 30w 35:36 10,04
I8 1 7:00 133 76921 1700 1913 RARE Y 2:0% 827 452 Sll6 5741
24 1950 14 104701 1950 2610 Lpsd 43:37 22 61 00 6948 FERY |
24 2240 a0 136741 2247 Ml 4534 56:58 6822 7946 9110 102:33
7 25:10 38 17 306 1 28,51 4306 570 1207 8632 100:57 (] 129:48
0 220 hit) 21t 3537 53:23 71003 8902 106:50 124:38 142:20 160,15
33 a0 12 2585210 4108 6438 8610 107 43 129:16 15043 17220 193:53
i 3400 ity L7608 | 5107 76,55 102:34 128:02 153:530 179:29 20507 230006

C-9



(e)

In areas where groundwater is known to exist, the contractor
shall install a half-inch diameter capped pipe nipple,
approximately ten inches long, through the manhole wall on top
of one of the sewer lines entering the manhole. This shall be
done at the time the sewer line is installed. Immediately prior to
the performance of the leakage test, the groundwater shall be
determined by removing the pipe cap, blowing air through the
pipe nipple into the ground so as to clear it, and then connecting
a clear plastic tube to the nipple. The plastic tube shall be held
vertically, and a measurement of the height in feet of water over
the invert of the pipe shall be taken after the water has stopped
rising in this plastic tube. The height in feet shall be divided by
2.3 to establish the pounds of pressure that will be added to all
readings. (For example, if the height of water is 11 feet, the
added pressure will be five psig. This increases the 3.5 psig to
8.5 psig, and the 3.0 psig to 8.0 psig. The allowable drop of one-
half pound and the timing remain the same.)

If the installation fails to meet this requirement, the Contractor
shall determine the source of the leakage and repair or replace
all defective materials at his own expense.

17)Manholes shall be tested by plugging the pipes and filling the manholes with water for
an exfiltration test or by an air vacuum test.

a) Water exfiltration test:

(@)

(b)

The manhole shall be filled to allow for concrete absorption and
left overnight.

The following morning, the manhole shall be filled to a level no
less than one foot above the beginning of the manhole taper, and
shall be tested for 8 hours.

The water level shall be carefully marked, and at end of following
eight (8) hour period, sufficient water shall be added to bring
water level back to mark. Water added shall be supplied from a
metered source and quantity so added water shall be converted
to gallons per day lost through manhole leakage.

The loss of water shall be less than one gallon per day per foot of
depth of manhole.



C-11

(f)

If the measured exfiltration exceeds the allowable rate, the
necessary repairs shall be made by the Contractor at his
expense to reduce the leakage.

In areas with a high groundwater table, the Superintendent or
engineer—Engineer may require a visual infiltration test rather
than an exfiltration test. In this case, all leaks or weepings visible
from the inside of the manhole shall be repaired, and the
manhole made watertight.

Air vacuum test:

(a)

(d)

Manholes shall be tested by a vacuum test immediately after
assembly of the manholes and connecting pipes and before any
backfill is placed around the manholes, and again after
backfilling.

All lift holes shall be plugged with nonshrink grout and all pipes
entering the manhole shall be plugged, taking care to securely
brace the plugs and pipe.

The test shall be made using an inflatable compression band,
vacuum pump and appurtenances specifically designed for
vacuum testing manholes.  Test procedures shall be in
accordance with the equipment manufacturer’s
recommendations.

After the testing equipment is in place, a vacuum of 10" of Hg
shall be drawn on the manhole. The manhole will be considered
to have passed the test if the vacuum does not drop more than 1"
of Hg in one minute.

If the manhole fails the initial test, the Contractor shall locate the
source of leakage and make proper repairs as directed by the

- Superintendent, and re-tested until a satisfactory test result is

obtained.



APPENDIX D

Calculating the “One Time” Sewer Credit



CALCULATING THE “ONE TIME”ONE TIME SEWER CREDIT

1. ADD LAST 4 QUARTERS CONSUMPTION AND DIVIDE BY 4. This is the average
usage

2. MULTIPLY AVERAGE USAGE x 400 PERCENT. Billed consumption in question
must be greater than the 400 percent of average

3. IF BILLED CONSUMPTION IN QUESTION IS LESS THAN 400 PERCENT OF
AVERAGE, ACCOUNT DOES NOT QUALIFY FOR CREDIT

4. IF BILLED CONSUMPTION IS GREATER THAN 400 PERCENT OF AVERAGE,
SUBTRACT AVERAGE FROM BILLED CONSUMPTION TO GIVE YOU THE OVERAGE
BILLED.

MULTIPLY AVERAGE USAGE x $51.50 FOR THE AMOUNT SHOULD HAVE BEEN
BILLED PLUS THE OVERAGE BILLED x $1.00. ADD THIS AMOUNT TO WHAT
SHOULD HAVE BEEN BILLED. THIS IS THE AMOUNT TO SUBTRACT FROM THE
ACTUAL BILL, AND THE BALANCE IS THE AMOUNT TO BE CREDITED.

EXAMPLE: CUSTOMER BILLED FOR 10,000 CU. FT. (10,000 x $51.50 = $515.00)
LAST 4 BILLING QUARTERS CONSUMPTION:
2000
2100
1800
1500 = 7400 divisible by 4 = 1850 average usage

Billed usage: 10,000 cu. ft. (5515.00) — average usage: 1850 (595.28) = 8150
excess x $1.00 = $81.50

$95.28 $515.00
$81.50 (5176.78)

$176.78 $338.22 credit to account



APPENDIX E

Applicable Municipal References



Title 30-A. §3406: Service charges for sewage or storm water disposal Page 1 of 2

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS
Chapter 161: SEWERS AND DRAINS
Subchapter 1: GENERAL PROVISIONS

§3406. Service charges for sewage or storm water disposal

The municipal officers may establish a schedule of service charges from time to time upon
improved real estate connected with a municipal sewer or sewer system or storm water disposal
system for the use of the system. These service charges must include reserve fund contributions.
For purposes of this section, "storm water disposal system" means storm water and flood control
devices, structures, conveyances, facilities or systems, including natural streams and rivers and
other water bodies used wholly or partly to convey or control storm water or floodwater.
[2013, c. 197, §1 (AMD).)

L Interest. The municipal officers may charge interest on delinquent accounts at a rate not
to exceed the highest lawful rate set by the Treasurer of State for municipal taxes.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD) ; 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

2. Lien. There is a lien on real estate served or benefited by a municipal sewer or sewer
system or storm water disposal system to secure the payment of service charges and interest on
delinquent accounts established under this chapter. This lien arises and is perfected as services
are provided and takes precedence over all other claims on the real estate, excepting only claims
for taxes.

[ 2015, c. 174, §1 (AMD) .]
3. Collection. The treasurer of the municipality may collect the service charges and interest

on delinquent accounts in the same manner as granted by Title 38, section 1208, to treasurers of
sanitary sewer districts with reference to rates established and due under Title 38, section 1202.

{ 1987, <. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, $§106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD) ; 1989, <. 9, §2 (ARMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (aAMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3406.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A. §3406: Service charges for sewage or storm water disposal Page 2 of 2

Cl06 (NEW). 1989, c. 6, (AMD). 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD). 1989,

18987, . 737, 2
AMD). 2013, c. 197, §1 (AMD). 2015, c. 174, §1 (AMD).

§SA
c. 104, §8C8,10 ({

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster ros@leqislature.maine.gov) - 7 State House Station

State House Room 108 - Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04.

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3406.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §3442: Expense of construction Page 1 of 3

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS
Chapter 161: SEWERS AND DRAINS
Subchapter 3: ASSESSMENTS AND FEES

§3442. Expense of construction

1. Sewer district defined. As used in this section, sewer district means a quasi-municipal
corporation, as defined in section 2604, subsection 3, established to construct and operate sewer
systems to assist in the abatement of the pollution of public streams, lakes and inland and ocean
waters.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

2. Estimate and assessment of costs; notice. When any municipality or sewer district has
constructed and completed a public drain or common sewer, the municipal officers or sewer
district trustees shall determine what lots or parcels of land are benefited by the drain or sewer,
and shall estimate and assess upon the lots and parcels of land and against the owner of the land
or person in possession, or against whom the taxes on the land are assessed, whether the person
to whom the assessment is so made is the owner, tenant, lessee or agent and whether the land is
occupied or not, the sum not exceeding the benefit they consider just and equitable towards
defraying the expenses of constructing and completing the drain or sewer, together with any
sewage disposal units and appurtenances that are necessary and in operation after May 31, 1979.
The whole of the assessments may not exceed 1/2 the cost of the drain or sewer and sewage
disposal units unless 75% or more of the landowners that will be benefited by the expansion
petition the municipal officers to construct the drain or sewer and sewage disposal unit and
agree to pay a higher assessment that must be identified in the petition. The municipality or
sewer district shall maintain and keep the drain or sewer in repair.

A. Farmland, as defined by Title 36, section 1102, subsection 4, is exempt from assessment
under this subsection when no benefits are derived from the common sewer or drain. The
owner of the farmland must notify the municipal officers or sewer district trustees that
farmland property may qualify for this exception. The municipal officers or sewer district
trustees shall revise the assessments against qualified farmland to exempt it from

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3442.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A. §3442: Expense of construction Page 2 of 3

assessment. Any revision of assessment provided by this paragraph must be in writing and
recorded by the clerk or sewer district trustees.

When the use of the land is changed from farmland, the owner shall within 60 days notify
the municipal officers or sewer district trustees in writing of the change. The municipal
officers or sewer district trustees shall assess this land in an amount equal to the
assessment which would have been due but for this subsection. The municipal officers or
sewer district trustees shall notify the owner of the assessment due which the owner shall
pay within 60 days of notice or as provided by the municipal officers under their authority
in section 3444. (1991, c. 236, §1 (AMD).]

[ 1991, c. 236, §1 (AMD) .]

3. Filing of assessments. The municipal officers or sewer district trustees shall file with
the municipal clerk:

A. The location of the drain or sewer and sewage disposal unit, with a profile description of
the same; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);
1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10

(AMD) . ]

B. A statement of the amount assessed upon each lot or parcel of land assessed under this
section; and [1987, <. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW);
1989, <. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (BRMD); 1982, c. 104, Pt. C, §88&, 10
{BMD) . ]

C. The name of the owner of the lots or parcels of land or persons against whom the
assessment is made. (1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106
(NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, S§§8,
10 (AMD).]

The municipal clerk and the sewer district trustees shall record the assessment in a book kept
for that purpose.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

4. Notice of assessment. Within 10 days after filing occurs under subsection 3, each person
so assessed shall have notice of the assessment given to that person or left at that person's usual
place of abode in the municipality.

A. If the person has no place of abode in the municipality, then the notice shall be given or
left at the abode of the tenant or lessee, if any. If there is no tenant or lessee in the
municipality, then the notice shall be given by:

(1) Posting it in some conspicuous place in the vicinity of the lot or parcel of land so
assessed at least 30 days before the hearing; or

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3442.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §3442: Expense of construction Page 3 of 3

(2) Publishing it for 3 successive weeks in any newspaper of general circulation in the
municipality. The first publication must be at least 30 days before the hearing. (1987,
c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).)

B. The notice must contain an authentic copy of the assessment, and an order of notice
signed by the municipal clerk or the chairman of the sewer district trustees stating the time
and place for a hearing upon the subject matter of the assessments. A return made upon a
copy of the notice by any constable in the municipality or the production of the paper
containing the notice is conclusive evidence that the notice was given. [1987, c. 737,
Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989,
c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

[ 1987, . 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. &,
(RMD); 1389, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

5. Hearing; revision of assessments. When the hearing is held, the municipal officers or
sewer district trustees may revise, increase or diminish any of these assessments. Any revision,
increase or diminution must be in writing and recorded by the municipal clerk and the sewer
district trustees.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pr. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, <. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1987, <. 737, §SA2,Cl06 (NEW). 1989, <. 6, (AMD). 198%, c. 9, §2 (AMD). 1989,
c. 104, §8C8,10 (AMD). 1991, c. 236, §1 (AMD).

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@Iegislature.maine.gov) - 7 State House Station

State House Room 108 - Augusta, Maine 04333-0007
Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04.

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3442 . html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §3443: Arbitration of assessment Page 1 of 2

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS
Chapter 161: SEWERS AND DRAINS
Subchapter 3: ASSESSMENTS AND FEES

§3443. Arbitration of assessment

Any person who is dissatisfied with the amount assessed under section 3442 may, within 10
days after hearing under section 3442, subsection 5, make a written request to the municipal
clerk to have the assessment upon the lot or parcel of land determined by arbitration. (1937,
c. 737, Pt. B, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD);
1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

1. Arbitrators selected. The municipal officers shall nominate 6 persons who are residents
of the municipality. The applicant shall select 2 of these persons, and these 2 persons shall select
a 3rd person who is a resident of the municipality and who is not one of the 6 persons
nominated by the municipal officers.

( 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD) ; 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

2. Arbitration procedure. The 3 persons selected under subsection 1 shall fix the amount to
be paid by the applicant. Within 30 days from the hearing before the municipal officers under
section 3442, the arbitrators shall report their findings to the municipal clerk who shall record
them. The arbitrators' report is final and binding on all parties.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, €2 (aMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §88, 10 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1987, c. 737, §SA2,Cl06 (NEW). 1989, c. 6, (AMD). 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD). 1989,
c. 104, §8C8,10 (AMD).

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@leqislature.maine.qgov) « 7 State House Station *
State House Room 108 + Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3443.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A. §3443: Arbitration of assessment Page 2 of 2

Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04.

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3443.html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §3444: Collection of assessments Page 1 of 2

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS
Chapter 161: SEWERS AND DRAINS
Subchapter 3: ASSESSMENTS AND FEES

§3444. Collection of assessments

Except for service charges established under section 3406 which shall be collected as
provided in that section, all assessments and charges made under this chapter shall be certified
by the municipal officers and filed with the tax collector for collection. A facsimile of the
signatures of the municipal officers imprinted at their direction upon any certification of an
assessment or charge under this chapter has the same validity as their signatures. (1987, c.
737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD);
1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

1. Payment over time. The municipal officers of a municipality may adopt an order
generally authorizing the assessors and the tax collector to assess and collect those assessments
and charges over a period of time not exceeding 10 years, including expenses involved in the
municipality's abatement of malfunctioning domestic waste water disposal units under section
3428, subsection 4.

A. The assessors and collector may exercise this authority only when the person assessed
has agreed to that method of assessment and collection in writing and notice of that fact
has been recorded in the appropriate registry of deeds. (1987, c. 737, »t. 2, §2
(NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2
(AMD) ; 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).]

B. The municipal officers shall annually file with the collector a list of installment payments
due the municipality, which must be collected with interest at a rate determined by the
municipal officers. If, within 30 days after written notice of the total amount of the
assessments and charges, or annual installment payment and interest, the person assessed
fails, neglects or refuses to pay the municipality the expense incurred, the municipal
assessors may assess a special tax, equal to the amount of the total unpaid assessment and
charges, upon each lot or parcel of land so assessed and buildings upon the lot or parcel of

httn://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3444 . html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A. §3444: Collection of assessments Page 2 of 2

land. This assessment must be included in the next annual warrant to the tax collector for
collection and must be collected in the same manner as state, county and municipal taxes
are collected.

(1) Interest at the same rate used for delinquent property taxes as established by Title
36, section 505, subsection 4 on the unpaid portion of assessments and charges due
the municipality accrues from the 30th day after written notice to the person assessed
and must be added to and becomes part of the special tax when committed to the tax
collector. (1995, <. 91, §1 (AMD).]

[ 1995, c. 91, §1 (AMD) .]

2. Action to recover unpaid assessments. If assessments under this section are not paid,
and the municipality does not proceed to collect the assessments by a sale of the lots or parcels
of land upon which the assessments are made, or does not collect or is in any manner delayed or
defeated in collecting the assessments by a sale of the real estate so assessed, then the
municipality may maintain a civil action in its name against the party so assessed for the amount
of the assessment in any court competent to try the action. In this action, the municipality may
recover the amount of the assessment with 12% interest on the assessment from the date of the
assessment and costs.

[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6,
(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]

SECTION HISTORY
1987, c. 737, §§A2,Cl06 (NEW). 1989, c. 6, (AMD). 1989, c. S, §2 (AMD). 1989,
c. 104, §§C8,10 (AMD). 1995, c. 91, §1 (AMD).

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@legislature.maine.gov) - 7 State House Station
State House Room 108 « Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04.

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3444 .html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §3445: Lien for payment on lot and building; enforcement Page 1 of 1

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS
Chapter 161: SEWERS AND DRAINS
Subchapter 3: ASSESSMENTS AND FEES

§3445. Lien for payment on lot and building; enforcement

When any assessment made under section 3442 is paid by any person against whom the
assessment has been made, who is not the owner of the lot or parcel of land, then the person
paying the assessment has a lien upon the lot or parcel of land with the buildings on the land for
the amount of the assessment paid by that person, and incidental charges. The lien may be
enforced in a civil action, and by attachment in the way and manner provided for the
enforcement of liens upon buildings and lots under Title 10. The lien shall continue one year
after the assessment is paid. (1987, <. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C,
§106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8,
10 (ARMD).]

SECTION HISTORY

1987, c. 737, §§A2,Cl06 (NEW). 1989, c. 6, (AMD). 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD). 1989,
c. 104, §8C8,10 (AMD).

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@legislature.maine.gov) - 7 State House Station -
State House Room 108 + Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04.

http://legislature.maine.gov/statutes/30-A/title30-Asec3445. html 2/8/2018



Title 30-A, §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances Page 1 of 6

Maine Revised Statutes

Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND

COUNTIES
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES

Subpart 6-A: PLANNING AND LAND USE
REGULATION

Chapter 187: PLANNING AND LAND USE
REGULATION

Subchapter 5: ENFORCEMENT OF LAND USE

REGULATIONS

§4452. Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances

1. Enforcement. A municipal official, such as a municipal code enforcement officer, local
plumbing inspector or building official, who is designated by ordinance or law with the
responsibility to enforce a particular law or ordinance set forth in subsection 5, 6 or 7, may:

A. Enter any property at reasonable hours or enter any building with the consent of the
owner, occupant or agent to inspect the property or building for compliance with the laws
or ordinances set forth in subsection 5. A municipal official's entry onto property under this
paragraph is not a trespass; [1989, c. 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt.
C, §10 (NEW).]

B. Issue a summons to any person who violates a law or ordinance, which the official is

authorized to enforce; and [1993, <. 23, §1 (2MD).]

C. When specifically authorized by the municipal officers, represent the municipality in
District Court in the prosecution of alleged violations of ordinances or laws, which the

official is authorized to enforce. [1993, <. 23, §1 (AMD).]

[ 1993, c. 23, §1 (AMD); 2007, c. 699, §24 (REV) .]

2. Liability for violations. Any person, including, but not limited to, a landowner, the
landowner's agent or a contractor, who violates any of the laws or ordinances set forth in
subsection 5 or 6 is liable for the penalties set forth in subsection 3.

[ 1991, c. 732, §2 (AMD) .]

httn://www.mainelegislature.ore/legis/statutes/30-a/title30-Asec4452 html 2/5/2018



Title 30-A. §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances Page 2 of 6

3. Civil penalties. The following provisions apply to violations of the laws and ordinances
set forth in subsection 5. Except for paragraph H, monetary penalties may be assessed on a per-
day basis and are civil penalties.

A. The minimum penalty for starting construction or undertaking a land use activity
without a required permit is $100, and the maximum penalty is $2,500. (1989, c. 104,
Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

B. The minimum penalty for a specific violation is $100, and the maximum penalty is
§2,500. (1989, c. 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

B-1. Notwithstanding paragraph B, the maximum penalty is $5,000 for any violation of a
law or an ordinance set forth in subsection 5, paragraph Q, if the violation occurs within an
area zoned for resource protection. (1993, c. 370, §1 (NEW).]

C. The violator may be ordered to correct or abate the violations. When the court finds that
the violation was willful, the violator shall be ordered to correct or abate the violation

unless the abatement or correction results in:
}

(1) A threat or hazard to public health or safety;

(2) Substantial environmental damage; or

(3) A substantial injustice. [1989, c. 727, §1 (&MD).]
C-1. (2007, c. 92, §1 (RP).]

C-2. Notwithstanding paragraph C, for violations of the laws and ordinances set forth in
subsection 5, paragraph Q, the provisions of this paragraph apply. The court must order the
violator to correct or mitigate the violation unless the correction or mitigation would result
in a threat or hazard to public health or safety, substantial environmental damage or a

substantial injustice.

(1) Except for timber harvesting, correction or mitigation of a violation that involves
the cutting of a tree or trees must include, but is not limited to, replacement of each
tree cut with a tree or trees of varying size and species such that the visual impact
from the cutting will be remediated, the tree canopy that was cut will be restored
within a reasonable time period and a total basal area equal to at least 50% of the basal
area cut will be replanted.

(2) Except for timber harvesting, correction or mitigation of a violation that involves
the cutting of understory vegetation must include, but is not limited to, replacement of
the understory vegetation with understory vegetation of substantially similar size and
species to the extent reasonably available and feasible.

(3) For violations requiring correction or mitigation pursuant to subparagraph (1) or
(2), the violator shall submit to the municipality a reforestation plan and 5-year

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/30-a/title30-Asec4452 html 2/5/2018



Title 30-A. §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances Page 3 of 6

management plan developed with and signed by a forester licensed pursuant to Title
32, chapter 76 or other qualified professional. The reforestation plan must include
consideration of specified site conditions and address habitat and other riparian
restoration, visual screening, understory vegetation and erosion and sedimentation
control. The management plan must address how the replacement trees must be
maintained to enable the trees to grow to a healthy, mature height.

For purposes of this paragraph, "timber harvesting" has the same meaning as in Title 38,
section 438-B, subsection 1, paragraph C.

For purposes of this paragraph, "understory vegetation” means all saplings that measure
less than 2 inches in diameter at 4.5 feet above ground level and all shrubs. (2011, «c.
228, §1 (RMD).)

D. If the municipality is the prevailing party, the municipality must be awarded reasonable
attorney fees, expert witness fees and costs, unless the court finds that special
circumstances make the award of these fees and costs unjust. If the defendant is the
prevailing party, the defendant may be awarded reasonable attorney fees, expert witness
fees and costs as provided by court rule. (1989, ¢. 727, §1 (AMD).]

E. In setting a penalty, the court shall consider, but is not limited to, the following:
(1) Prior violations by the same party;
(2) The degree of environmental damage that cannot be abated or corrected;

(3) The extent to which the violation continued following a municipal order to stop;

and

(4) The extent to which the municipality contributed to the violation by providing the
violator with incorrect information or by failing to take timely action. [1989, «c.
104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

F. The maximum penalty may exceed $2,500, but may not exceed $25,000, when it is shown
that there has been a previous conviction of the same party within the past 2 years for a
violation of the same law or ordinance. [1989, . 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c.
104, Pt. C, $10 (NEW).]

G. The penalties for violations of a septage land disposal or storage site permit issued by the
Department of Environmental Protection under Title 38, chapter 13, subchapter 1, are as
prescribed in Title 38, section 349. [1997, c. 794, Pt. A, §1 (AMD).]

H. If the economic benefit resulting from the violation exceeds the applicable penalties
under this subsection, the maximum civil penalties may be increased. The maximum civil
penalty may not exceed an amount equal to twice the economic benefit resulting from the
violation. Economic benefit includes, but is not limited to, the costs avoided or enhanced

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/3 0-a/title30-Asec4452.html 2/5/2018



Title 30-A, §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances Page 4 of 6

value accrued at the time of the violation as a result of the violator's noncompliance with
the applicable legal requirements. (1989, <. 727, §1 (NEW).]

[ 2011, <. 228, §1 (AMD) .]

4. Proceedings brought for benefit of municipality. All proceedings arising under locally
administered laws and ordinances shall be brought in the name of the municipality. All fines
resulting from those proceedings shall be paid to the municipality.

[ 1989, c. 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW) .]

5. Application. This section applies to the enforcement of land use laws and ordinances or
rules that are administered and enforced primarily at the local level, including:

A. The plumbing and subsurface waste water disposal rules adopted by the Department of
Health and Human Services under Title 22, section 42, including the land area of the State
that is subject to the jurisdiction of the Maine Land Use Planning Commission; ({2007, c.
699, §18 (AMD); 2011, c. 682, §38 (REV).]

B. Laws pertaining to public water supplies, Title 22, sections 2642, 2647 and 2648;
(1989, c. 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

C. Local ordinances adopted pursuant to Title 22, section 2642; (1989, c. 104, Pt. A,
§45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]
D. Laws administered by local health officers pursuant to Title 22, chapters 153 and 263;

[1989, <. 104, Pt. A, §45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW) . ]

E. Laws pertaining to fire prevention and protection, which require enforcement by local
officers pursuant to Title 25, chapter 313; (1989, <. 104, Pr. A, §45 (NEW); 1989,
c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).)

F. Laws pertaining to the construction of public buildings for the physically disabled
pursuant to Title 5, sections 4582-B, 4582-C and 4594-F; [2011, c. 613, §28 (AMD);
2011, c. 613, §29 (AFF).]

G. Local land use ordinances adopted pursuant to section 3001; (1989, c. 104, Pt. A,
§45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

H. (2007, <. 699, §18 (RP).]
L. (2007, <. 699, §18 (RP).]

J. Laws pertaining to junkyards, automobile graveyards and automobile recycling businesses
and local ordinances regarding junkyards, automobile graveyards and automobile recycling
businesses, pursuant to chapter 183, subchapter 1 and Title 38, section 1665-A, subsection
3; [2007, c. 699, §18 (AMD).]

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/30-a/title30-Asec4452.html 2/5/2018



Title 30-A. §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances Page 5 of 6

K. Local ordinances regarding electrical installations pursuant to chapter 185, subchapter 2;
(2007, c. 699, §18 (AMD).]

L. Local ordinances regarding regulation and inspection of plumbing pursuant to chapter
185, subchapter 3; (2007, c. 699, §18 (AMD).)

M. Local ordinances regarding malfunctioning subsurface waste water disposal systems
pursuant to section 3428 and laws regarding malfunctioning subsurface waste water
disposal systems pursuant to Title 38, section 424-A; (2007, c. 568, §6 (AMD).]

N. The subdivision law and local subdivision ordinances adopted pursuant to section 3001
and subdivision regulations adopted pursuant to section 4403; (1989, c. 104, ®t. 2,
§45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10 (NEW).]

0. Local zoning ordinances adopted pursuant to section 3001 and in accordance with
section 4352; (1989, c. 104, Pt. R, $45 (NEW); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §10
(NEW) . ]

P. Wastewater discharge licenses issued pursuant to Title 38, section 353-B; (1999, <.
127, Pt. &, §46 (AMD).]

Q. Shoreland zoning ordinances adopted pursuant to Title 38, sections 435 to 447, including
those that were state-imposed; (2005, c. 240, §4 (AMD).]

R. The laws pertaining to harbors in Title 38, chapter 1, subchapter 1, local harbor
ordinances adopted in accordance with Title 38, section 7 and regulations adopted by
municipal officers pursuant to Title 38, section 2; (2007, <. 112, $4 (AMD).]

S. Local ordinances and ordinance provisions regarding storm water, including, but not
limited to, ordinances and ordinance provisions regulating nonstorm water discharges,
construction site runoff and postconstruction storm water management, enacted as
required by the federal Clean Water Act and federal regulations and by state permits and
rules; (2007, c. 661, Pt. A, §1 (AMD); 2007, c. 699, §18 (AMD).]

T. Laws pertaining to limitations on construction and excavation near burial sites and
established cemeteries in Title 13, section 1371-A and local ordinances and regulations
adopted by municipalities in accordance with this section and section 3001 regarding those
limitations; [RR 2007, c. 2, §16 (COR).]

U. Standards under a wind energy development certification issued by the Department of
Environmental Protection pursuant to Title 35-A, section 3456 if the municipality chooses
to enforce those standards ; and [RR 2007, c. 2, §17 (COR).]

(Paragraph U as enacted by PL 2007, c. 699, §18 is REALLOCATED TO TITLE 30-4,
SECTION 4452, SUBSECTION 5, PARAGRAPH V)

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/30-a/title30-Asec4452 . html 2/5/2018



Title 30-A, §4452: Enforcement of land use laws and ordinances

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/statutes/30-a/title30-Asec4452 . html

V. (REALLOCATED FROM T. 30-A, §4452, sub-§5, 9U) The Maine Uniform Building and
Energy Code, adopted pursuant to Title 10, chapter 1103. [rr 2007, c. 2, $18 (RAL).]

[ 2011, c. 613, §28 (AMD); 2011, c. 613, §29 (AFF); 2011, c. 682, §38 (REV) .]

6. Septage and sludge permits issued by the Department of Environmental Protection. A
municipality, after notifying the Department of Environmental Protection, may enforce the
terms and conditions of a septage land disposal or storage site permit or a sludge land
application or storage site permit issued by the Department of Environmental Protection
pursuant to Title 38, chapter 13, subchapter L

[ 1997, c. 38, §1 (AMD) .]

7. Natural resources protection laws. A code enforcement officer, authorized by a
municipality to represent that municipality in District Court and certified by the former State
Planning Office or the Department of Economic and Community Development, Office of
Community Development under section 4453 as familiar with court procedures, may enforce the
provisions of Title 38, section 420-C, Title 38, chapter 3, subchapter 1, article 5-A and Title 38,
chapter 13-D by instituting injunctive proceedings or by seeking civil penalties in accordance
with Title 38, section 349, subsection 2.

[ 2011, c. 655, Pt. FF, §9 (AMD); 2011, c¢. 655, Pt. FF, §16 (AFF) .]

SECTION HISTORY

1989, c. 104, SSA45,C10 (NEW). 1989, c. 287, §§3,4¢ (AMD). 1989, c. 727, §1
(BMD) . 1991, c. 548, §D6é (AMD). 1991, <. 732, §§1-4 (AMD). RR 1993, c. 1, §77
(COR). 1993, c. 23, §§1,2 (AMD). 1995, <. 58, §1 (AMD). 1995, c. 704, §Bl
(AMD) . 1995, c. 704, §C2 (AFF). 1997, c. 38, §1 (AMD). 1997, c. 296, §8 (AMD).
1997, c. 794, §Al (AMD). 1999, c. 127, SR46 (AMD). 1999, c. 370, §1 (AMD).
2003, c. 689, §B6 (REV). 2005, c. 148, §1 (AMD). 2005, c. 240, §84-6 (AMD).
RR 2007, c. 2, §§S16-18 (COR). 2007, c. %2, §§1, 2 (AMD). 2007, c. 112, §§4-6
(AMD} . 2007, c. 568, §6 (RMD). 2007, c. 569, §1 (AMD). 2007, c. 661, Pt. A,
§§1-3 (AMD). 2007, c. 699, §18 (AMD). 2007, c. 699, §24 (REV). 2011, c. 228,
§1 (AMD). 2011, c. 613, §28 (AMD). 2011, c. 613, §29 (AFF). 2011, c. 655, Pt.
FF, §9 (AMD). 2011, c. 655, Pt. FF, §16 (AFF). 2011, c. 682, §38 (REV).

The Revisor's Office cannot provide legal advice or interpretation of Maine law to the public.
If you need legal advice, please consult a qualified attorney.

Office of the Revisor of Statutes (mailto:webmaster_ros@legislature.maine.gov) - 7 State House Station -
State House Room 108 - Augusta, Maine 04333-0007

Page composed on 11/03/2017 01:34:04

Page 6 of 6

2/5/2018






Agenda Item 2018-8B

Town of Lisbon
2018 Department/Committee Goals
DRAFT

Introduction

This year, the Town Council, Town Manager and Department Heads have developed a list of priority
goals for the coming year. All these goals are meant to assist management in their furtherance of the
Town's Mission Statement.

Town of Lisbon Mission Statement

Our Mission Is To Ensure That Lisbon Continues To Remain “A Nice Place To Live And Do Business.”

We Are Committed To Serving The Public, Being Accountable, And Conducting Ourselves With Integrity,
Honesty, And Responsibility.

We Are Dedicated To Protecting Our Environment, Making Our Community Beautiful, And Providing A
Safe Place To Live.

We Are Committed To Sharing Information With Our Citizens And Including Them As Partners In The
Decision Making Process.

We Pledge To Support An Economic Development Plan That Balances The Diverse Needs Of Our Residents
And Businesses Alike.

We Will Strive To Seek Common Community Goals, Built On Respect For Differing Views And Opinions,
Which Will Benefit Citizens Now And In The Future.

We Will Continue To Encourage The Kind Of Community Where Families And Individuals Can Grow And
Demonstrate The Spirit That Has Made Lisbon Great.

Adopted by the Board of Selectmen, October 15, 2002

Town of Lisbon Goals

Town Council

1. Improved communication between town departments/committees and TC improved committee liaison
relationships.

2. Set and understand town manager and department specific goals.

3. Evaluations discussion.



4. Better promotion by Council and town issues to public at meeting, social media etc.*
. Improved Capital Improvement Plan (Town, School, Water): 5 year planning, greater scope of
Projects (vehicles, equipment, projects infrastructure, maintenance, budgeting, financing discussions

wn

for operation improvements).

Streamlined budget process, identification of needs, and fund balance discussion.
Town of Lisbon Comprehensive plan finalized and useful tool for marketing Lisbon.
Future of the Moxie Festival planning activities - event planner idea.

9. Lisbon Emergency support.

10. Committee goal setting/communicating component for coming year.

11. Other

il

Town Manager

Cross training and succession planning for all departments.

Open communication between manager/department heads and department heads/staff.

Identify efficiencies within departments and promote collaboration between departments.

Continue to increase transparency.

Continue to improve ways to engage citizen involvement and disseminate information on local issues.
Department training and compliance.

Ordinance review-ongoing.

Personnel Policy review and update-ongoing.

PN A LN~

Technology

Based on the server software upgrades currently underway, we are in great shape for the next several
years from a server standpoint. Immediate and long term goals are listed below:

1. Continue with annual work station refreshing.

Town Buildings

Most of our buildings following the energy efficiency project are in great shape. The Town Office
continues to have the biggest issues. Immediate and long term goals are listed below:

1. In the coming year, a study needs to be completed with respect to the integrity of the
Finance/Public Works wing. -

2. 385 Lisbon Street demolition - New building on that site or incorporate storage into potential
salt shed and storage space at Public Works.

3. Police and Town Office Employee entrance overhangs.

4. Long term HVAC upgrade plan needs to be developed. Consider heat pump options.

5. Library modular shelving.

Assessing

1. Make property tax cards and assessments available on-line.
2. E-911 Addressing Officer to become a shared responsibility with Code Enforcement.



3. Work with other department heads on a Town business brochure.
4. Succession planning,

Code Enforcement

1. Recertification
2. Improve gateways to the Town.
3. Work with other department heads on a Town business brochure.

Finance

1. Go live with Munis.
2. All positions cross trained with backup.
3. Restructure the current CIP to enhance readability and usefulness of information.

Clerk

1. Record retention.

2. Codify ordinances more frequently.

3. Record restoration.

4. Employee training and succession planning.

Police Department

[ncrease community outreach.

Increase directed enforcement activity.

Increase direct supervision and leadership.

Decrease level of liability/risk to Town of Lisbon, police department, and individual officers.
Increase cross-training and succession planning.

Increase training opportunities for all personnel.

Continue movement toward 5-year goals related to personnel, training, and equipment.

7Oy s b ke

Fire Department

1. Increase volunteer base through recruitment efforts.
2. Develop procedure for handling first responder requests for service,

Public Works

In general, the goals for the Public Works Department would be to maintain the level of funding the
Council has currently established. This has put the Department, in terms of infrastructure, in a much
better spot than years past. The capital improvement items are the biggest goals for the Department and
are identified below along with other operational improvements.



1. Purchase of a new wheeler to replace 211. 211 should remain as a spare and is very useful in
the summer for chipping and can be utilized by the recreation department as a CDL license is
not required.

2. Replacement of unit 206 with a new 3/4 ton pickup.

3. Replace gas and diesel fuel pumps.

4. Replace Salt Shed and provide for additional covered storage for equipment to extend useful
life ultimately saving money.

5. Greater emphasis and potential incentive program developed for proper equipment care and
custody.

6. Adjust work schedule to provide for adequate work days through the spring/summer/fall to
increase productivity and output.

Transfer Station

The Transfer Station operates fairly efficiently. The greatest improvement would be a facilities change
and possibly a staffing increase to install and operate a scale system. This would provide an accurate
capture of the weights and volumes of debris being processed through the transfer station and provide the
ability to collect fees which will offset the costs of transportation and disposal of the various waste
streams.

1. Fee Schedule Study including collection options - Electronic payments, "punch card" or
equivalent, cost benefit for scale installation.

2. Review traffic count data to determine peak usage and ultimately consider hours of operation
improvements.

3. Buildings, grounds, equipment, maintenance and appearance improvements.

Recreation

. Hire a full-time maintenance employee.

Hire a full-time events/senior coordinator.

Minimum wage/longevity wages.

ACA look back option (work with HR to see if this is a feasible option).
Program resource guide printed by April 1st.

Summer Camp (Include trips with camp fees).

. After School (special guests).

Install water source for gardens and MTM.

. Dog Park (Summer Street).

10. Androscoggin River Trail.

11. Beaver Park forestry plan, invasive species program, increase parking at Beaver Park and Summer
Street., research disc-golf course options at Beaver Park.

0PN AW

Library

1. Continue to move the Lisbon Library forward with the Maine InfoNet System (MILS). This includes
the re-bar-coding of all materials into the 14 digit barcode system. (Approximately 10,000 items from
the 39,000 items collection are left to re-barcode as of 2/7/ 18).

2. Continue to expand the Inter Library Loan Services through MILS and educate patrons to the



availability and ease of the use of the statewide MeCat catalog.

- Continue to asses and “weed” the adult collection to reflect the current needs of patrons and

manage the size of the collection to maintain available shelving spaces.

. Adapt the children’s programs to reflect the ages of our juvenile patrons and their ever changing

interests and needs. This may require more “outreach programs” and collaboration with other town
departments and organizations.

. Expand the adult programs to meet the needs of our community. The 2 programs offered last fiscal

year brought Lisbon citizens to the library for a DIY class and to meet a Maine author. They will
coordinate their offerings with the MTM Center and try to bring a variety of affordable, fun and
appropriate programs to the community.

Research ways and equipment to maximize first floor space for shelving, staff work spaces and quiet
area for reading and studying.

Economic /Community Development

wn

. Brochure Development (create "How to do Business in Lisbon Guide").

Continue with Business & Community Services Visitations.

. Work with businesses to host after work networking opportunities (After Hours Events with Town

Government).
Networking with Local Agencies, Developers & Business potentials.

. Continue to keep log of potential vacant properties for development.
. Continue to see potential grant opportunities.

Sewer

For the next couple of years the primary goal for the Sewer Department is to complete the projects
associated with our USDA RD Loan.

1.
2,

3.

Continually strive to maintain 100% compliance with the DEP issued waste discharge license.
Start the process to do the necessary outside laboratory testing required for the renewal of the
waste discharge license that will need to be renewed by December 2020,

Buildings, grounds, equipment, maintenance and appearance improvements.

Boards and Committee Goals

Recreation

Same as department goals.

Conservation Commission

1.

Beaver Park forestry plan, invasive species program, increase parking at Beaver Park and Summer
Street., research disc-golf course options at Beaver Park.



Planning Board
Planning

The list of goals below represents ongoing activities as well as drawing on recommendations from the
2011 Comprehensive Plan, the Route 196 Master Plan (adopted 2013) and the Lisbon Downtown Plan
(adopted 2014).

1. Complete the ongoing Comprehensive Plan update. This effort is on track for completion in Fall
2018.

2. Implementation of Comprehensive Plan update items. High priority items will likely include zoning
map updates and an ordinance audit to gauge how well the rules for development match up with the
vision for how the community should grow in the future.

3. Waterfront Area Planning. This includes master planning activities for the Worumbo Mill site and the
Knight-Celotex property. Medium priority item from the Route 196 Master Plan but more urgent now
with the demo at the Worumbo Site.

Ordinances

1. Draft access management standards for development on Route 196.

2. Find a way to overcome obstacles to allow Tiny Homes in Lisbon.

3. Draft longer term standards for medical and retail marijuana uses once the state has finalized rules
on retail/recreational marijuana.

Library Governing Board

1. Support and encourage partnerships and cooperative ventures with community organizations whenever
feasible.

2. Use all means possible to keep residents of the community informed about the library, its services, and
activities.

3. Continue to explore the expansion of the library, whether that means a new building or new ways to
use existing space.

4. Regularly review financial statistics.

5. Regularly visit the library and observe day-to-day operations.

6. Review and discuss monthly statistics, identifying any areas of concern and determining when action
may be necessary and what action is necessary.

7. Discuss how to improve availability of up-to-date medical resources no longer published as physical
books but available in electronic book form.

8. Explore the feasibility of adding a one-floor open space addition/expansion at the rear of the library
off the children's room to accommodate a reading/quiet room and a conference room for patron
use. (Long-term goal)



Lisbon Development Committee (LDC)

While there will be a more detailed and defined separate sub-goals which will be communicated to the
Town Council, our overarching goal for the LDC is to renovate and upgrade existing downtown public
infrastructure with a concentration on high visibility items and areas as a priority. We will plan to use
existing TIF funds for our operations, either as payment or as leverage for other funds that may be
available for financing larger items.



	March 6, 2018 Agenda in Color
	scan

